Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

THURSDAY, 23RD APRIL, 2009 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Bull, Davies, Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett
(Vice-Chair) and Mughal

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 15 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

12.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -38)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on 3 February 2009.
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTS 2008/09 (PAGES 9 - 18)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to report and consider the accounting policies
that are being used for the closure of the Council’s accounts for 2008/09.

IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS) (PAGES 19 - 22)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to provide a background to the introduction of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to Local Government and to
outline the process Haringey Council will be taking to ensure full implementation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE FROM GRANT THORNTON (PAGES 23 - 24)
Report of Grant Thornton.
AUDIT AND INSPECTION FEES 2009/10 (PAGES 25 - 36)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Committee of the proposed audit
and inspection fees for 2009/10 to be charged by Grant Thornton and the Audit
Commission.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING TO HOUSING
BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT

TO FOLLOW
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN AND STRATEGY 2009/10 (PAGES 37 - 76)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform Members of the
proposed Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2009/10 and to advise Members of the
internal audit strategy.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2008/09 QUARTER 4 (PAGES 77 - 128)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Committee of the
work undertaken during the fourth quarter by the Internal Audit Service in completing
the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud investigation work. In addition, the
work of the Council’s personnel division in supporting disciplinary action taken across
all departments by respective council managers.



13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE RISK REGISTER (PAGES 129 - 170)
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the current position on risk management implementation across the Council and
provide a revised risk management strategy for consideration and approval and to
provide a register of corporate business risks for review.

14. OFFICE OF THE SURVEILLANCE COMMISSIONERS (OSC) INSPECTION
(PAGES 171 - 182)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform Members of the
inspection visit made to Haringey by the Assistant Surveillance Commissioner in
March 2009 and to inform Members of the recommendations made by the OSC and
the council’s response in order to ensure these are appropriately addressed.

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday, 2 June 2009 at 19:30hrs.

Yuniea Semambo Helen Jones

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Coordinator

5" Floor Tel: 020 8489 2615

River Park House Fax: 020 8489 2660

225 High Road Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ Wednesday, 15 April 2009



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Bull, Diakides, Gorrie and Mallett (Vice-Chair)

Apologies Councillor Davies
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC62. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Davies.

PRACG63.| URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRACG64. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRACG65. MINUTES

In respect of the circulated minutes of the 28 October 2008, Clir Gorrie
requested an update on how progress on the resolutions made in
respect of the Health Inequalities report (PRAC53) would be monitored.
The Chair would forward an update on this issue to Clir Gorrie outside
the meeting.

ClIr Gorrie also requested an update on the position regarding Icelandic
Banks (PRAC56), and expressed concern that there had been no
Member involvement in the governance process for the review. Concern
was also expressed that the initial report had yet to be published,
although it had been due for the end of December 2008. The Chair
noted the concerns expressed, and reported that the issue of Icelandic
Banks was referred to by Grant Thornton in the CPA Use of Resources
report. Grant Thornton had taken the view that the Council had acted in
accordance with its treasury management policy.

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the Audit Committee held on 28 October 2008 be
approved and signed by the Chair.

PRACG66. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRAC67. COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT (CPA) - USE OF
RESOURCES AND DATA QUALITY - AUDITOR'S REPORT 2008 -
THE COUNCIL'S ACTION PLAN




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

The Committee received a report on the external auditors’ report on the
CPA Use of Resources and Data Quality audits undertaken during
2007/08 and the action plan. These two pieces of work contribute to the
annual Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.

Grant Thornton outlined the key recommendations from the Use of
Resources and Data Quality. The Chair thanked Grant Thornton for this
important work and invited questions from the Committee.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the nature of
the role of the Sector in relation to investments made with Icelandic
Banks, Grant Thornton responded that they considered that the Sector
provided treasury management advice to the Council.

The Committee asked what evidence Grant Thornton had considered
regarding how the Council's procurement arrangements were
maximising local benefits and what the definition of local benefits was.
Grant Thornton would provide the information on these issues and the
basis on which their conclusions had been reached outside the meeting.

The Committee enquired further about the Data Quality conclusions, in
light of Members having some negative experience of data issues from
individual services. Grant Thornton reported that the data quality
assessment was based on strict Audit Commission criteria relating to
systems the Council was expected to have in place on a corporate level.

In response to questions from the Committee regarding the accounts of
the Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust, Grant Thornton
reported that the system for producing separate accounts was consistent
with current accounting standards. It was noted that, although the
accounts were separate, the Chief Financial Officer, as Section 151
Officer, had responsibility for the proper administration of the financial
affairs of the Council as a whole, including the Alexandra Palace and
Park Charitable Trust.

The Committee asked for assurance regarding the information provided
by the Council to Ofsted, and it was reported that Grant Thornton would
take this into account in their forthcoming work.

In response to a request from the Committee for feedback relating to
adult transport, it was reported that this would be covered as part of the
Scrutiny Review of Service Based Transport with Adult Social Care and
that if any issues arose that needed further attention, then these would
be brought back to the Committee as necessary.

The Chair expressed satisfaction that the overall scores had improved
on the previous year. The Chair requested that the Committee be
provided with periodic updates on each of the Key Lines of Enquiry in
order for the Committee to monitor the implementation of the
recommendations, as recommended by Grant Thornton.

The Chair asked Grant Thornton about the public satisfaction element of




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

the new Comprehensive Area Assessment arrangements and the need
to balance the interests of the organisation and the public on areas
where these were not completely aligned. It was reported that the
precise definition and scope for “public satisfaction”, and how this would
be incorporated into the system, was still being developed. Eve
Pelekanos, Corporate Head of Performance and Policy, reported that the
Place Survey commissioned from MORI would form a key part of the
Comprehensive Area Assessment, and that the results of the survey
would be reported to Members as soon as they were available.

The Chair commented that in order to get a balanced assessment from
the External Auditors under the new CAA regime, he felt that it was
essential for the inspecting agencies to have neutral eyes and ears in
making the overall judgements, taking into account the performances of
the Council along with other local partners. The Chair also requested a
copy of the detailed report on management arrangements as provided to
officers, as mentioned on paragraph 3.3 of the report, for the greater
interest of proper discharge of duties.

RESOLVED

That the CPA Use of Resources and Data Quality scores for 2008, the
auditors’ recommendations and the action plan in response be noted,
and that the Committee be provided with periodic updates in order to
monitor the implementation of the recommendations and to comply with
the hopes and aspirations of Grant Thornton, as mentioned at the report
in various sections.

PRACGS.

GRANTS REPORT 2007/08

The Committee received a report on the outcomes of the annual grant
work by Grant Thornton. It was reported that the Council’s performance
in relation to grants had improved in 2007/08 compared with 2006/07,
and that the level of fees charged for grants work had reduced.

In response to questions from the Committee relating to the late
submission of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits claim, the Chief
Financial Officer reported that the final settlement did not affect the
Council’s cash-flow as an estimated payment had been received in
advance. This also applied to the late submission of the EYCO02 claim.
Grant Thornton reported that it was important for the deadlines to be met
in order to ensure that the audit could be certified on time, in line with the
specifications of the Audit Commission.

The Chair urged officers to ensure that the target for claims submitted on
time was exceeded in future.

RESOLVED

That the management responses contained in the action plan be agreed.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

PRAC69.

REVIEW OF PROBITY AND PROPRIETY - FINAL REPORT BY
GRANT THORNTON

The Committee received a report on the outcome of the review of probity
and propriety and the Council's response to the findings and
recommendations.

The Committee asked for further information on the recommendation
that members of the Audit Committee be independent of both executive
and scrutiny functions. Grant Thornton reported that this was part of
CIPFA guidance, as there was a potiential conflict of interest for any
Member sitting on both Audit and either Standards or Scrutiny
committees. The Chair agreed with the CIPFA guidance on this point,
and suggested that this be looked into further.

The Chair reported that he had requested a separate report on the
Council’s whistleblowing policy for consideration by the Audit Committee,
and this was welcomed by the Committee.

The Committee agreed on the necessity of robust partnerships, and the
Council’s role in influencing partner organisations in relation to best
practice for ethical governance.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted and the management responses contained in
the action plan be agreed.

PRAC70.

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - FEBRUARY 2009

The Committee received an audit progress report from Grant Thornton.
The Chair requested that Grant Thornton present an in-depth report on
the International Financial Reporting Standards to the Audit Committee,
in order to help the Committee to monitor their implementation, and that
Committee members be given an opportunity to join the workshops
being arranged by Grant Thornton.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACT1.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING
TO HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT

The Committee received a report on the counter fraud performance of
the Benefits and Local Taxation Service from the 15! October 2008 — 30"
December 2008. Correcting some of the figures presented in the report,
Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation, advised the
Committee that the number of cautions issued in the third quarter
2008/09 should be 23 and the number of admin penalties for the same
period should be 9. Under successful outcomes for year-to-date




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

2008/09, the number of cautions should be 41, and the number of admin
penalties 20. Mr Fisher reported that performance for the third quarter
2008/09 was above target, and that performance was expected to meet
the target for the full year.

Mr Fisher reported on activities relating to the anti-fraud and corruption
strategy, particularly relating to the promotion of the ‘keep us informed’
message. Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) data indicated that
in the period 1% June 2008 — 20™ November 2008, the Benefits and
Local taxation Service had made 17, 376 alterations to existing benefits
claims as a result of claimants reporting changes or as a result of the
activities to promote the ‘keep us informed message’. It was also
reported that 87% of those who had participated in the pilot scheme to
report changes of circumstances at their local Post Office had indicated
that they would wish to continue using this service, and that Royal Mail
were in discussions with DWP regarding whether to promote this type of
partnership nationally.

The Committee suggested that the issue of how overpayments were
handled should be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Clir Bull would discuss this further with the Scrutiny department. Mr
Fisher confirmed that he would circulate the sanctions policy to Members
for information.

In response to a question from the Committee, Mr Fisher reported that
benchmarking figures for the recovery of overpaid benefits by other local
authorities were not available.

For clarity, Mr Fisher agreed that he would include a key to the table of
cases successfully sanctioned produced for future reports to the
Committee.
RESOLVED

That the report and the work being carried out by the Benefits and Local
Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity be noted.

PRAC72.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2008/09 QUARTER 3

The Committee received a report on the work undertaken during the
third quarter by the Internal Audit Service. It was reported that Deloitte
and Touche were on target to complete the audit plan in full by year end,
and that 12 projects had been finalised by Deloitte and Touche in the
third quarter. A progress update on the implementation of outstanding
recommendations was provided, following the Committee’s request at
the previous meeting that all outstanding recommendations be
implemented by target dates of either 31 December 2008 or 31 March
2009.

The Committee noted that some of the recommendations that had been
given a deadline of 31° December 2008 at the previous meeting were
still outstanding. Further to the proposal made at the previous meeting




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

that, where there was a failure to implement outstanding
recommendations by the deadlines set, the relevant Heads of Service be
required to attend the Audit Committee to explain why, it was reported
that this had not been felt to be necessary, as sufficient progress had
been reported against all the outstanding actions. In future, it was
agreed Heads of Service would be required to attend meetings to
explain to the Committee any failure to implement recommendations and
that any exception to this would have to be approved by prior
Consultation with the Chair of the Committee.

Following discussion with the services regarding realistic delivery dates,
revised deadlines had been proposed. The Committee considered each
of the revised deadlines and approved the revisions, as set out in the
report, as the final dates, with the following exceptions:

. Waste Management 4. — a deadline had not been established
as implementation was dependent on Enterprise. The
Committee requested that the Director agree a deadline with
Enterprise.

o Appointeeship & Receivership 9. — the Committee set a
deadline of March 2009 for implementation.

o Appointeeship & Receivership 10. — the Chair stated that the
Committee could not accept the present position, and
requested that the Chief Financial Officer develop an
appropriate framework, for implementation by September
20009.

For all the recommendations, the Chair emphasised that the revised
deadlines must be adhered to.

The Chair emphasised that it was necessary to have a separate report
on risk management at each of the quarterly meetings, as risk
management could not be adequately covered as part of another report.

RESOLVED
i) That the audit coverage and progress during the third quarter
2008/09 and on the reports outstanding from 2007/08 be
noted.

ii) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

iii) That Heads of Service be required to attend the Audit
Committee to account for any failure to implement outstanding
recommendations by the revised deadlines agreed by the
Committee, with exceptions being agreed by the Chair.

iv) That a standard report on Risk Management be presented by
the Chief Financial Officer to the Committee on a quarterly
basis and on a yearly basis with the Corporate Risk Registers,
together with a detailed report on the actual maintenance of all




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2009

the Risk Registers of different bodies of the Council, including
the one covering the Council’s position in terms of the risks
associated with Alexandra Palace and Park.

PRAC73.| NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRAC74. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee would take place on

Thursday, 23 April 2009 at 19:30hrs at the Civic Centre, Wood Green,
London N22.

The meeting concluded at 21:15hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey Council
Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report title: Accounting Policies and Accounts 2008/09

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To report and consider the accounting policies that are being used for the closure of the
Council's accounts for 2008/09.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee reviews and agrees the attached accounting policies to be used in
the closure of the Council’'s accounts for 2008/09.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver — Head of Finance — Accounting, Control & Income
Telephone 020 8489 3725

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Under the Council's constitution, the Audit Committee has a role to review and agree
the accounting policies that are in operation in the Council and will be utilised for
annual closure of accounts.




Page 10

3.2 The accounting policies to be applied in preparing the Statement of Accounts 2008/09
are detailed in this report. There are only minor changes proposed to policies for
2008/09.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom — A Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) — (CIPFA Publication)

Local Government Finance Act 1992

Local Government Act 2003

6. Background

6.1  The Council is required to produce an annual statement of accounts which set
out the financial statements for the Council and the Pensions Fund and are
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Code of Practice in Great Britain
(ACOP) and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP). These
codes are incorporated into a Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP)
which details how the accounting policies need to be applied and is the
benchmark against which the accounts are audited.

6.2 A key part of the production of the accounts of the Authority is ensuring that
accounting policies are applied in the most appropriate manner. The
accounting policies that are to be applied are found in the attached appendix.

6.3 The Audit Committee has a role to review the accounting policies to be used as
part of the year end process and to ensure they are being applied
appropriately.

6.4 Internal auditors Deloitte and external auditors Grant Thornton have both given
assurances that the Council has correctly applied appropriate accounting
policies in relation to previous years. As part of the 2007/08 audit, Grant
Thornton undertook a thorough review of the accounting policies in place and
the adequacy of how they were disclosed and raised no issues or
recommendations as a result of this review.

6.5




7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

Page 11

Accounting Policies

For 2008/09 there have been no changes to the accounting policies as a result
of accounting regulations and therefore the accounting policies being used in
2008/09 are the same as in 2007/08.

A few minor changes to the wording of the policies has been done in order to
improve the overall disclosure and understanding.

The accounting policies and their application are reviewed every year by the
Council’'s external auditors, Grant Thornton, as part of the annual audit. In
2007/08 they undertook a thorough review of the policies but did not raise any
issues or recommendations as a result.

Recommendation

That the committee reviews and agrees the attached accounting policies to be
used in the closure of the Council's accounts for 2008/09.



Page 12

APPENDIX A

Statement of Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below apply to the Financial Statements of the
Authority and the Pension Fund.

General Principle

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain (ACOP) and the Best Value
Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP), as published by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). These codes have been approved as a
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). Details of the Pension Fund and
accounting policies used can be found in section 5 of these accounts.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The Council's accounts are prepared on an accruals basis in that, income and
expenditure is accounted for in the year in which it arises, by the creation of material
debtors and creditors, including estimates where appropriate.

Treatment of Debtors

The Authority undertakes to recover all outstanding debts. However, where doubts
exist over the recoverability of these debts a provision is made. Once a debt is
deemed irrecoverable it is written off.

Government Grants and Contributions

Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on the accruals basis
and in accordance with the matching principle. This means that income must be
matched to its corresponding expenditure, and will therefore remain on the balance
sheet as a liability until the equivalent expenditure is incurred. They are shown in the
accounting statements when the conditions for their receipt have been complied with
and there is reasonable assurance that the grant or contribution is to be received.

Grants and contributions relating to fixed assets are credited to the Government
Grants Deferred Account and released to the revenue account in line with
depreciation. Where a grant is not associated with a specific asset it is written-down
to the income and expenditure account in the year of use.

Cost of Support Services

The cost of central departments has been allocated to direct services on a variety of
bases, reflecting the work provided by these support services.

Leases arrangements

Finance Leases — Under the Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) 21,
assets acquired under finance leases are treated as being in the ownership of the



Page 13

lessee. Therefore the outstanding liability that the Council has is recorded on the
balance sheet as a capital sum outstanding and written down every year, over the life
of the lease, with the annual interest element being charged to the Council's revenue
account.

Operating Leases - Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue
on an accruals basis and on a straight-line basis.

Private Finance Initiative

The Council has a PFl arrangement for its secondary schools. The ownership of
these assets are with the Council and therefore they are contained within the balance
sheet and valued in accordance with the fixed assets accounting policies.

In addition the total value of the liability that is due to the contractor is contained on
the balance sheet and is written down each year as payment is made. This liability is
split between a long-term liability and short term creditor, for the sum due within the
next 12 months.

Valuation of Stock

Stocks have been valued at net current replacement value. This is not compliant with
SSAP 9 which states stock should be valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The divergence from normal accounting standards is due to the level of stock
held and the additional costs involved with full compliance.

Capital Receipts

These arise from the sale of long-term assets. The receipts arising from the sale of
General Fund assets are 100% usable by the Authority on capital expenditure. For
the sale of HRA assets the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires these
generated from the sale of Council housing to be split between a usable and a pooled
element (25%/75%), any receipts generated from the sale of other housing land and
buildings are split 50%/50%. This pooled element is paid over to Central Government
and the total amount paid can be seen in the income and expenditure account. The
usable part is used to finance capital expenditure.

Deferred Capital Receipts

When the Authority disposes of long-term assets such as council dwellings and
advances a mortgage to the purchaser, the mortgage is shown in the balance sheet
as a long-term debt and an equal amount is shown as a deferred capital receipt. The
long-term debt and deferred capital receipt are both written down as the principal is
repaid by mortgagees.

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure is charged to capital where it meets the definition of capital as per the
SORP and is greater than £10,000. This includes staffing costs where they are
directly attributable to a capital project, e.g. architects costs, and non-enhancing
expenditure where it is being directly used to maintain the value of the asset and
ensuring it remains fit for purpose.



Page 14

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet on the following basis:

(a) specialist operational land and properties are valued based on Depreciated
Replacement Cost (DRC), and non-specialist land and properties are valued
based on DRC, existing use or market value as appropriate;

(b) council housing is valued at Existing Use Valuation (EUV) and then has a social
housing percentage applied to arrive at the valuation;

(c) non-operational assets in the form of investment properties and surplus assets
are valued on the basis of their open market value with other non-operational
assets valued at net current replacement value;

(d) infrastructure assets are included in the Balance Sheet at historical cost basis net
of depreciation,;

(e) community assets such as parks are recorded at a nominal value;

(f) intangible assets are valued at cost and amortised over their lifetime, normally 5
years.

All valuations are subject to review as part of a five year rolling programme.

The Authority has a process for identifying impairments that have incurred on fixed
assets, e.g. where fire damage has occurred to an asset resulting in a reduced
valuation, and have applied this in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
(FRS) 11.

Deferred Charges

Deferred charges relate to expenditure on assets that do not belong to the Authority,
for example Improvement Grants, but the expenditure still falls within the definition of
capital expenditure. The treatment of these costs is:

(a) Expenditure recorded in the balance sheet is written out to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which the expenditure is incurred and then
reversed through the Statement of Movement in General Fund Balances;

(b) Financing costs for deferred charges are accounted for corporately after net
expenditure has been disclosed;

(c) No asset is shown within the Authority’s balance sheet.

Depreciation

Where asset life is short-term, the value of those assets is written out to revenue
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Vehicles Plant & Equipment 5 years

Infrastructure 30 years
Buildings 20 to 60 years
Council Dwellings No depreciation charge is made but the

Housing Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) is used as
a proxy to depreciation.



Page 15

Intangibles Amortised over 5 years

Depreciation is charged on all assets except non-operational investment assets,
community assets and assets awaiting disposal. For community and awaiting
disposal assets this is a departure from SORP as the amounts involved are deemed
to be immaterial. Newly acquired assets are not depreciated in the year of acquisition
and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are brought
into use. The MRA that is used as a proxy for council dwellings depreciation is a
lower figure than if a straight line depreciation method were to be used. Depreciation
is calculated on the opening balance of an asset and any revaluation is done as at the
31st March and will only be taken into account for depreciation purposes in the
following year.

When assets are re-valued the accumulated depreciation to date is written out of the
balance sheet to the Revaluation Reserve, in accordance with proper accounting
practice. In addition, adjustments are made to historical depreciation which may result
in additional charges being made to the I&E account. Where this occurs the
adjustment is reversed back out through the STMGFB.

Where an asset disposal has occurred the cumulative depreciation is written down in
the year of disposal.

Minimum Revenue Provision

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989,
the authority has set aside a minimum revenue provision for repayment of debt of 4%
of the Council’s capital financing requirement. In addition the Authority has set aside a
voluntary revenue provision (VRP) to cover debt repayments where it is deemed
more prudent to set aside over a shorter period of time.

Provisions

The Authority has made a number of provisions for liabilities that are probable to
occur, but the timing and amounts are uncertain and have applied this in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 12.

Reserves

A reserve contains funds that have been set aside for a future earmarked purpose
that may arise. Expenditure is charged to revenue and not directly to any reserve. For
each reserve established, the purpose, usage and basis of transactions are identified
in the notes to the Authority’s Financial Statements. The general fund reserve is un-
earmarked and is to allow for any future unknown contingencies that may arise. This
reserve is set by the Chief Financial Officer at what is deemed to be a prudent level.

Pension Costs
Under Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS 17) the Council is required to account

for retirement benefits when it is committed to pay them, even if the actual payment
will be many years into the future. In line with the requirements of the SORP the



Page 16

Council's actuary uses the AA Corporate Bond rate (6.9% for 2007/08) to calculate
future liabilities.

* Pension Reserve

The Pension Reserve is the financial accounting mechanism to ensure that FRS17
has no impact on Council tax. The cost of providing pensions for employees is funded
in accordance with the statutory requirements governing each scheme. Where the
payments made for the year do not match the change in the Authority’s recognised
asset or liability for the same period, the recognised cost of pensions will not match
the amount required to be raised in taxation. This difference is removed by an
appropriation to or from the pension’s reserve, which equals the net change in the
pension’s liability recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account.

+ Classification of Schemes

The Council participates in two different pension schemes, one for teachers, an
unfunded scheme administered by the Department for Children Schools and Families
(DCSF) and the Local Government Pension Scheme for our other staff. The schemes
provide members with a defined benefit pension related to pay and service. For the
purposes of FRS17 pension schemes are classified into two categories, defined
benefit or defined contribution. The Haringey scheme is classified as defined benefit.
The teachers’ schemes of the DCFS, although a defined benefit scheme, is treated as
defined contribution scheme because it does not allow the allocation of its liabilities
and assets consistently and reliably to participant authorities

* Defined Benefit Schemes

The attributable assets of the scheme are measured at fair value and include current
assets and investments. The attributable liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method. Scheme liabilities are discounted at the AA
Corporate Bond Rate. The surplus or deficit in the scheme is the excess or shortfall of
the value of the assets in the scheme over or below the present value of the scheme
liabilities. The change in the defined benefit asset or liability is shown in the Income
and Expenditure Account and analysed into the following components, current service
costs, interest cost, expected return on assets and actuarial gains and losses, and
past service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments.

* Defined Contribution Schemes

The Teachers scheme, whilst being a defined benefit scheme is treated as a defined
contribution scheme as explained above. This means that the pension costs reported
for any year is equal to the contributions payable for the scheme for the same period.
The costs are recognised within Net Cost of Services.

* Pensions
Further information on pension costs and the Pension Fund appear in the individual
statements within the accounts.

Value Added Tax

VAT is included within the accounts only where it is irrecoverable. Any recoverable
amounts due from HMRC are included in the balance sheet as a debtor.

Contingent Liability or Asset



Page 17

Where the Authority has a potential future liability, or a potential future gain, but
cannot say with any certainty whether it will come about or the value of this liability it
is disclosed by way of a note to the accounts.

Associated and Subsidiary Companies (FRS2)

The Authority has a financial relationship with a number of companies. Details are
contained in the notes to the Authority’s Financial Statements. The SORP requires
Authorities to produce group accounts where group relationships occur with
associated and subsidiary companies. All the companies with which Haringey has a
relationship have been assessed against the group account requirements and only
that with Homes for Haringey is deemed to be within the Haringey group. Homes for
Haringey Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary and therefore group accounts have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards. These have been produced
using the acquisition method and all intra-group transactions have been removed.

Exceptional Items, Extraordinary ltems and Prior Period Adjustments

Where applicable and relevant exceptional items and extraordinary items are
disclosed in the Income and Expenditure Account with full supporting notes. The
majority of prior period adjustments arise from corrections and adjustments and are
accounted for in the year they are identified.

Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting
policy or correction of fundamental errors are accounted for by restating comparative
figures for the preceding year in the statement of account and notes and adjusting the
opening balance of reserves for the cumulative effect. More details and full
explanations are given in the individual relevant financial statements.

Post balance sheet events

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the balance sheet date and the date when the financial
statements were authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

¢ those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date
(adjusting events after the balance sheet date); and

o those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date (non-
adjusting events after the balance sheet date)

Financial Instruments — these are categorised as either financial assets or financial
liabilities, which the accounting policies for both are stated below.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are divided into the following categories: loans and receivables;
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; available-for-sale financial assets;



Page 18

and held-to-maturity investments. Financial assets are assigned to the different
categories by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which
they were acquired. The designation of financial assets is re-evaluated at every
reporting date at which a choice of classification or accounting treatment is available.
Haringey Council only holds loans and receivables.

All financial assets are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Trade debtors, long term borrowing
and cash are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. Any change in their value through
impairment or reversal of impairment is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Provision against trade debtors is made when there is objective evidence that the
group/company will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the
original terms of those receivables. The amount of the write-down is determined as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are
recognised when the group/company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial liabilities categorised as at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded initially at fair value, all transaction costs are recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account. All other financial liabilities are recorded initially at fair
value, net of direct issue costs. Liabilities valued on an amortised costs basis is done
so using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation is extinguished, that is,
when the obligation is discharged or cancelled or expires.



Page 19 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council
Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report title: Implementation of new International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1To provide a background to the introduction of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) to Local Government and to outline the process Haringey Council will
be taking to ensure full implementation.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Members note the contents of the report and information given to the Committee
in the accompanying presentation and actions being taken to implement the new IFRS
requirements.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver — Head of Finance — Accounting, Control & Income
Telephone 020 8489 3725

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In the budget in 2007 the Chancellor announced that the public sector would be
moving to IFRS-based financial reporting, from 2008/09 for all areas except local




Page 20

government. Local government would be required to report on these new standards
from 2009/10.

3.2 In the 2008 budget it was announced that this timetable would slip by one year and,
therefore, local government are required to meet these standards in closing the
2010/11 accounts.

3.3 This report sets out the action being taken by the Council to ensure these
requirements are met.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom — A Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) — (CIPFA Publication)

Local Government Finance Act 1992

Local Government Act 2003

6. Background

6.1 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) refer to the international
equivalent to UK GAAP, the set of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
that include accounting standards, interpretations and established accounting
practice. It has long been recognised in the corporate sector that there is a
demand for a single set of accounting standards as both business and the
financial markets become more global.

6.2 In the budget in 2007 the Chancellor announced that the public sector would
be moving to IFRS-based financial reporting, from 2008/09 for all areas except
local government. Local Government would be required to report on these new
standards from 2009/10. The budget in 2008 subsequently slipped this by one
year resulting in Local Government being required to have 2010/11 as the first
set of accounts produced under IFRS.

6.3 The reasons for introducing IFRS included enhanced consistency and
comparability between financial reports in the global economy and to follow
private sector best practice.

6.4  Annual accounts for the Local Government will need to be prepared using
IFRS for the year ending 31 March 2011. In addition, comparative financial




6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

Page 21

information for 2009/10 will need to be restated along with opening balances at
1 April 2009. In practice, this means that the transition period for all Local
Government bodies starts in 2009/10, the current financial year.

The Council will also need to ensure it takes into account the new standards
when setting its budgets for 2010/11 and understands any budgetary
implications that may occur.

Haringey preparation and approach

The implementation of the new standards is a major piece of work that will cut
across a number of services, not only finance and there will be a number of
work-streams In order to fully understand where the Council needs to
concentrate its efforts Grant Thornton have been commissioned to undertake a
gap analysis on the current set of accounts and to subsequently produce a
draft action plan and timetable for implementation.

Following on from this piece of work an IFRS implementation project team will
be set up with key individuals. The membership of this project team will
depend on the outcome of the gap analysis but will contain key finance staff,
property and Grant Thornton, as an external advisor.

Grant Thornton are due to provide the Council with their draft report on the gap
analysis a few days before this Committee and officers will update the
Members on the outcome of this at the meeting.

As is stated in section 6.4 some balances are required to be restated as at 1
April 2009. As part of the accounts closure process for 2008/09, information is
being collected to ensure these balances can be appropriately restated.

Further progress reports on the implementation of IFRS will be brought to
future meetings of this Committee.

The additional work likely to be involved may have resource implications for
the Council. This will need to be considered as part of the Council’'s budget
process.

Recommendation
That Members note the contents of the report and information given to the

Committee in the accompanying presentation and actions being taken to
implement the new IFRS requirements.



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



HARINGEY COUNCIL

Page 23

Agenda Iltem 8

& GrantThornton

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2009

Work

Use of resources and data quality
2008

Progress

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Review of probity and propriety

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Grants 2007-08

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Accounts planning workshop,
interim accounts work and
discussion of key issues

Following attendance at our 2008-09 accounts training
sessions in January, we have held a number of liaison
meetings to discuss key issues and plan for the 2008,/09
audit. These are progressing well.

International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)
workshop

In February 2009, we held a workshop to help the Council
to prepare for putting arrangements in place, from April
2009, in time for full implementation of IFRS in 2010/11.

We will present an overview of IFRS to the Audit
Committee.

Interim accounts audit

The interim audit took place from 23 March to 3 April 2009.
There are no significant issues to report to the Audit
Committee.

Final accounts audit

To be carried out in July and August and reported to
September 2009 Audit Committee as part of the Annual
report to those charged with governance (ISA260).

Use of resources local risk based
work

We will discuss with management the areas of work outlined
in our 2008 /09 audit plan and report findings, with our use
of resources conclusion, in the Annual report to those
charged with governance (September 2009).




Work

Treasury management

Page 24

Progress

We worked with the Council to submit details of it's treasury
management policies and investments to the Audit
Commission. This information was requested from all local
government bodies as part of the Commission’s research to
identify lessons for local government treasury management
following the recent default of Icelandic banks. The Audit
Commission published results from the research in March
and recommended a number of actions for local authorities.
We will assess the Council's response to these, and other
internal and external treasury management
recommendations, as part of our 2009 /10 audit.

2009/10 audit fees

In accordance with Audit Commission guidance we have
issued an indicative fees letter to the Council. This is
included as a separate item on Audit Committee agenda..

Grant Thornton UK LLP
April 2009

Page 2



Page 25 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report title: Audit and Inspection Fees 2009/10

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1To inform the Committee of the proposed audit and inspection fees for 2009/10 to be
charged by Grant Thornton and the Audit Commission.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes and approves the proposed audit and inspection fees for
2009/10 from Grant Thornton and the Audit Commission

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver — Head of Finance — Accounting, Control & Income
Telephone 020 8489 3725

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council are required to pay fees to its statutory auditors for the audit and
inspection activities they undertake each year. The attached correspondence from
the auditors are attached and set out their fees for 2009/10.




Page 26

3.2 The fees charged by Grant Thornton are for the work they carry out for the statutory
audit and the use of resources assessment under the CAA. The fees from the Audit
Commission is for their function as the CAA lead for Haringey.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

6. Background

6.1  The Council are required to pay fees to its statutory auditors for the audit
activities they undertake each year. The attached correspondence from the
auditors are attached and set out their fees for 2009/10.

6.2 The fees charged by Grant Thornton are for the work they carry out for the
statutory audit and the use of resources assessment under the CAA. The fee
from the Audit Commission is for their function as the CAA lead for Haringey.

7. Proposed fees

7.1 The fees for 2009/10 from both the Audit Commission and Grant Thornton are
set out in the table below.

Audit Commission £
CAA inspection (directly grant funded) nil
Managing performance theme of 19,956
organisational assessment

Sub total 19,956
Grant Thornton

Financial statements, including WGA 340,000
Use of resources/VFM conclusion, including 165,000
data quality

Sub total 505,000

Total Audit Fees 2009/10 524,956




7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1.1

Page 27

The basis of the fees is detailed in the attached letters from Grant Thornton
and the Audit Commission.

The fees from the Audit Commission for the new CAA inspection regime are
directly grant funded.

The fees from Grant Thornton show an increase of £34k (7%) over the cost for
2008/09. The two main additional sums are in respect of preparation for IFRS
(£9.55k) and additional data quality work (£19.63k). The other increase is for
inflation of 1%.

Recommendation

That the committee notes and approves the audit fees for 2009/10 from Grant
Thornton and the Audit Commission



Page 28

Our Ref PD/PH

Mr Gerald Almeroth

Chief Financial Officer

London Borough of Haringey

5th floor, River Park House g::::;:;;?;anggsle.LP

225 High Road Melton Street, Euston Square

Wood Green London NW12EP

London N22 8HQ F <44 0120 772 26
www.grant-thornton.co.uk

25 March 2009

Dear Gerald

Annual audit fee 2009/10
We are writing to set out the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2009/10
financial year at the Council. The fee:

e s based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit
Practice and work mandated by the Audit Commission for 2009/10

o reflects only the audit element of our work, excluding any inspection and assessment
fees. Your Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead will be writing to you separately
on inspection fees.

The Audit Commission published its work programme and scales of fees 2009/10, in
December 2008. From 2009-10, the Audit Commission has clarified that the starting
point for any fee proposal is the scale fee, which is calculated using a prescribed formula.
Any variation from scale fee must be approved by the Audit Commission, following
agreement of the proposed fee with the audited body.

We are proposing a 2009/10 fee of £505,000 (excluding VAT). The proposed fee is 14%
above the Audit Commission scale fee of £444,000 (from 10% above scale fee last year). This
is due to increased risks relevant to our Code responsibilities, relating to preparing for
accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), data quality, treasury
management, managing performance through partnerships and workforce management
arrangements.

A summaty of the proposed fee is shown in the table below.

Audit area Planned fee Planned fee
2009/10 2008/09
Financial statements, including WGA £340,000 £327,200
Use of resources/ VFM conclusion, including data quality | £165,000 £143,920
Total audit fee £505,000 £471,120
Certification of claims and returns TBC (Dec. 09) | £100,000

Chartered Accountants

Member firm within Grant Thornton Intemational Lid

Grant Thornton UK LLP s a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registerad office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Strest, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP
Alist of members is available from our registered office.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business.



Page 29

In setting the fee at this level, we have assumed that the general level of risk in relation to the
audit of the financial statements is not significantly different from that identified to 2008/09.
A separate plan for the audit of the financial statements will be issued in December 2009.
This will detail the risks identified, planned audit procedures and any changes in fee.

The audit fee is based on the assumption that detailed working papers, and other specified
informaton, are provided to an agreed timetable. Where the Council does not meet agreed
timetables and/or provide poor documentation such that additional audit work is necessary,
or the audit is delayed, we reserve the right to charge additional fees to cover the costs
incurred.

The Council must prepate its annual accounts under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), from 2010/11. Eatly preparation is essential and there is a risk that the
Council may not be adequately prepared for the transition.

Using our IFRS experts, we will continue to help the Council to prepare for introduction of
IFRS, through awatreness raising sessions for officers and members and constructive
challenge on the Council's plans and progress. This is included within the financial statements
audit fee.

Specialist colleagues from Grant Thornton's Financial Reporting Advisory Group, can also be
commissioned for more detailed technical support, should the Council require it.

Our use of resources assessments will be based upon the evidence from three themes:

¢ Managing finances
¢ Governing the business
e Managing resources.

The key lines of enquiry specified for the assessment are set out in the Audit Commission’s
work programme and scales of fees 2009 /10. Our work on use of resources informs our
2009/10 value for money conclusion. However, we have identified a number of risks in
relation to the value for money conclusion. For each risk, we consider the arrangements put
in place by the Council to mitigate the risk, and plan our work accordingly. Our initial risk
assessment for value for money audit work is shown in the table overleaf:




Page 30

The Council has recently received a
consultants report on its treasury
management arrangements, which
highlights some areas for improvement.

Risk Planned work Timing
Well publicised inspection activity at the | We are allocating the Council a February -
Council during the year identified a risk assessment of "high" for data | August
number of issues for the Council to deal | quality, which means that we will 2009
with. carry out an extended programme
Some of the risks identified are in the of indicator tgsting to support our
. VFM conclusion.

areas covered by our Code of Practice
responsibilities, most notably, data Fees in respect of data quality October -
quality and working effectively in work already completed are December
partnership. included in this fee estimate. 2009

We plan to carry out a review of

how effectively the Council works

with its strategic partners to

manage performance and deliver

better outcomes for Haringey

residents. This review will be

jointly funded from the 2009-10

plans of the Council and PCT, and

will be used to support our VFM

conclusions for 2009/10.
This time next year, we will review and We will carry out an early review July -
score the Council's arrangements for of the Council's workforce September
managing its workforce, as part of the management arrangements and 2009
2010 use of resources assessment. provide timely feedback on any

. areas where the Council is not

The assessment covers arrangements in ino as well as it should be
place for 2009/10 and there is a risk that progressing )
the Council's arrangements may not be This work will help the Council to
sufficiently developed to perform well. improve its arrangements and will

provide evidence to support our

2009/10 VFM conclusion.
The Council has £37m of deposits with | We will follow up on the Council's | October -
Icelandic banks, which are at risk. progress in implementing the December

required improvements. 2009

The quoted fee for grant certification work is an estimate only and will be charged at

published hourly rates.

Our fees exclude any additional work requested by you that we may agree to undertake. Each
piece of work will be separately negotiated and a detailed project specification agreed with

you.




Page 31

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2008/09, the audit planning process for 2009/10,
including the risk assessment, will continue as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed
and updated as necessary. If we need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee
during the course of the audit, we will first discuss this with you and then prepare a report
outlining the reasons why the fee needs to change for discussion with the Audit Committee.

The audit fee will be billed in quarterly instalments from June 2009.

We will issue a number of reports relating to our work over the course of the audit. These are
listed at Appendix 1.

The key members of the audit team for 2009/10 are:

Engagement Lead - Paul Dossett 020 7728 3180 / paul.dossett@gtuk.com
Audit Manager — Paul Hughes 020 7728 2256 / paul hughes@gtuk.com
Petformance Manager — Martin Ellender 07798 844712 / martin.ellender@gtuk.com
Audit Executive — Caroline Glitre 020 7728 2078 / caroline.glitre@gtuk.com

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact the
engagement lead in the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact the Head of
Government Audit at Grant Thornton UK LLP, Richard Tremeer on
richard.tremeer@gtuk.com.

Yours sincerely

Grant Thornton UK LLP




Page 32

A Planned Outputs

Do

Our reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being issued to

the Audit Committee.

Planned output

Indicative date

Audit plan December 2009
Audit strategy document June 2010
Annual governance report September 2010
Auditor's report giving the opinion on the financial | September 2010
statements and value for money conclusion

Use of resources report September 2010
Annual audit letter November 2010

Any other specific outputs will be agreed with officers and communicated to the Audit

Committee.




Page 33

London Borough of Haringey

itemization of change in audit fee vear on vear

Audit area Planned fee | Planned fee
2009/10 2008/09
Financial statements, including WGA £340,000* £327,200
Use of resources/VFM conclusion, including data quality | £165,000# £143,920
Total audit fee £505,000 £471,120

* Accounts fee increase is made up of £3,250 inflationary increase (at 1%) and £9,550 eatly

IFRS work = £12,800

# Use of resources increase is made up of £1,450 inflationary increase (at 1%) and £19,630
additional DQ work required under the revised Audit Commission regime and the Council's
high risk rating in this area =£21,080. The recently undertaken data quality review, which

took 30 days, was largely funded from the increase in fee.

The remaining use of resources risk identified in the letter, including partnerships, treasury
management and workforce, are to be managed as part of the recurrent audit fee.




Page 34

QA audit.
w7 COMMISSion

Reference 20090407. Fee letters. | O Donovan
7 April 2009

Dr Ita O'Donovan Direct line 0844 798 2320

Chief Executive

London Borough of Haringey Email j-barry-purssell@audit-
Civic Centre commission.gov.uk
High Road

Wood Green

N22 8LE

Dear lta

Annual inspection fee 2009/10

Further to our discussions, | am writing to confirm the assessment and inspection work that we
propose to undertake for the 2009/10 financial year at Haringey Council. The inspection fee:

¢ is based on the risk-based approach to inspection planning as set out in the
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) framework and associated guidance; and

e reflects only the Audit Commission’s inspection work, excluding any audit fees. Your
appointed auditor will be writing to you separately on fees for audit work.

CAA will deliver a more proportionate and risk based approach to inspection, targeting only high
risk services and outcomes for inspection where alternative improvement activity is not
appropriate. The inspection plan will be reviewed and updated as necessary.

The total indicative fee for inspection for 2009/10 is £19,956.00 and is shown in the table below.
The inspection fee has been set in accordance with the Audit Commission‘s work programme
and scales of fees 2009/10.

Assessment and inspection work plan and fee

Assessment / ihSpecfion aCtivity o - Planned fee for 2009/10

Area assessment of local partnership | | n/a (CLG grankt'fuynded)
Managing perfbfmance theme of organi‘sationakly assessment - £19,956.00
" Total inspection fee - | o £19,956.00

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London, SW1P 4HQ
T 0844 798 1212 F 0844 798 6187 www.audit-commission.gov.uk



Page 35

If I need to make any significant amendments to the inspection plan and fee during the course
of the year, | will first discuss this with you and then confirm in writing outlining the reasons for
the change, including the proposed scope for the work.

The above fee excludes any work you requested and the Commission has agreed to undertake
using its advice and assistance powers.

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact me in the first instance.

Yours sincerely,

Jackie Barry-Purssell
Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead

cc Director of Finance - Mr Gerald Almeroth



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda Iltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o) _]

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report Title: Internal Audit Annual Plan and Strategy 2009/10

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the proposed Annual Internal Audit
Plan for 2009/10.

1.2 The report also advises Members of the internal audit strategy.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee approves the Annual Internal Audit Plan and the internal
audit strategy for 2009/10.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4 1 The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual internal




Page 38

audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, a draft audit
plan is provided for review and approval by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
planned programme of work for 2009/10.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within Audit & Risk
Management and from records held by business units across the Council.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no specific legal issues arising out of the report or the proposed
recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has been consulted on this report and has no additional
comments to make.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors and Directors in the production of the draft internal audit plan.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 39

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche to undertake the annual audit plan is part of the
five year contract which was awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in
compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix A — Draft internal audit plan 2009/10

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1Local authorities are required by law to maintain an internal audit function. In addition,
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 reinforce the
statutory requirement and re-state the need for the Council to maintain an adequate
and effective system of internal audit.

15.2Within Haringey, the Internal Audit function is comprised of Deloitte and Touche, who
undertake the majority of the internal audit work in accordance with the contract in
place, including IT and procurement audit. The in-house team is currently responsible
for investigations into allegations of financial irregularity, provision of advice on risk and
controls and grant certification work.

15.3Appendix A contains the proposed annual audit plan for 2009/10, which is fully risk
based and has been derived following consideration of the risk and materiality
(financial and other), of services and systems of the Council, the risk registers in place
and the 2009/10 business plans. This approach reflects current best practice
requirements for internal audit and ensures that, over the life of the contract, the
Council’'s key and higher risk systems and services will be appropriately reviewed
according to risk. This approach also ensures that the council operates a fully
integrated internal audit and risk management process.

15.4Appendix A also includes the audit strategy which will be used to deliver the council's
internal audit plan. As part of the contract with Deloitte and Touche, it is considered
appropriate to keep members advised of the strategy and the way in which the service
will be delivered and request their approval of it. The strategy has been drafted in line
with the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice and best practice guidance for public sector
audit services.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 40

15.5The internal audit strategy has been updated as a result of ongoing work to develop
the risk based audit programme. Paragraph 2.2.2 of the internal audit strategy
highlights the proposed development in relation to key financial systems which has
been discussed and agreed with the relevant directors, service managers and external
audit. This approach will provide an additional source of assurance to internal and
external auditors and the Audit Committee. The self assessment will be designed to
complement the audit process and will provide further information to auditors to assist
them in assessing the risks within the system, focusing controls testing and providing
an audit opinion on the overall system.

16. The Annual Audit Plan 2009/10

16.1The proposed annual internal audit plan for 2009/10 is attached as Appendix A to this
report. It gives details of the planned audit work on the key financial and other systems
of the Council. Appendix A summarises the work which will be undertaken at a
corporate level, e.g. pro-active anti-fraud, risk management, and project management
and also provides details of the work proposed for individual directorates.

16.2We have included brief details of the planned scope for each project, although the
detailed scope will be agreed with the client for the work at the planning stage of the
audit. Timings for the projects have also been agreed with the nominated clients to take
account of any cyclical or other work pressures, although these may be subject to
change during the course of the year.

16.3The proposed projects have been discussed with directors and their management
teams and will be subject to further discussions with the nominated client for each audit
as part of the detailed planning process. All completed projects are subject to a formal
follow up review process and the results of the follow up reviews will continue to be
reported for information to the Audit Committee, on a quarterly basis.

16.4We will continue to work with the Council's external auditors, Grant Thornton, to
ensure that audit coverage is maximised and duplication is avoided wherever possible
in order to make the best use of our combined resources. A planned programme of
meetings will take place during 2009/10 to ensure that use of audit resources is
effective.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 41

16.5Table 1 below summarises the numbers of audit projects planned for 2009/10, by
directorate:

Table 1
Projects

Directorate
Corporate council-wide audits 4
Chief Executive — People and Organisational Development 2
Chief Executive — Policy, Performance, Partnerships, and 5
Communication ‘
Children and Young People’s Service (excluding schools) 4
Urban Environment 6
Adults, Culture and Community Services 5
Corporate Resources (including key financial systems) 16
Corporate Resources — IT audit 7
Corporate Resources — Procurement and contract audit 6
Total 55

16.6Included in the above table (within Corporate Resources) are audits of key financial
systems. We consider key systems to be those which are essential to the successful
management of the Council, and where failure of the system would have a material
effect on the organisation. These key systems, including payroll, accounts payable,
accounts receivable, council tax, housing benefits etc. are therefore subject to regular
review. This programme of work, including the proposed revisions described at 15.5
above, has been agreed with both the managers responsible and the council’'s externai
auditors.

16.7The number of projects listed in the table above excludes the follow up reviews and
visits to individual establishments as part of the schools and social services
programmes.

16.8We will continue to provide support to key projects, including advice to project boards
at key stages of the scheme where appropriate, as well as undertaking reviews of
individual projects to ensure that the project is complying with the required framework,
and financial, reporting and other functions are being managed appropriately.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 42

Gg Jo | ebeyd 60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bEI8A0D HPNY [Buisiu] Asbulier yeiq

"Sa.n|ie} |011U0D Jo} ejgisuodsal Buleq sloypne jeussiul Jo uonsenb
OU 8Q UED 8J8y} 8Je) [BUOISSBO0Id 8N UO SPJEPUBLS SU} YIM 9OUBPIODDE Ul P81onpuoo Ajqesisuowsp Si MIOM Jpne [eulajul Se
Buoj se pue soueuien0b pue |013U0D sl Jo} AljigIsuodsal s 891WIWOD IPNY 8y} spesiadns J0U S8op uoluido ypny jeuleu] ayj

"$S9008 JIpne Jo adoos By} Se Yyons sio1oe) AQ pauIBISuod
eq Aew uoluido ypne ey jo odoos ey} sopoesd ul ey Slou 0} Jueuodwl SI }| "S|CE|IBAR 80USPIA® By} JO uopejodelixe ue
uoniuep Aq si pue SInjosge 8q JoAS UED 80UBINSSE JO UolUIdO OU Jey] asuss sy} Ul 8jqeuosesl 8q Ajuo ‘Jeremoy ‘ued uojuido ey

"sess900.d Buipodel [enuue Aloiniess Jiayy jo ed se uo podal 0y spesu

SSRILILLIOD UPNY 8Y3 YdIym 80ueINSSE JO YIomawel) 8y} Jo Juswsle Aey e sI upne [eussiul Aq usalb uojuido sy "eoueusanob pue
|ou0d ‘Juswebeuew ysu UO 88IIWIWOY WPNY 8y} 0} uoluido aA98[qo pue juspuadepul ue epiroid 0y sI Jpne feusajul Jo 8joJ 8y
salliqisuodsay pue ssjoy  Z'L

"sio)pne [eulsixe s ,AebulieH 1o} SSWOH pue S, |Iounod 8y} Y1oq Yum uonesado-00 Pue UOSIEl| 9AII08)S 9insug e
pue sjuswalinbai Aioiniess Jueasies sjesll Yolym aoIAIes IpNe Ue JeAljep 0} paiinbel s80inosal upne ayl Ajjusp| e
oM Jpne sy} woly Buisue suolepuswiwodal
Uum juswebeuew Buipinoid Ag eoueusenob pue [0U0O ‘JusWwEBEUBW MSU S10UNOD 8yl 0] SiusWBACIAW Ajnuep| e
‘SYSLl pue saAoelqo s,uonesiuebio
ay3 o} Awioud oAb yoym ‘suerd ypne fenuue ybnoayy suswebuelie aouewIBA0B pue |0U0o ‘quaweBeUBW MSU By} PNy e
'sjuswebuelie aouewISA0B pUE |013U0D ‘JUBLISBRUBL YSU S IIOUNOD 8y} UO UOjUIdO UB YIM 881IWILLIOD) HPNY Yl OPINOI] e
103 SN 8|qeUS [lIM YydIym pamoljo} 8q o} ABojopoyiew pue yoeoidde sy suljep 01 si ABajesis Hpne [eulsiul yeap ayy jo esodind ay|
ABereng upny |eusaiu] ey} jo esodind ||

uoilonposiuj |

‘fenoidde [ewo} 4o} @91IWILIOYD HPNY 8y} 01 pauiodal aie ABsjess Jipne [eusiu; oy} 03 sebueyo Jueslubls
Aue pue syonoj pue spIoleQ YNM JOBIIUOD 8y} Jo) pasn si yoeoidde sy yeyy pesodoud s Y 2002 udy ul Juswiuiodde-ai sioyy
90uls ayono| pue spioRQ Agq peiejdwiod Yiom sy} uo spiing 3 ‘Jercidde [eulio) o) 890D HPNY 8y} 0] pajussaid pue mojeq
Ino 195 s| AGejesis ay] ueld ypne fenuue 01/600¢ SUi 4O WOJ) 8y} Je papnjoul st ued ypne sy} Jo AlsAllep oy ABejeils s j1ounod sy

‘lenosdde jeuyy Jo} s81ILLIWOND
upny ayi 03} papiwgns s ueld ay) pue wes} juswsbeuew Jlsyl pue sio}oaig Yum pesiBe pue pessnosip useq oABY SHpne
pasodoid ey] ueld peseq s pajesbeiul Ajiny B epiroid o} sueld sseuisng pue sielsiBal ysU JuUN sseuisng pue jeluswpedsp
‘9}e40dJI00 By} UOIIBISPISUOD OJUI 8.} PUB O1/6002 Ul |1ounoo syl Buloey sysu fenusiod ayi uo peseq aJe ueid sy} ulyum pasodold
supne 8yl "01/600¢ Buunp palejdwod eg o3 sypne [eulsiul AsbuueH Joj ueld Hpne [euJsiul [BNUUE 8} 1IN0 S}8S JUSWNOOP SIYL

01/600¢ ABeieng pue ue|d Hpny [eusaiu] Yyeiq — AsbuieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-



Page 43

G¢ Jo g abed 60-£0-1L€ 01/6002 8beiano) ypny [euisiul AsbulieH yeid

‘learoidde [ewnioy Jo) seRIWWOD UPNY 8yl 0} pepirocid eq [im ueld
upne ay} 0} sebueyo jueoyiubls Auy “Jesh ey Buunp swes) juswsbeuew Ji8y} pue S10108JI YUM SUOISSNISIp Buimo)o) papuse
Joyuny eq Aew ebeisnoo pesodosd sy) -uonesiuebio ayi Jo abpsimouy JnNo pue [;ouno) AeBuuelH o) om siesk snoinaid
Jno Jo synsaJ 8yl Yum Jayiebol ‘| L'z 1 suoljeiepisuod syl uo peseq ueld yeip e paledaid eney em uiod S|yl 1y J1ounon ayy
UIYHM s1901140 Aoy yim }nsuod |im em ued jeuonjelsdo [enuue pesodoid pue ABsjeJis ypne jeussiul ano atedeid o1 sh sjgeus o

uonewJoyu; jo Buueylen g1z

‘pauueld
s| abeJsonoo ejeudoidde jeyy eunsus djsy O} 88IIWIWIOD UPNY SUI YIM paiinbai aoueinsse sy}l SSNOSIP [|IM JPNE [BUIOIU| e
pue ‘soe|d ul 1nd ussq sey sseoo.d
8Ul Jale UBy} [BOILLIOUODS oW SI JuswdoeAsp Buunp SosSsauyeam JO UOJI09.LI00 PUB UOIIBDIIIUSP! 8yl pue ‘sessaeooid
umouy pue paysiiqeiss ueyy Axsu alow Ajjusssyul 8q ued sesseooud Buibueyd “rouno) sy uiyim soeid exey o1 pauueid
Jo aoe|d Buiyel sbueys Jo jusixe Syl 03 USAID 8 [IIM UOIIBISPISUOD ‘9ouBUION0D pue [0Ju0D “Ysu Bunsixe O} uonippe U] e
:Buisiie jou aJe s1oedWI 8SISAPE 1BY) 9oUBINSSE UIED 0} ‘uonusle alinbal |ji1s AeY SE pauljsp 10U SYSIY e
‘uojuido
8y} Jo ssausAisusyaidwiod sy} 01 ppe 0} 8bBIsA0D S eshk yoes ul pepnioul 8q |Iim SysH Aey-uou jo ebues sjeudoidde uy e
-eak Aiens peypne AjeonewsisAs pue Ajjnj g Jou pasu s8ss9004d pue SWalsAs yons ‘Jenamop ‘paiinbas soueinsse
8U} JeAliep 01 siseq Jenbel B UO pelpne 8q O} Paau [IM ‘Iouno) 8y} AQ paiiluap! se ‘sesse00id JO SwelsAs Ysu-ybiH e
“S8AI109[q0 pue Sswie S} JO JusWaAsIyde 8y} 0} A8y,
se paiuapl sey ‘sio)ipne [BUISIXS S PUB |Iounod syl Yoiym sysu Jo sbuel sjoym sy} ssedwioous [jim obeISn0D ||eisn0 S| e
;IouNoD 8yl SSOJOk JUN Ssauisng Yoes Joj sue|d sssuisng e
'sue1s16J ¥su pue sessao0.d Juswabeuew s S, [IoUN0D 8y e
:BuIMO||0} BU] JO JUNODDOE UBYE] SABY M
ebeian00 Hpne [eusslul syl Buiuiuelep Ul INg ‘Jesk AisAs aoueUISAOD puB |0J3U0D “YSl Jo Joadse Aleas ypne o} Aiessadsu jou S
abesanon upny jeulsiu) BulApyuep] 1L

mmm‘_m>00 Hpny jeusaiu] 1°¢

aouelInssy pue yoeoiddy ‘ebeionon upny jeussiul 2

01/6002 Abajesg pue ueld 1pny jeusdiu] yeaq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuot



G¢ Jo ¢ ebed 60-€0-LE 01/600¢ 8beIoA0D Npny [eussiul AebulieH yeid

"J0JJ® JO sasneo Jo Jaquinu abie| e BuISAOD IO ‘JoLID
Jejnoiped e jusAsid O} [BUA SB Paljiluspl 8SOU) 8B S|o1uod Asy "eoijoeid Ul uonelado sAloays
Jlay} ssesse 0} ‘siseq ajdwes e uo Ajjewiou ‘sjoJuod A8y UO N0 paLed si Builse} SSausAIDal]
"WelsAs / BaJe oy} JO sanlloelgo pue swie
9} JO JUBLIBABIYDE 8U] Ul XSU JO [9AS] 8U] JO} JUSIOIYNS SJ. S|0JIU0D 8y} Jayloym Buissessy e
pue {wajsAs/eale ayy JO SaA08[qo
puUB swie 8y} JO JusWBAsIyoe 8y} Bunusasid sesned ajqissod sy} pue sysi oy} Buiuluoy) e
:8AJOAUI AjleULIOU [|IM SJ0JIUOD [euldlul JO Aoenbape ey} Bultenjea]
"S|0J1UOD [euJS]UI BY] JO SSBUSBAIIOSYE pue Aoenbape oy} Yyjoqg aujwiaiep O} Jpne uy :UOIBOILIDA
“SMOJ|0} SE sI upne Jo 8dA} yoes Jo uoulep sy
Hpne jo yidaQ
ISMOJ|0} sk sajousnbai) pue syidep snouea o} pauue|d ale sjuswiubisse ay |
buiuueld uaswubissy ¢2'2

"Wie)sAs |jesono ey} uo uojuido ypne ue Buipiroid pue Buiss) Sjo4uo0d

Buisnooy ‘weisAs sy} uiyym sysu oy} Buissesse Ul Way) ISISSE 0} SI0}PNE 0} UOIFeUIOUl Jayuny epiaoid [iim pue ssaoo.ud ypne ay;
Jusws|dWwod 0} paubisep 89 [|IM JUBLUISSSSSE f[8s 8y SISB( [BNUUE UB UO WISAS Uyoese Jo} S|0J3U0D A8y ayi 18] 01 pauueld [jis SI I
SEB 89]IWWO) PNy 8y} pue SIO)pne [BUId}xd pue [Buisiul O} ©OURINSSE JO 82IN0S [BUOIIPPE U 8piAcId [IIM SIY] “SWelsAs [eloueul
Aoy Jo} ajqisuodsal siebeuewl 80U} J0) JUSLUSSSSSE J[8S XSl Pojoliuod jo swwesboid e dojeasp o3 pesodoud s1 11 ‘01/6002 Buung

Page 44

"siseq [e21]0A0 e uo pele|dwoo aie smalral yidep-ul pue siseq [enuuUe UE UO Pase] ale S|0Juod Aoy ay)

ey} sainsus yoiym soejd ui sixiom jo swuwesboud pauueld e ‘Ynsai B Sy "swiaisAs Xe} |Iounod pue Buisnoy ‘e|qeAlosal sJunodoe
‘o|qeded sjunoooe ‘jojuoo Arejebpng pue juswsbeuew [eroueuly d1bsies ‘(josAed apnjour pue jiej 01 alom Asyl i [1I9UNOD B}

uo joeduwl [epSlBW B 8ABY PINOM YOIYM 8SOY} 8B SwsisAs [eroueuly Ay oy * swaisAs [eloueul Aoy, SB IPNE [BUISIXS PUE [BUIS}UI
Aq paiiuspl ussq sAey pue saAoelqo [euonelsdo sy Buisiyoe 0] Juepodwi ale Yoiym sweisAs Jo Jequinu e Sey [1Iounos) ay |
SwolsAg [eloueuld Aoy zZ'22

"IyBL UMO JIsY} Ul pamaiAsl 8q 0} ueld Hpne sy} ul papnjoul 8q Aew sasss004d pue seinpasoid
8say} ‘sesed swos Ul “uejd ypne jenuue Yyelp syl Buonpold usym paspISUOD aJe seale 8seyy JO ||V sieisiBal ysu 81el0diod
pue [ejuswpedsp ‘yun sseuisng Jo juswdoeAsp 8yl pue Yomawel) juswebeuew josfoid ‘sueid sseuisng [euly pue Bujuueld
ssauisng Buipnjour sessaooid ajelodioo Aey ey Jo uped se pspnjoul si uswabeuew ysiY “ABeleiig pue Aoljod juswebeuepy
dsid s1ounod ayi seaoidde espiwiwio) HpNny 8yl pue juswebeuew ysu o1 yoeoidde psaysigeise [[em B SBY [10UNOD Oy

}lomawel Juswabeuey ysiy L2

@oueInssy pue yoeouddy upny jeussiu]  2'¢

01/600¢ ABajesnis pue ueld Hpny jeusdiu| yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Ge Jo v obed 60-€0-LE 01/600Z 86BI9A0D 1PNy [euseiul AbulieH yeid

pue :(swee} uonoadsul JO MaIABI JBYI0 JO
YIOM 8y} ‘SMaIASI YSHO Pauswnoop ‘sesseooid Buitiodey diyspiemers “6-e) eoeid Ul aJe sesseooud 8oUBINSSE JaY10 JeUM  ©
:Buimoloy ey Jepisuoo
M am ypne yoee jo ped sy 'S|j0Jjuod Jo/pue sysu Buibeuew Joy sjqisuodses sieolo syl seniuepl sessasoid juswebeuew
%SH §,]1ounod 8y "way} Inoge soueinsse uieb o} JspJo Ul Ajjossip sesseooid Hpne 01 Ipne [eulaiul Joy AIesseosu sAemie Jou S| |
SIOPINOId 9OUBINSSY JBYIO U0 doueldy 2'¢

‘AobulieH 4o} SBWOH JO/PUE [10UNOYD Y1 JO SAIINDSXT JBIYD U} ‘0} JOHEW By} J8§eJ IO ‘YIM JNSUOD [jIM oM ‘sioNpny [euiaixy eyl
UM JO1}ju0D jo aseo Aue u| -ejeudoidde aieym yiom Ino uo Ajpa o1 Ajunpioddo sy siopny [BUISIXT Y] Joyo im am ‘Jejnoiued uj

"MJIOM JiPNe JO 1oNpuod sy} ul uonelado-o9 Joj saiyunpoddo yeeg
pue ABojoulwiel pue spoyaw ‘senbiuyds) ypne jo Buipueisiopun UOWWOd SSNIsI(
:1S8J9)UI [enINW JO SJ8)eW SSNasI(]
‘sue|d Ipne ayj uo }NSU0) e
:0} suonesiueblio
U10g 4o} siolpny [ewsIxg ayl yum Aeinbal 1oaw O3 388s [|IM oM sloupny [eulaiu] s, AeBulieH Jo) SBWOH PUe 1I9UNoY) 8y} Sy
sloypny [euselx3 ayl yum diysuonepy  L'g

S19PINOId 90URINSSY JOYJO0 PUB SIoYpPNY [eulaixy yum diysuoneey €

Page 45

"apeW 9 [|IM HJOoM
8y} }onpuod 0} paiinbal aq M Yyoiym ‘SAep Je1S JO Jaquinu sy JO 91eWIISe UB ‘Paljiuspl YI0M IPNE [euiaul Jo Juswele yoes o4

AjuQ 1senbay Ag uoneplieA pue dn mojo4 MO
Sl JO SISeq 8y} Uo pa}osjes uolepiieA pue dn mojjo4 wnipsin
[enuuy uoleolIsA pue dn mojjo4 ubIH
}pne jo Aouanbaiy uyideq aoueoubig Auoud
:SMOJ|0}

se &g [|im Aousnbaeuy pue yidep psuueld sy pue AsbulieH Joj sawoH 0} eouedyiubis sy uo Buipuadep pasioud aq [lIM upne yoeg
ypne jJo Aouanbaiq

"AjeAilosye pajusie|dwil Useq SABY SUOITBPUSILLIODAS Jpne Snolraid Jey}l UlBLISOSE 0] Ipne uy :dn mojjo4
"S8|JIAIJ0B 8oueINSSe pue ueid uonoe ‘AbBalelss [0Jiu00 alelidoidde
Ue sey pue juensial ‘S|qISUSS S| MSU PaIUSWINDOOP 8Ul J SUIWISIBP PINOM SIU] IO paLued
ag |IM Hpne [eA8|-ubly B ‘Sysu pue seaJe Juedlubls SS8| JOoj ‘UOIIBOILISA O} SAIJBUISYE UB SY :uolnepiie

01/600¢ ABsjeng pue ue|d Hpny [eusau] Yyeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Page 46

Gg Jo G ebed 60-£0-1€ 0L/6002 8be1ono) upny [eussiul AebuleH yeiq

‘e1edoidde sisym Miom dn mojjoy upne jo Buiwir] e
pue uolejuswaidwi Jo} seulpesp
pealbe pue Ajjiqisuodsal ‘esuodsel juswaebeuew yum Jeyleboy sreuones e Ag peuoddns suonepusWIWOds) pajieleg e
‘Buisiie sanssi Asy Bunybiybiy pue suoisniouod |ie Buisuewwns ‘Upne ay} Jo 1Xa1uod sy} Buiureidxe AJewwns aAINoaxs uy e
epnjoul lim siyl "yewloy pealbe syl ul peonpoid aq Ajlewiou [jim spodey

"podau yelp sy} 0} asuodsal s uswebeuew
jo 1dieoal sy} jo syeem omy ulyum pansst Buleq suodes feuy yum Buresw siy} Jo syeem 8aayl Uiypm paonpoid oq M suodes
Ipne yeiq ‘Bunesw uxe ue uj Jebeuew s01AI9S 8y} 03 sBUIpUIL 8Y} UO %0BAPaS) apIA0id [[IM JOLPNE 8y} ‘Yiompial) 8y Jo uoneidwod
Buimojjo4 "esse suo ui esue sbuipuiy Jofew ji sidwexs Joj Jebeuely JPNY PUB JOJ0BIIP 9OIAISS JUBASISS BU} UYUM juswiosibe
Aq pauen g Aew podai Jo siA1s ay) ‘supne juswysiigelss Buipnjoul ‘Ueid JpNe [enuUB U] UIYIM PaUIBIUOD 1oeloud ypne yoes
Jo} peonpoud 8q ||im spodes Jpne [ewlo4 'SI00alp 90IAISS |[e 0} papiroid usaq SeY Siy} pue siebBeuew 991AI8S SY) PUE JOypNe
9Ul Yioq jo salnljigisuodsal ey} pue Jpne yoeo jo sebels Aey 8y} 1no sies yoiym ‘jooojoid Buipodss ypne pesibe ue aney o\

spodey Hpny L°gv
Buipodey 2y

"Builesw yxs sy} Joj ayep psuueld pue sAep

196pnqg psuueld ‘seamainieiul JO sinpayos psuueld ‘yoeoidde pue adoos ypne ‘SeAi08[qo BaJR Y} SPNIOUI [IIM 99USIS)SS JO SULID L
"JIPNE Sy} JO JUSWSOUSWILLIOD BU} 91040q SHoOM 98Iy} 1ses| Je aoe|d axel [IM SIY] "IIPN. JUBAS|S] U} JO} 80UBI8)8. JO SWIS] pajie1ap
oy} eaJbe o} siebeuew jueasiel syl yim pebuelte eq im sbulesw Buuueld ‘ueld ypne jeulsiul fenuue ay) jo feaoidde Buimojo
UONEDIHION pue SHpNy jo Bujwiy |y

S|020)101d Buipoday b

"SWes] MSIAS) Jaylo yim Bupiom Julopr =
pue sBuipuiy jo Ayjigerjal abneb o1 suoioun) 9ouUBINSSE JO YoM olioads sy} siseq sidwes e uo Bullpny =
's8ss900.d 8oUBINSSE JOY10 JO SHpne aoueinsse Ayjenb oljioedg  «
aAj0AUL Aew siy) “(usxe) Apeadje suoijoe sjeada.
UOIUM MJOM JipNne JO JONPUOD INOYYM) S8OUBINSSE |[BJISAO 8Y] 01 9iNQLIUOD UBD S8SS8004d 90UBINSSE 8S8Y) JO YIOM SU} MOY
JOpISUOD Ued JIpNY [BUIBlU| Jeyl JepJo Ul ‘painsse Ajijenb pue peypne aq SeA[9SWaY} UBD $8ss8001d 858U} Yoiym Ut kem ay| e

01/600¢ ABajes1g pue ue|d Hpny [euwssiu| Yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Page 47

Ge Jo g 8bed 60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bEI0A0D PNy [BUIBIU] ASBULieH Yeid

"pojusWLidWl 10U SUOIEPUSWILLODSI JO Seale Juediubls uo Alejusiiod pue ‘epeuw
suoljepuswiwooal Jofew jo Arewiwns ‘ueid ypne jsuiebe ebelonod ypne Jo sjielop Buipniour pue ‘epircid 0] 9|ge 818 M soUBINSSE
lleJono ey} Jo juswelels peaibe ue pue uoluido enuue uno Buireiodioour paonpoid 8q OS[e [IIM SSIIWWIOD UPNY S [IOUNoD
sy} 0} Hodey [enuuy Uy ‘isenbal uodn suodes Jpne Jno o seidod N} Yyum papiroid 8g OS[e [|IM 8810 dY} JO SIaqIB|y

"spodal Jipne [eussiul Jsijies Ul paaibe suolloe eyl jiln} 0} Juswabeuew sy Ag seunjiey Aue Jnoge ajou vy
pue Isiojipne [eulaiul Y] O} UIBOUOD JO ale Yolym sesuodsai Juswebeuew Aue 1noge ajou vy
-suoljepuswiuiodal || Jo s|ie1ep [in4
-AioBeres Ajioud yoes uj suorepUSLILLIODS. JO JOqUINN
‘90URINSSE JO |9A8] 8Y} INOGE UOISN|OUOD |[BIOAQ
-Upne 8y} Jo seAsfqO e
190uUBINSSE  Pajiwl], POAIBDSI YOIym sHipne [eussiul paisjdwiod syl Jo yoes Joj sjielsp Buimoljo} ey snid “spom pelejdwiod
jo Alewwns e spnjoul |im pue ‘siseq Agepenb e U0 88IIWIWIOD UPNY S,IOUNOD 8y} 0} pejussaid aq |im podas sseiboid v
spodey aajwiwo) Upny g'g'y

® & & o o

"asnqe Jo Joue uediubis o} uado walsAs ayy Buines| eem Ajjeseusb si j041U00 :00UBINSSY ON
“MSuU
1e SsoA09[qo welsAs ay} Ind 0} Se YoNns aJe S|0JIUO0D JO WBISAS BY) Ul SBSSeUNEaM :e0uBINSSY polWI]

S Je SaA109[qo welsAs ayy
JO swos 1nd Yolym sessaupesm ale 8oyl INg ‘WelsAS punos Ajjeoiseq B s 8Jey]  '@ouBINSSY [BluBISqnS
"S8A1109[qo WielsAs syl aAsiyoe 0} paubisep |0J1U0D JO We)SAS punos e s| alsy) :80UBINSSY [N
:suodaus ypne ul pasn aq |jiim uoiuido Jo s|eAs| Buimo|jo) sy |

‘soofjoeld Buppom poob ‘passalppe oq 0] sanssi

ssauisng Jaylo walsAs juswebeuew SSauISng ayl UM S8OUBLLIOJUOD-UOU JOUI £ AioLd
"suolrejnfba.l yIm aoUBLIOJUOD-UOU (UOIIONPaU 10 UOITBDIHIUSPI

)SuU ejenbapeul ‘ease jusweAoidwl passaippe 8q O} senss! ssaulsng juepodu] :2 Aold
‘spJepuels
peideooe pue suoljeinBes yim SOUBULIONOD-UOU [BIIUBISONS ‘S|OJJUOD SSauIsng

A&y ur sesssuyesm ‘passeippe Ajpienbepe Buleq jou MsH ssauIsSng [BOILD 1 Auoud

'SMOJ|O} SB PaSSesSe a4 [[IM UOIUm HpNe sy woly sbuipuly sy uo paseq
89 [lIm uoluIdo SIYL "SU IO BaJB 8|qelpnE 8U} JSAOC PasIDIoXd |0JUOD JO [9A8] 8} uo uoluido [jeleno ue spiroid (iim spodal Jpny

01/600¢ ABeiens pue ue|d 1pny [ewaiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Ge jo / ebed 60-£0-LE 01/600¢ 8bBI8AOD HPNY [BUIBIU| ASbuLeH YEI]

‘sjebeueW JuslO AQ 90IAMI8S B} JO UOIIBNBAT e

pue ‘saijseinbau [eroueuly ojul suolrebiseAul 819jdwoo 01 usye] swil Jo Yibus] e

‘uejd Upne [euJBlul BY] JO JUBWIBABIYDY
1991AI8S 1PNY [BUISIU| 8Y} 10} 98RO ¥PNY 8ui 01 papircid Ajjusiind
ale Yolym siojeodipul souewIopad 8y Mojeq |lBlep 9\ "UOHOUN) JpNne [eussiul s uoliesiueBlo sy} JO SSBUSBAI08YS oY) MOIASI PUE
Joyuow pjNoys 881iWWo) IPNY S,JIounod ayi (9) Z'eg uonoes ‘bodey yuws pue apo) pauiquwio) paysiand sy 01 spsebal Yl

SloJeoIpu| @oueuwloped LG

"Allfenb Joj sjqisuodsal sjenpiAipul pajeUILLON
pue seinpeooid ypne Alend
seunpaoolid aseod Jeswoisny
SpJepuels |euoISS8}0.id
:sainpaooud sjureidwon
‘uoneluswnoop pue yoeoidde pejeleq
‘seunpaooid Ayeny) e
‘saunjes) buimoyjoy
8} sepnjoul pue uoisiAocid 8o1AI8S JNO JO sjoedse [je SIsA0D Uolym ‘fenuely Alfenp usiium psjielsp e psonpoid osje aAey Sp\

e & ¢ o o o

Page 48

", Aisnpuj o1 piy, uoisiAip Bujuiesy ypne jeulsiul isiferosds Jno Aq UsAIB S8SIN0D
paJojie; Ajjetosds pue Buiutes) gof-eyi-uo Jo ynsas B se sanbiuyos) ypne jusioiye 1sow ayl Aojdwie yeis Jno e 1eyl buunsug e
‘Aurenb 1seybiy ayy Jo aJe seinpeaosoud
Ino 1eyy ainsus 0} 8ousuedxe Yybnouyy pedojersp ussq sey ABojopoyiew juswubisse JnQ (vf) SI0UpNY [BUIBIU| JO 81NMISU|
8yl pue (y4diD) Aouelunoody pue 8oueul4 Jljgnd JO SINNISUl palapey) sy} ‘9eliwwo)) saolioeld Buiupny ayi Ag penssl
asoyi Buipnjour ‘spiepuels [euoissejoid pue Juswiulenor) yum seidwod yeyy yoeosdde pue ABojopoyiew ypne ue Buikjddy e
:Ag @ABIYOB @M YoIym ‘spiepuels [eojuyos) pue Aljenb 1seybiy sy) Jo s891AI8S HPNE [BUISIUI BULIBAISP 01 PO1NLLILLOD 8J8 S\

soueinssy Ayenp S

01/600g Abajesis pue uejd Hpny [euiaiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Page 49

Ge Jo g ebey 60-€0-1€ 01/6002 8bBI800 HpnY [euisiu) AebulieH yeid

"ue|d ypne paseq sl 8y} Jo AIaAIlBp
8]qeus 0} palinbai sjusWwale)s POYIaLW PUB S90IN0SaI ‘S||INS aU} Saljioads YoM Hipne Pasinosino 8yl Joj 10 BJIUOD 8y ‘suoiejnbay
PNy pue SUNoodY 8yl pue g/61 10V JUSWUISAOKY) [B007T 8Ul JO |G| UonoeS Jepun sjuswelinbal Aioinjels s |1ounod sy
[I}jn} O} JOPIO U] SBDIAISS JIPNE [eulalul Buiuiewsl sy} spiroid |jim JOBIIUOD PaoINOSINO 8y "s9sse004d uoleoluao Juelb oyloads jo
uone|dwod ay} Ul 1sisse 0} dlom Bupjeuspun pue siefeuew 0} S|0J1U0D pue SHSL UO aoiApe Bulpiroid se |jam se ‘eo11oeid Jo sepod
Areuydiosip s,j1ounoo 8y} Jo seyoeaiq [enualod aiebiiseAul yels Jo siequiswi jusueuuad ‘ewny Iy oM} 8yl "2002 udy ul ‘sejni
2inpeo0id IoUNOD YIM 8oUBPIODO. Ul ‘PIT HIPNY [BUJBIU| J0108S Olignd ©Yono| pue 81loje( O] PapJemE SBM SUOIBPUSWILLODS)
$,991WIWIOD UPNY 8y} U0 paseq J0BJU0D Jeak aAll ¥ "900g aunp Ul 881iluwio) Hpny 8yl Ag paaoidde pue peispiSuod SEM MIOMm
pue S20JN0SAJ JO XIW 8y} "J0BIU0D papiroid Ajjeuialxe Ue pue Jels asnoy-ul Jo XiW e AQ paiaAliep S| 80IAI8S JIpne [eulalul 8y

$90IN0S8Yy ‘9

01/600¢ Abajeng pue uejd Hpny [eusdiu] yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



G¢ 40 g obed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 9beI8A0D 1pny jeuisiu) Aebulier yeiq

0StL1L [ejol
oy Aousbunuon
OLLL [e101-gng
001 sejeJ0100.1q ||V Juswebeue
0S sejelo1004q IV dn mojjo4
09 uolesiunwwo? pue sdiysisuped
‘souewIopad ‘Ao1j0d - 9AIIN08XT J8IyD SYSIY pue SWalSAS a1ei01081i(]
(¥4 wuswdojena( jeuonesiuebiQ
pue sjdosad - SaAIINo0aXT JeIyD S)SIY pue swesAg ajeloio8iqg
09 S82IAMeS Allunwiwo) pue ainynd ‘Ynpy SYsiY pue sweolsAg aeio1o0a.i]
Rou 00¢ (sjooyos Arewiid 4o} uonoadsur SISINS PUE SHpNY
e 90IMIeg sejdoad BUunoA pue usipiiyD |o0yog Buipnjoul) sysiy pue swelsAg s1eioloaliq
o G/ JUSWIUOJIAUT URQIN S)SIY pue swalsAg 8101081
Dnua G2 sejeloroeiq IV voddng pue juswdojensq uswabeueiy ysiy
oL sa1el0100410 IV AauUoON 1o} anjep
oy sejeloloaiq iy pneld aAlloY Oid
08 Sejeloloalid IV | S0IAPY 1o8lold pue aoueInssy Juswebeuey 10s(oid
08 S904nossey ojesodio) upny 1]
G/ S904nossy 8jelo0dio) HpNny uswiainooid
oy $904nosay o1ei0dio) S)SIH pue swalsAg 91ei0108.i(]
08l Se2inosay ajesodion (S4) sweisAg feoueur] Asyy
oL s918J40100.41( |IV swielsAg epim [1ouno) aelodion
sheq ajeloloalqg eoly

'SE pasUelIWNS 80 UBD YIOM JO UuMOopealq oy ‘AeBulieH 4o} SBWOH Yum S sy Jo
Ved se pa1s|dwiod eq [lIM Fey} SOM HPNE 8PNjoul 10U SS0P YoIum ‘05 L* | SI PLISAIOp 84 O} SABP JO Jaquinu [el0] 8y "JOBAUOD 8Y}
UHIM 90UBPIOOJE Ul S| Yolym “JesAh [ejourul 01/6002 oY1 Buunp pes|dwios aq o} Yiom Jpne [eulsiul 8yj N0 S19S MOJaq S|dEe} oY

01/600¢ :8be10A09) Upny [euisiu] Asbuliey

01/600¢ >@®amw:w pue ue|d Hpny jeuisju] yeiqg — >®@CI®I JO CODOL_Om uopuoT




Page 51

Gg jo 0| ebed

60-£0-LE 01/6002 8beisnoD 1pny [euseuf Aebulier yeiq

ol

[e10]

Ol

[4

juswiabeuey

ASiH ®
Hpny JO pesH

"sJ83sIbal ysu o bunepdn e

pue ‘uoljedijiiuspl Ysu [ejuswpedsp SS0I)) e
‘uonoe pue Buipodss YsiY e

‘'sue|d JuswWieal]l YSIY e

JUBLISSOSSE YSIY e

.uoljedlIuspl ysiy e

‘ABsjesis

swsbeuew ysu sy} Jo uoneusws|duw] «
:apnjoul

Hpne sy} Aq paJanod aq 0} sesseoold Ay

Juswabeue Msiy

sAeq

1BUEND ETe)

adoog

o113 ¥pny

SHpNY WalsAg apim j1ouno) sjeiodion

01/600¢ Abalens pue ue|d Hpny jeussiu| yeiq — Asbuney jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 52

GE Jo || ebed

60-£0-LE 01/600¢ 8beisno) ypny [eussiu| Aebulier yeid

0} pepinoid SI uoljewlojul [eloueUl AlessadsN -
Uum

peldwoo si ABsjens uswebeuey Ainsesal] -

‘Yyum psljdwod ate syuswalinbal sanneisibe] -

Anseal] :seaJe Buimojjo} sy} Buenod sj0J3u00 JueoyubIS
% s109[0id pue Asy yioq jo Bunse} pue ‘uoieusWNOOP
‘sy@bpng - Bulpnjoul pue ‘suoilepuswiLIOdss IpNne SnoiAsid
oL e aoueUl{ JO pesH Jo dn-mojjo4 Buipnjou; ‘Upne walsAs jaas| YbiH (S4M) wewsebeuey Ainseal |
"AI8A0D81 JS]SESIP pue AlINoes ‘ssedde || -
‘peonpoud Buteq uonjewojul Juswebeuely -
‘senbayo psuiniay -
‘owioout jo Bupjueg -
:awioout jo abeiOlg -
‘sjuswAed payuspiun jo uonebnssau] -
‘sannp jo uonebaibag -
-1obps] [esousb oy} 01 sidieoal Jo Bunsod -
suoneliouocosy -
‘Buutes; yeig -
Juswebeuen ‘saunpsoolid pue saioljod -
199 ® awoouj| :seale Buimoljoy sy} Bupsnod sjoJ1u00 JueoIubis
JO pesH /jo4uo) pue Asy yioq jo Buiisel pue ‘uoleusWINOOP
» BuilunoooYy — Buipnjour pue ‘suoliepuswwossl ypne snoiasud
Gl v/€ 90URBUlS JO pedH jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjoul ‘upne waisAs [an9] ybiH (S4M) Bundieoey yse)
"seinpeooid umop 8so|) -
pue Buipodal juswebeuew sjeiodio) -
‘SjuswialIA -
‘Buipodal uswebeuew jeyuswpedsq -
'sisAjeue aoueeA pue |04u00 Aielebpng -
‘Bumes 19bpng -
Aunseau | :seaJe Buimoljo a8y} Buenod sj043u00 Jueoyiubis
% s1oefoid pue A8y yi0q Jo Builsal pue ‘uolIeIUBWNOOP
‘syebpng — Buipnjoul pue ‘suonepuswwodal ypne snoirsid (S4M) j041u0D Aerebpng
Gl e 8oueUl{ JO pesH jo dn-mojjof Buipnjour ‘upne weisAs joas| UBIH | 9 Juswabeuey [e1oUBUI oibsjens
sfkeq | Jspend IUETTT) adoog a1} upny

iS)su pue swelsAs 91el0]10811g pue SWelSAS [eloueuld A8y — s8oinosay o1eiodion

01/600¢ AbBejens pue ue|d upny [ewssiu] Yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuon




Page 53

G¢ jo g| ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 9bBI8A0D YpNY [BUIBIU| ABbulieH yeiq

‘sjebpng - Buipnjoul pue ‘suoljepuswiwodal Hpne snoiAaid
oL soueul4 jo pesH | Jo dn-mojjoy Buipnioul ‘lUpne weisAs |ane] YbBiH (S4M) LBWiIsaAU| pUN4 UOISUSY
‘o|qeied
SJUNO2JY 01 SpJeBas Yyim MIOM pne.y sAloY
01d 9yl Aq paJano9o aq o} sjuswAed areoldng
(+obeuepy ‘dn mojjo4 -
SWIa)SAg pue {A1oA0dal Ja1sesIp ¥ Alunoas ‘sseode || -
[eloueUl4 ‘sjosuoo enbayy -
pUB ‘|0J1u0D ‘sjouod §OvYg -
v Buipunoooy - ‘o|1} Jo1sew Joyddns 03 sjuswipuswy -
aoueUl{ JO pesH) ‘sjuswiled -
‘wolsAs 0] sedloAul Jo Induj -
Jabeuepy {S90J10AUL JO UOIBOYYSD B 1dIoeY -
aouBWIOUSd 'seaJse Buimoljo) ayl BULIBAOD S]04U0D JURDIjIUBIS
dZd/auswainooid pue A9y y1oq jo Buiissel pue ‘uolelusWINOop
a1es0dion Buipnjoul pue ‘suoljepuswwilo9al Jipne snoinaid
Sl JO pesH jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjour ‘Upne walsAs [ars] UBIH | (S4M) (sionpain) sjgeded s1unoooy
"A19N0D81 JS)seSIp B Alnoes ‘sseooe || -
pue ebps| ay} Jo aInonng -
{UOIBIIoUOD8l JUNOJJ. [OU0Y) -
‘4ebpe oyl 03 Indui pue walsAs Jepos -
‘peonpoud spodal g uoijewloul Juswebeuey -
‘sreunol Jo Buipiodss x uonsidwon -
‘Aue eleqg -
:sease Buimoijo} ay3 BulisAod sjo3uod Juesiubls
|0Ju0nD pue A9y y10qg jo Buiisel pue ‘uoljeiusinoop
» Bununoosoy - Buipnjoul pue ‘suoljepusuiuwooal Jpne snoiasid
Gl aoueUIH JO peSH jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjoul ‘ypne waisAs [pAs| UBIH | (S4Y) 1ebpa] jelsusy) B Buiunoooy
‘po1ol1Sal Si Blep 0] SS800y -
pue ‘uone|siba) ayl yum saidwod Buipodey -
‘apew sjuswisaAul pue sueoj Jo Alubsiul sy
poddns 01 1no palsed uoneliouooal Jenbey -
{pasilIXew sI Mojj Useo 1au
S, JlounoD ay} Jo souewlopad ayj 1Y) 8insue
sheq | Jepenp VETTTe) adoog o111 Upny

01/600¢ ABajens pue ue|d Hpny [ewsiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 54

Gg Jo ¢ ebed

60-£0-LE 01/600¢ 8beianoD upny jeuseiu) AebulieH yeiq

'seaJe Duimojjo} sy} BuiaAoD sj0J1u0D JuedIubis
pue As¥ yioq jo Buiise} pue ‘uolieiuswinoop

119 Buipnioul pue ‘suollepuswWILWLIOdas IpNe SnoiAsid
02 € jo pesH Buoy jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjoul ‘ypne waisAs |ens| ybiH (S4M) snjeueg Buisno
‘fidnooal 1geq -
pue ebps| [esoush o1 uolelou0dsy -
‘sidieoal ysen -
'Seol10AUl JO Buisiey -
:seunpaoold pue sadljod -
'seaJe Buimojjo} 8y} Bulienod sjoJju00 jueoliubis
uswabeuepy pue Asy yiog jo bBuissl pue ‘uoneUSWNOOP
198 % Bulpnjoul pue ‘suoljepuswiwodsl Jpne snoinsid (s4M) (s10199q
o] e awiooul Jo pesH | jo dn-mojjo} Buipnioul ‘upne welsAs |aas] ybBiH Aipung) sjgeAioosy SIUN02oY
‘Aionooey Je1sesiq pue AJlIN0sg ‘SsSeddy || e
pue suoiinquiuo) BIIXT] e
‘suolonps(q e
‘sjuswiAed e
‘Sjuswipuswy e
‘siojsue] e
‘SjusWIalilal pue ‘syjesp ‘sionea] e
‘sisjsuel] e
‘SjusWalileyY pue syjea( ‘siones| e
Ainseal| ‘siouels e
9 s108loid :sease Buimojjo} ayi BuLienod
‘syebpng - s|o43u0o juesubls pue Asy yioq jo Bunsey pue
o] e SOUEBUIH JO PESH | ‘UoijeluSBWINOOP Bulpnjoul ‘Upne welisAs [oas] UbIH | (S4M) UoielISIUILLPY pund UoISUsd
Aonooal Je1sesip ¥ AlUnoss ‘ssedde || -
pue ‘Bulojuow aouBWIOUSd -
‘swooul -
soles g seseyoing -
‘SJUSLUISOAUI JO UOIIBOIIBA -
‘Buiuiesy g souepiny -
Anseau | ‘seaJe Buimoj|o) oy BulIsn0D Sj043u0D JUrDIIUBIS
9 sjo08loid pue Asy yjog jo bBupssl pue  ‘uollEIUBWINIOP
sheq | Jeuend UETTTe) adoog 9111} Hpny

01/600¢ ABajens pue ueld Hpny [eusdiuj yeiq — AebuneH jo ybnoiog uopuo




GE Jo 17| ebed 60-£0-1€ 01/600Z 8bI8A00 ypny [euisiu) AebulieH yeid

pue ‘sainpeooud pue seidlod -

Sjuswissasse sjjoueyg -

‘SeOUBMOJ|E PIOA -

spunjay -

‘1obps| [esousb yum uoneloucosy -

‘sojel uo09||00 jo Bulonuopy -

HO /WM -

‘uonoe Ausnodal 1geq -

Sjunoooe asuadsng -

‘siehedxe} woly sydieosy -

Bunmng -

‘suojieolidde uononpal ¥ Junoosiq -

'1S1] UolleNn|eA pue HQop USSMISQ UOIHBIIoU0DsY -
swAed jo spoye|N -

‘aunjonuis jeuonesiuebi -

:seale Buimojjo} sy} Buusnod sjoluoo Jueoyiubis
“pue A8y yjoq jo Buiisey pue ‘UoieluBINDIOP

1719 Buipnjoul pue ‘suoiepuswilodal Jipne snoiasid
Gl 14 jo peeH bunoy Jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjoul ‘ypne welsAs [eAs| ybiy (S4M) xel j1ounon

Page 55

"M8IABA douUBULIONSd -

pue {jonuod Aejebpng -
‘Apisgng -

lonuon Ayenp -
‘uolelIouoosy -

‘sjeaddy -

‘sjuswihAedisn -
‘sjuswhed -

‘Juswebeuew pnelq4 -
'swie|o payepyoeyg -
‘Buixepu| pue Buiuueog -
‘awlyos yum aouedwon -
‘selnp jo uonebeibeg -
{Aienooal Jslsesip pue Alnoss ‘sseooe || -
‘seunpeooud pue saioljod -

sheq | Jepend Wl adoog 8|l upny

01/600¢ ABsieans pue ue|d Upny [eusaiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo-



Page 56

G¢ Jo G| abed

60-£0-LE 0L/600Z 8br1910D NPNY [BUIBIU| ABBULIBH EIq

Gl

ajelodio)
4 4O pesH

S|o4u00 Jueoylubls pue A8y yioq jo Buisel pue
‘uolrejuswnoop Bupnioul ‘Upne WeisAs jeAs] ybiH

sjessy paxi4

Gl

adueUl4
aresodion

€ 10 pesH

‘sjuswieburere uswAed

padisjep Jo suejd juswAed se yons ‘sioigep

0} pepinoid SUOISSEOUOD pue s8sSs8004d 1O 8)IM
Bulpnjoul LINJUMOP JJWIOU0D8 Ue Buunp Uoi108||0o
swooul Buiosyje senssi apnjoul osje [iIm Jpne 8y

'$$9004d uoljeIoUSb J0o/pUE UO0IID8||0D

SWODUl 8y} O} UOIIBS. Ul SBaJe YSU A8¥ UO Snooy
[IIM UpNe 8y "JPNE 8yl Jo awi} 8y} Je uswebeuew
UHM 3JIOM JNo JO SN0} JO seale ay) aaibe |jIm opn

awioou|

Gl

joJuon
» Bullunoooy —
e aoueUl{ JO pesaH

‘'sainpaoold |yA 8yl Jo

syoedse Bujpiebel uleoU0D JO Seale A8y UO SNooj
M Jipne 8yl "Hpne ay} Jo awi} ay} e luswaebeuew
UM MJIOM JNO JO SNO0} JO Seale ay) aaibe |jim apA

1VA

]

119
% jo pesH Bupoy

‘Aion0Dal JolsesIp B Alndes ‘sseooe || -

pue ‘sainpadcoid ¥ saioljod -

.20UBMOjje PIOA -

'spunjey -

:1ebps| jesousb yum uonelouoosy -

‘sejes UOI109}j00 Jo Buloyuop -

HOOWM -

‘uonoe Ailenodal 1geq -

'SjUNoookE asuadsng -

‘siehedxe] woly sydieosy -

Bumg -

Jollad sjqeliey) -

\1S1] UolleNneA ¥ JIgep USaM1Iaq UOIIBIIoU0DY -
‘adnjonJis jeuonesiuebi -

:seaJe Buimojjo} oy} Buleaod sjosuoo Jueoubis
pue A8y yiog jo Bunsel pue ‘uoljejuswinoop
Buipnjoul pue ‘suojjepuswiuIogal ypne snojasid
jJo dn-mojjo4 Buipnjour ‘upne walsAs |eAs] YbiH

(S4M) HANN

‘Kioanooal Jeisesip g Ajunoss ‘sseooe || -

sAeq

19penp ENT)

adoog

9111 1pny

01/600¢ ABeiens pue ue|d Hpny [eusaju] yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo-




Page 57

Gg Jo 9| ebed

60-€0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bBI8A00 PNy [BUIBiU| ASbuLieH Yeiq

Gl

S90INIBS
[eba jo pesH

buiAldde pue Bumes Joj sj0/juod pue WslsAg
'seoinJes Jo} suoneondde o1 Buipuodsau

pue Buissesoid ‘BuinieDal o) s8SS8004d
(sooines sensibau

Ile Joy) seunpadoud pue Aojjod ‘uoijeiuswinoog
‘sjuswiaiinbai Aioyniels yum soueldwon

[ ]

:seate BUIMO||0) 8Ul MBIABY [IIM S\
"JoW 8Je 92IAISS SIU} JO S8AI108[g0 8yl 1Byl ainsus
0} 9oe|(d Ul S|0JJUOD BY} JO MBIASI [|N) B 8q [|IM SIUL

9oIMBg sieisibay

0l

se0InBg Auadoud
ajesodion

JO pesH

'sjuswiebueste buipodals pue Buuonuop

pue ‘Juswabeuew 1e6png

‘sasseo0ud

dn mojjoy pue Juswadsiojus ‘BuLiojiuow siesuy
‘pojuesb suoissaouoo pue sued JuswAed
‘sseooud

UoI3el|Iou0D8J PUB SWODUI JO UOII08|10D
‘sebieyd |ejusl

BuiAidde pue Buiies 4oy} sj0JU0D pue WelsAg
:seunpadoud pue Aojjod ‘uoneiuswinoog
‘sjuswaiinbai Aioiniers yum aoueldwon

saAo8lgo

|043U0D pue seale Buimojio) eyl Bulisrod

‘oW aJe 901AISS SIY} JO SBAI108I[qO Byl 1BY] 8insus
0} 8oe|[d U] SJOJJUO0D B} JO MBIABI [|N} B 8] |IIM SIYL

swoou| Apadold [eloJswiwion

sa9in9S Apsdoud

"19bpaT [BUILLON UHM UOIBIIoU0D8Y

pue ‘{uoljenyis dILIOU0DS 1UBLIND

ay} Buunp sidieoal [euded ainoss 01 aor|d
ur s8ssao04d pue 3iom snoiraid Jo dn mojjoy
e Buipnjoul — syo-slup PUE [esodsiq 19SSy
‘(uoneiosudep pue uopesiended Buipnjoul)
sainpsooud pue ssojjod yum asueljdwon
{A1unoag 1988y

‘J91s160Yy 19SSy

:seaJe Buimoljo}) ay) BuLIoAoD

sheq

Japend

uallD

adoog

S| Hpny

01/600¢ ABajens pue ueld upny [eussiu] yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 58

Gg Jo /| ebed 60-£0-L& 01/600¢ 8bei1on0D Ipny [Bueiul AsBulieH yeiq

0¢cce lelol

'suanial Aioiniels buipnjoul
‘uolrewolul Juswebeuew pue Buiyodey e
pue sessao0id malnal pue BULIOHUON e
$S900.4d UOIIBIIDUODS) PUB SLIOOUI
JO U0I1198)|09 ‘sabieyd [e20] pue Aioiniels

skeq | seuenD VETTT) adoog a1} Upny

01/6002 ABarens pue ueld Hpny |eussiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 59

Gg Jo g1 ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 9b6BI8A0D HPNY [RUIBIU| ABBULIBH YEId

10} SOWOH {(s1010B43U07) JO UOIOBI8S pue
‘@oueUl INGA Buipnjoul) sjuswsbuely JusweiNoold
JO J010841Q {S1S00) JO uopeUILLIBIB] *
BAIIN08X] ‘seate BuiMo|jo) Byl MSIASI [|IM 9N
Jiuswiainoold | -awwelbold SSWOoH jusde(q 8yl Jo juswebeuew
o] 2 JO pesaH 98U} JOAO S|OJUOD 1B XOO| [|IM  upne  Ssiy| spJepue)s sWoH 1usode(
"(syuepisas wiouy
yoeqpeas} buipniour) Bulojuow aoueWIOUSd
pue ‘owooInQ jo Buloyuol e
{SJ010BJIUOY) 0} SjuswiAed e
{(Buoyiuo
aouewIopad Buipnjoul) BULIONUOA 10BU0D e
‘(sseo0ud
Jspus} Bulpnjoul) SI010BJIUOD JO UOINDBI8S e
S90INISG ‘sealy 80IAI9S JO UoEBOIUSp| e
auljuo.4 :sease BUIMO||O) U} MBIASI [IIM BN
‘J0308.41Q ‘1o aJe BaJe Sy} JO S9AN0S[QO 8y} 1BY] 84nsus
Gl e elsissy 0} 908|d U] S|0J3UOD B} JO MBIASI [|N} B 8] [|IM SIYL Buruoissiwwion wieay oygngd
"UOIIBULIOJU| JOIOBIUOYD) e
pue ‘spjepuelg 82IAIeS e
‘slo1eoipu] 9ouewIopad AsY JO UonBUILLIBLIS(
{(s10BJ3U0D JO MBIABI JO 8DUBPIAS pue ssalboud
jo Buuopuow BuipnoulBULOHUO 10BHUOY) e
oysibay 1oesjuoD) e
Jabeuey :seaJe BUIMO||O} BY} JOAOD |IM Mipne SIy |
$S92001d rounoD
JUSWBINO0I4 | 98Ul SSOJOB S)HUN SSauIsng JO UOI08|8S B UIYUM
/iuswiainoold | syuswebuele juswebeuew joesu0o 0} piebai
02 2 JO pesaH yum aoe|d Ul S|0JIUOD BU} JSA0D |jIIM Hpne Siyj Juswiebeuepy 10B43U0YD
"90IAISS
JUBWIaIN00Id | BU} J0y) J81SIDaI MSU By} UIYUM S|0J1U0D A8y 8yl Jo Bunss |
oL L JO pesH Bunsel uo Buisnooy Hpne paseq Msu B aq [|IIm siy] | Ja1siBay MsiY — 1uswiainoold selodion
sheq | Jepend weln adoog 8l upny

PNy JUBWaIN001d — S92In0say 8jeiodion

01/600¢ AbBajesns pue ueld 1pny [euwolu] Yeidq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT]



Page 60

G¢ Jo 61 abed

60-£0-LE 01/600Z 8beI8A0D PNy [BUIBIU] ASbULBH YEIQ

S/

jelol

0l

1UsWaIno0.d
O pesH

"S}OBJU0D) JO [emaual Buipnjoul
— sp&su AouelnNSuOY) JO UoiBONIUSP| e
SjuelNsSuUo) 0} JUsWwAed e

‘Bunioyiuow souewioped

pue sswwelboud yiom ‘suoneloadxs
Buipnioul — Juswabeuey J0BIUOD e
sjuelNSUON JO uswiuloddy e
:seaJe BuImo||o) 8Y} JBAOD |jIm HpNne SIY |
‘ewwelboid 4gg syl uo pahojdwe sjuelNSuUOD
0} pJebas yum sjuswebuere juswebeuew pue
BurLioluoWw 8y} JSAO S|0JIUOD Je YOO| |lIM Hpne Siy|

ainin4 ey} Jo} sjooyos Buipying

Ol

a|geAed
S]JUNODDY
‘1ebeuey

"SJUSPISOY JO JUSLIBAO|\ e
pue {(s|iq ABisus Buipnjoul) s||ig JO uswAed e
‘(N4 Buipniour) syuswsbueny Juswaindold e

‘Juswiabeuei 19SSy e
:seaJe Buimo)|oy
aUl MaiAal {lIM S\ “SHlIg Jo 1uswiAed ayy Buipnjoul

‘Iounon 8yl Aq pasumo SI81SOH Jo uswebeuew

8yl JOAO S|OJUOD 1B MOO| |IIMm  upne Syl

S|91SOH

KebuneH

‘(oeqpes;} suspisal bulurelqo
Jo} sseo0ud Buipnjoul) BuolUO SouBWIOLID e
pue awoo1nQ jo Buuouuop e

01/6002 AbBajesis pue ue|d Hpny [eusaiu| yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 61

Gg Jo Qg ebed

60-€0-1L€ 0L/600¢ 8brioA0D UpnY [eulsiul AsBulier yeiq

| skeg |sepenp| ey | 8doog | lH} HPNY |

PNy 1| — S824nosay ajesodion

01/6002 ABajens pue ueld 1pny |eusdiu| yeiq — Aebuue jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 62

G¢ Jo g ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/6002 8bBI2A0D YPNY [BUIBIUI ABBULBH }BIQ

|0J1U0D) pue
Bununoooy
~ 80uBUI4
JO pedH

saoeuUBUl Aue

pue ‘sjuswebuere A1onoosy Jalsesiq / AUnuiluo) ssseuisng
pue sainpaooid dnyoeq ‘sjoJ1uo9 jies; upne Buisseooud
‘indino ‘indu; jo Bunsayl sidwes yum Jayebol ‘weisAs

8y} Jo uoneInbiuoo AJuNd8s pue S|0JU0D SS820E [BOIBO)
‘@in1onJis sseook Jasn eleudoidde se sujwexs [jim ypne sy

uoreoljddy Bunjueg sgy

SO0V -
2ouBWLIOMad

®
wswdojsasq
swieisAg

4O pesH

"S8IlIAIO® 1S8) 1S0d JO UOISSNOSIP pue 1S81 8] 1B

8@ouepusye ‘s$800NS 1881 8y} anoid 03 pasn ejep ayy Bulkiiuspi
Ul JUSWIBAJOAUL ‘1s81 8y} Bujuueld apnjoutl [jim siy] "1se1

H(d 8y} 10} S8s58204d SY] MSIASI 01 YOO [|IM IPNe 8y "JUSAS
J81SeSIp B JO JUSAS 8Y] Ul SODIAJISS |IDUNnoY) JO uoeIolsal Yoinb
8yl Mojje pinoys yoiym wisisAs 2160j8100) 8y} IO} SIUSLLIUOIIAUS
Jonles om] Ajueind aie aiey] "s1s81 YA S|eloueuld dvS

pue Bupjied BOIAID SU} Yl10q PapuUsHE aABY S)IPNE SNOIASId

1s9] Aenooay
Je)sesi( oibojalon

€l €

Jabeuepy
wswdojenag
uonesddy
1l

"palpne aq oOs|e |jIm Jusiuod awos bulysignd

10} sseo0.d 8y} 0S|y "dlsgem sy} Jo uoddns pue 8)sgeam

81 Jo soualjisal ‘a)isgeam ay} Jo ABojodoy ‘eusgem ey 01 SSeooe
Jono aoeld Ul AJuNoss 8y} sepnjoul siy| “Juswiebeuew ausgem
Jono soe|d Ul S|0J1U0D BY] AHIUSP! 01 PaMBIASI 8] ||IM BlSgeMm By}
apesBbdn siy; Jo ped sy "spesbdn sy} jo aseyd ysaljes Yyosl syl
Buuinp obe sieah sy Jono pawiopad sem ypne aysgem 1se| sy |

HpNY Slsgsp

0t 14

joJu0D
Buipiing
JO pesH

"suoinjeolidde buiuueld sujjuo Joy aoeld

Ul $8ss800.4d 8Y1 1B 00| OS|e |IM SIU} Ajleoioadg sseoo.d sy
mnoybnouyr dn payoid ase suoneoldde ainsus 0} 1SIX8 S|0JJU0D
Buisseooud pue Aius elep snosuo.ie 10u1sal 01 sreudoidde
aJe s|0Ju00 INdut 1ey} aunsus 01 ssedoud Buiuueld sy 01
Buireje. sjo1U00 || 843 Jo IN220 M Bunisel ejdwes -uoneoidde
8U} UO S|041u0o AIINOSS JUBLND Y} MBIASI [JIM JpNEe 8y |
"90BSIUI [BHOd DBuluueld 8y} Jo juswdojaasp pue

sepelbdn weisAs 0} spiebas yum wsisAs sy} Uiylim paiinooo
sey juswdojsAsp s} SIY} 90UIS "S|0JIU0D AJINDSS Meam awos
Buipnjou; suolepuswiLLIOdal Jo Jequinu ybiy e payiiuspl pue
UBld HPNY 90/500¢ @U} Jo ved se palejduiod sem Hpne 1sej sy

uoyeoidde jonuo)
Buipling pue Buiuuelq uejd!

sAeQq

Jauend

sl

adoog

9111 ¥pny

01/6002 ABajens pue ueld Hpny [eussiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 63

G¢ Jo gz ebed

60-€0-1LE 01/600Z 8beisAo) ypny [eusiul AsbuLieH yeid

08

[e10l

Jebeuep
Aununuod
pue
Ainosg ||

"sbuiesw sssy} buimojjo) pesibe

aq Aew paiinbai oq Aew 3JoM JpNy [BUISIU| JSYUIN} 818UM Ses.e
o|10ads Auy “uoiielpaiooe 100220SI 8Ul Jo ved se pawlopsd
sypne 03 yoeoudde juaiind sy} Alpuspi 01 Ajjeipul sebeuey
AlnuiuoD pue Anoag 1] dY3 YIM piay eq [Iim suoissnosiq

Anosg ||

¢c

v/€

snouep

‘pajusWe|dwi Se paxyJew ale SuoliepusILIodal

9JOUM S8DUSPIAS UIBIQO PUB SUOliBpUSWILLIODal Jipne

sSnoinald JO SuOIBpUSWILLIODaI JO SNJBIS 8U} UIBUSOSE 0] 8q |IIM
MJOM SIU} JO SND0J 8y JedsA 80//002 SUl WO} SUOHBPpUSWILLIOOS)
auQ Aiold Aue pue spodey upny [BuUISlUl 60/8002 SUl

Jo yed se panss| sypne 0} SUSIA dn MOJ|0} JO SaLISS B ayeuspun
0} 8sodoud em spodau ypne snoiraud Jo ped se paiejdwiod
suonoe Bujuswsidwi ale uswebeuew 1By} 8INSUS O]

sdn mojjo4

91

14

Jobeuepn
Aynuuo)
pue
Anoseg ||

‘uonedIUNWWOD pue buiures; ‘(@oueldwod yum isisse

01) ®0e[d Ul s81o1j0d BUILLIEXS [|IM PUB 600Z Ul LIS [lIM IpNne 8y
uo ylom Aeuiwiiaid "swaisAs Asy Jo sidwes e jo Bunsse) spnjoul
[IIM puUe Jsjsuel] Blep pue AlNoas Blep JaA0D |[IM Hpne sy

'600¢ 419903100

| J1un uondwaxs ue paalgdal aaey |1ouno) AsbulieH ‘600¢

judy | woJy pels 03 payoadxs st 0000 yum soueldwod ybnoyyy
"suoijesiuebio pue SsijuoyINY [BO0T PalosuUU0d Usamiad
SUOI1OBIBIUI SB|gBUS UYdIym (N YMOMISN BaIy-9pIAN 81eALId
2JN08S B (XSND)) 18UBIIXT 84NI8S 108UUO0Y) JUSLLUIBAOL) 8}

0} 108UU0D 0} 8|ae Buidq a10j8q yum Aldwod 1snw Ajuoyine ue
1By} S8ss9004d pue SpJepuURlS Wnwiuil 8y} ssulsp 1eyi (0000)
uoI108UU0) JO BP0y 8yl 01 dn ubis 0} pasu Saijioyine [Bo0T

(4sysuel] e1RQ BupnoUl)
Awinosg eileq

sheq

euenpd

usin

adoog

9111 Hpny

01/6002 ABajells pue ue|d Hpny |eusaiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 64

Ge Jo gz obed 60-£0-LE 0L/600 8beI8A0D HpNY [Ewsiu] AsbulieH yeiq
wie1sAs || uswsbeuew adouewopad s |1oUNOD aUl
paJiinbal jo swabeuew 8y} Ul ISISSE 0] [I0UN0Y) 8Y} SS0I0B
Se §,30V pue | swpedsq yoes Joj si03oaul pue siebeuew Jun poddng
Gz -1 sJioyoaliqg IV ssauisng A9y yum asiel [im am Jeak ay; Buung pue juswdojprs( Juswabeuep Ysiy
"1S00 01 sabeyjul] pue S82IAISS Ppue Jun
ssauisng ay} jo aouewopad JO uoneoiiusp| e
‘sseoo.id Buiyes 196png pue uoijeoyiuspl
Aolj0d pue 1509 ay; Jo Buipueisiepun Buipnjoul
2ouUBWIOHSd ‘SEOIAISS PUB SHUM SSauIsng UIYLIM SIS0 e
J0 -apnjoul
pesH /190140 abrI8A00 BYl UIYUM papnjoul 8q [jIM Jeyl sealy
[eioueul ‘ueld 1PNy 80/.00¢ 843 Ul paidA0D 10U [I0UN0) 8y}
o] oq} JeIyn JO SBaJe JOA0D 0] YIOM AHA JNO SNUIUOD ||IM SAA ASUON 10} anjep
‘ueid pneu-1ue
aAI10e-04d By} Ul papn|oul 8Q 0} }JOM JO Seale
pUSLWIWODa) pue Ajiluapl [jIim am ‘sajijoid pnely
pue us)euspun sisAjeue s 8y} JO }Ynsal e sy
‘ABa1es1S pneld [BUOlBN 8yl pue
seaJe Ysu ybiy JO MBIA 8pIM-UOPUOT ‘UOISSILULLIOY)
Hpny ‘eAljelliu] pneld [euolieN 8yl Junodoe ojul
sJ0108.1(g 2)e] OS|e ||IM 9A\ "SaSed pned) snoinaid usaq aaey
oy -1 uelsIsSy 8Jay} a1eym ‘seate ysu Ybiy 1800 [jIM MIOM INQO pneJj-1iuy 8A130B-04d
‘Wwea | adsuewopad ¥ Ad1j0d
oyl uiyum Jebeuepy 108/0id 9U} YUM UOIBYNSUOD
ur psyiuepl eq |Im pelpne eq o1 s}osfoid
‘awiwesboid aousjjaoxa
Buinsiyoe pue ueid 10UNOD 8y} JO AJBAIIBP
$J010811( [je1ono ey} o ped se j1ouno?) ayy Ag paijiiuspl
08 -1 juelsissy se ‘sjoefoid Asy JopISU0D |jIMm MIOM Hpne 8yl aoueInssy uswabeue 108loid
skeq | seuenp TEYTTS) adoog a|1n upny

-sajeaoloadig Iy

01/6002 ABajesns pue ueld Hpny [eusaju) yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]




Page 65

G¢ Jo pg ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 9b6BI8A0D PNy [BUIBIU| ABbuLIBH JjRi]

GGl

ejol

‘(Jusrenon,) wieishs
uswebeuew aouewIopad mau s,|iouno’) 8y}
uo sieisibal ysu jo Buitepdn ayy JoHuUOW M SAA

"POIIIUSPI S|0JIUOD BU] JO SSBUBAII0BLS 8y}
SSOSSE J0/pUk payljuspl s|04iuod sy} jo Aoenbspe
By} ssesse Ysu sy} abeuew 0} Sj041U00 Buipiebal

9oIApEe 8pinoid Jeyls |Iim am ‘ereudoidde aiaypp

‘ABarengs ysiy jo uswsbeuey s,|1oUN0D
3yl Yum aoueploooe Ul sielsiBal ysu Jiayl
a1epdn pue malAal sjuswpedsp |e 1Byl 8insus 0}

sheq

lauend T TS adoog

o1} ¥pny

01/600¢2 ABajens pue uejd Hpny jeusaiu| yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 66

G¢ Jo G ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bBI8A0D PNy [BUISIU| ASBULBH YBI]

‘'suJinjal Aloiniels
Buipn|oul ‘uoljewoul Jusweabeuew pue Buipodey e
pue :s9ss800.4d UOIIBDIJLISA pUB UOIJ0S||00 Bl e
‘oouewIOpad J0}0BIUOD JO BULIOHUON e
{ABaress Buljohoas yum
aouel|dwod BULIOHUOW 10} S|OJIUOD PUR WSISAS e
{seinpaooud pue Aojjod ‘uoljeluswnoo e
'SJ0JeDIpU| 9oUBWLIONSd [BUOIIEN Bulpnijoul

S90IAI8G ‘syuewialinbai Aioiniels pue [eool yum aouedwon e
auljuoL4 :SeaJle BUIMO||0) 8Y] MBIASI {|IM
- Jo10841q 9 ‘19W BJe 92IAI8S SIY} JO SBAI108[qO 8y] 1Byl 8Jnsus
oL b uelsissy 0} 92e|d Ul S|0JIUOD 8} JO MBIASI [N} B 8] [JIIM SIY ] Buijohosy
‘sjuswsbuelly buliojuopy souBwWIOLSd e
pue {(y3S) JUswssassy [ejuswuoiinug o1bajens e
(SMMIN) siuswebueny diysieuped e
{S9JNpPad0Id puUR SBI0Ij0  *
‘uone|siba yum soueldwion e
S90IAI8G :seaJe Buimo||o}
auljuoI BUl MOIASI [||IM SA\ “UBld 9ISBAA UOPUOT YUON 89U} JO
- 103108117 uoljeluswaidwi syl pue (SMrIN) Absiens a1sepn iop
Sl L juelsissy UoOpuOT YHUON 8yl Uo g [[IM lpne 8y} JO Snoo} 8yl Juswsbeuey a1sep
‘uodal
HpNny [BuwJsiul 60/800¢ 4NO Ul pasiel suollepuswwoos.
8yl JO dn-moj|0f ® 8Meuspun oOs[e |IMm 9
"M8IA8J SSauIsng
ay} Buimoljo) pasies suollepuswiwiosal sy} uswaiduwil
0} uejd uonoe ue jo jswdorsp Buipnjoul ‘maiasl
S80INBS ssauisng oy Buimojos aoeid ul Ind g |IM  Yoiym
auIjuol4 sainpacoid pue sjoJu00 A8y 8yl 1S81 pue MmalAsl
- J1010841Q M HpNe [eusalu} "60/800¢ Buunp mainal ssauisng
ol v uelsIssy B Jo 108lgns sem uonoun} sadineg Bunued eyl sooi1nI9G Buntied
sheq |1spend TVETTTe) adoog 9l Hpny

19181010041 JUSWUOHAUT uBqIN

01/600¢ Abajens pue ueld 1pny [ewelu] Yelq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT]




Page 67

G¢ Jo 9g ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 96B18A0D YNy [BUISIU| ABBuULIEH YEIq

0¢

SHOS
— Jooaug
juelsissy

uol}eoo||e pue Juswssesse ‘uoneolddy e
‘sainpaoo.d pue Aojjod ‘uoneuawinoog e
sjuswsaiinbas Aloiniels yum soueldwon e

'SOAI108[qO |043U00 pue sease Buimojo} syl Bulienoo
‘Jow aJe 801AISS SIY} JO SBAI108[qOo Byl 1Byl 8insus
0} 92e|d U| S|0JIUOD BY} JO MBIASI [N} B 8q ||IM SIY |

uoljepowiwoooy Aselodwis |

ot

add - Jo1eiiq
JuelIsISSy

‘'suinjad Alojniels
Buipnjou ‘uoirewsoul Juswebeuew pue Buipuodsy e
pue (s9ss900id Mainel pue BULIOYUO e

{ssa00.4d uoneljIou0D8s pue

auwooUl JO UO1109}|00 ‘sabieyod |eoo] pue Aloiniels
BuiA|dde pue Builles Joj S|0JUOD puUB WOISAS e

‘s801j0U [B00] pue Aiojniels o1 Buipuodssl
pue Buissaooud ‘BuinleDal 10} S8SS800ld  ®
‘seinpaooud pue Aojjod ‘uoneuswinoog e
‘syuswalinbas Auoiniels yum souendwon) e
:Seale
BUuIMO||0} BY} MBIABI [|IM SAA “18W BJe 82IAI8S SIU]
40 soAoalqo ay1 eyl ainsus 01 8oe|d Ul S|0JIU0D 8Y]
JO MaIAal JIny B 8 |IIM siyL JeaA e suonediidde gooz
Ajerewxoidde yum sjesp pue suolejnbey Buipjing syl
ypm aouelidwod seinsus uoiloss |043u00 Bulpjing ey

$90IAIG J0J1U0D Bulpjing

oL

€

S90INIBS
auljuo.l4
— Joyoaug
juelsissy

‘sjuswisbuesne Buipoda. pue Bulojuop

pue |0J3U0D pue Juswabeuew 1b6png
‘siapinoid soines 0} sluswAed pue sedloAu]
‘siopinoid 82IAI8Ss JO mainal pue BulIOUON
‘seunpaooud Buuspus |

‘sainpaosoud pue Aoljod ‘uolieiuswinoo(
sjuswalinbas Aioiniels yum asuedwon
'SaAI108[qOo |0J1U0D puk seale Buimoljo) syl Bulienod
‘1oW aJe 90IAISS SIY} JO SBAI1D8[q0 By} 1By ainsus
0} 9oe[d Ui S|0JIUOD BY} JO MBIASI ||N} B 8] |IIM SIYL

S]0BJUO0D
Buiyby 19841s pue shemybiH

sheq

1euenp

jualiD

adoog

9lH} Hpny

01/600¢ Abajesns pue ueld upny [eweiu] Yyeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 68

Gg 10 1z obed 60-€0-1€ 0L/600¢ 8beion0) upny [eussiu) AebuiieH yeiq

174 jelol

‘sjuswebuene buipodas pue Buloluo
pue {joJ3uo0 pue juswabeuew 18bpng
‘siepinoid aoines 0} sluswAed pue seoloAu|
‘siepinoid ao1AI8s JO mainal pue Buuojuo
‘ssa1ddns vy 10} saunpaooid Buuspus |
‘sesseooud

skeq |ispenp UETTT) 8doog 8|11 upny

01/600¢ Abajeiig pue ueld ipny j[eusaiu] yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 69

Gg Jo gz ebed

60-£0-1€ 01/6002 8beiano) ypny eutsiu) AeburieH yeiq

jooyog PunoA uoj seoinies palebiel pue [BsIsAlUN BAI0BYe
— J1o308.1q BulisAllap a8 SB0IAISS SUOIX8UUOD) 8yl 1By} ainsue
oL Z Ainda( 0} 9o®|d Ui S|0JIUOD BY] JO MBIABI ||N} B g |lIM SIY ]| S82IAJBG SUOIXBUUO)D
‘sjuswiebuere buipodal pue Buuojuoyy e
pue {joJ3uo0d pue juswsbeuew 196png e
‘uoisinoud
9OIAJISS pUE SIUSID JO MBIABI pue BuLojUOpy e
{s9s8900.d [BII9J8) pUB JUBWISSaSSE ‘Uoiiediiddy e
{sainpseoold pue Aojjod ‘uoijeiuswindo( e
sjuswadinbal
seljiwe Aoiniels pue [eo0o] yum asouelidwo) e
9 uaIpiiyn 'SOAI108[qO0 [0J3Uu0D pue seale Buimojo) syl BuLienod
— Jojoaiig ‘1aW aJe 82IAISS SIU} JO SBAII08lgo Byl 1BY] ainsus
Gl ¥ Aindaqg 01 8oe|d Ul S|0JIUOD BY] JO MBIABI [N} B 8] [IM SIYL | S8sSe00.d [elisjel pUB JUSLISSESSY
‘sjuswabuese buipodal pue Buliojuopy e
pue {j0J1u00 pue juswebeuew 196png e
a|qeoiidde aiaym siapinoid aoinies 0] sjuswhied e
‘uoisinoad
9OIAI8S pUB SJUBIID JO MBIABI pue Buloluopy e
{s9ss900.d [BII9BI pUE JUBWISSaSSE ‘Uoijeolddy e
‘sainpasoid pue Aoijod ‘uoneluswindoq e
sjuswaiinbai
saljiwe Aioiniels pue |20} yum asueldwo) e
9 uaipliyd :SOAI109[qO 1043Uu00 pue seale Buimo||o) sy} BulieAoD
— Jojoauiq ‘1oW aJe 80IAISS SIY} JO SBAI08I[QO By} 1BY) 8Jnsus uaJp|iyo
ol e Ainde( 0} 9oe[d Ul S|0JIUOD 8U} JO MBIASI ||N} B 8] |IIM SIY L Buyess-wnjAse peiuedwoosoeun
wawdojpnsq
» yoddng
ssauisng
— Jooaliqg "©0IAJISS Y} 4oy JaisiBad 3Si 8yl UIYIM S|0J1u0D AdY 8yl , Bunsey
oL 2 Ainde( jo Bupsel uo Buisnoo) Upne peseq YsU B aq (M SiyL | JeisiBas ysu [ejuswipedsp — SAD
sheq | Jeuenp ETTe) adoog 8111 upny

:901M9g s,9|doad Buno pue uaipjiy)

01/600z2 ABoiesis pue ue|d Hpny [eusaiuj yeiq — AebuleH jo ybnoiog uopuo-




Page 70

G¢ JO g ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/6002 8bBI9A0D NPNY [BUIBIU| AebulieH el]

8ouBUl{ SAAD

"S[esw |0o0Yyog

pue ‘Alejes pue ylesH

=18 leTo]V]

{AlInoss pue uoljosloid Bleq

‘pund jeouioun

‘lJuswebeuew jossy

ispJooa4 Buiunoook JuswWesINgsi(

Buiyers

‘losuoo Aueebpng

‘d3.1S40 pue suooadsul jooyog
‘uonesiuebio Juswebeuey

:seaJe Buimojjoy syy BuLienod

‘18W 8Je 82IAI9S By} JO SBAI108[q0o BY1 1BY] 84nsus
0} 90e|d U| S|0JJUOD By} JO MBIABI |jN} B 8 [|IM IIpNE 8y |

‘'sesnjdins Jo syousp ebeuew o} Ayjigeu) -
pue juswebeuew [ejoueul syenbspeur jo AlosIH -

/Sieyoes} -8pnjoul
pesH Sjooyos | IUNOOOE Ojul Usye] SJ01oe ] ‘swwelboid ypne sjooyos
0. -1 [enpiAIpu| ay1 bunejdwoo uj ueye; st yoeoudde paseq ysu sjooyos Atewid
:owweiboid 1upny sjooyog
‘Sjuswabuese buiuodals pue BullOJUO|N e
pue {|o41uo0 pue juswebeuew 196png e
‘uoisinoud
90IAJISS PUB S]10BJIIUOD JO MBINSJ PUB BULIONUOIN e
{$985800.d |BIIBJOI PUB JUSLLISSOSSY o
{SO0IAIBS SUOIXBUUOD) oy}
Ul peAjoAUl suoltesiueblo 4oy sesseooud uosiel| e
‘seunpeoold pue Aojjod ‘uoijeluswinooq e
suswalinbal
Aioiniels pue [e20] yum soueldwio) e
uoIsnjoul pue 'SOAI109[q0 |041U0D pue
spJepuels seaJe Buimojo) auy Bueaod ‘saijiwe; aisy) pue ajdoad
sheq | 1suenp weln adoog 8|1 upny

01/6002 ABajesis pue ue|d HpNy [eusaiu} yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 71

G¢ o og ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bBI9A0D JPNY [BUIBIUl ABbuLeH Yeiq

00¢ felo}
‘papinoid poddns sy} 81eUIPIO-0D
0} Wes} sdueUl} SAAD 8Ul yim sslell jim apn "sjooyos
[enpiAlpul  je  ueMeuepun Buleq Miom SISINH 8yl
mn_>wo\%“mom9 01 Joud SIouIBA0B pue SI9OIO0 SOUBUY ‘SIBYOES} PESH
peal .sjooyos | (SIO0UDS Joj Buiuresy pue eouejsisse Buiobuo epinoid sjooyog
0] 8 p-1 [enpiAIpul ueid }pne oyl Ul pepnoul useq BABY S82INoseYy Aewud - yJopm AOSIApY SISINA
‘lemauaJ 1o} anp st 4500
WwioJy 81eoliued SISING eul aleym SISINS Aionjels sy
yim aouedwod panuijuod uleusdse 0} LISIA B apnjoul
[IIM SIOM ‘S|O0YDS AUBpuUODSS JUBASIS) 10} ‘Alleuoilippy
aoueUl SdAD
/Siayoeay "Sjooyos
peaH sjooyos | AMepuooss Joj swwelboid upne syl sulwielep 01 (dn mojjo4 SISINA
0/ -1 [enpiAIpU| pasn S| ‘sjooyos Asewlld Jo) se ‘yoeosdde paseq Msu Puipnjoul) sjooyog Aiepuoosg
(SISN4)
S|00yoS Ul piepuelg uswebeueiy [eioueul{ Alolniels
Byl UM 9ouel|dwoD ulepadse 01 S|ooyds 0} NISIA B
apN|ouUl OS|E [IIM YoM ‘sjooyos Arewrid 4o} ‘Ajjeuoiippy
sAeq Jepenp slD adoog 9111 Upny

01/600¢ AbBajens pue ue|d Hpny [eusalu] Yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Page 72

Gg Jo ¢ ebed

60-£0-LE 0L/600¢ 8bBI9A0D HPNY [BUIBiU| ABbulieH yeiq

Gl [4

SOOINSS
Hnpy - av

‘siapinoud
80IAJ8S pUEB 8JIAISS JO MOIABS pue Buloyuolpy e
‘abeyoed aJeo areudoidde jo Juswussassy e

{(Bupjew uoISIOBP puB 90UBISJUO0D
osed Buipnpoul) spssu  juSID JO JUSLUSSOSSY e
‘sfelagal jo Buiusalos pue Buiploosy e
Sisu e Ajienusiod ale oym synpe JoO UOIIeDyIIUSp| e
:seaJe BUIMOJ|0) BY} MBIABI |[IM
9 “1oW aJe 82IAIBS SIY} JO SOAIIDS[go ay) 1ey) aJnsus
0} @oe[d Ul S|OJJUOD B} JO MBIABI [N} B 8g |IIM SIYL

YljeaH [ejusin

Gl €

ABarenis
Bujuoissiwwon

- av

‘syuswabuelie buipodal pue GulOlUO e
pue {j0J1u09 pue Juswsbeuew 196png e
‘SJopinoid 921AI8S 0] SJuBWIAe e
‘uoisinoud
99IAJ8S pUE SJULBIID JO MBIASA pue BULIOHUOIN e
‘slepinoid soinies
10} sessaooud juswiuiodde pue Buuspus] e
{sainpaoold pue Aojjod ‘uoijeiuswINoo(g e
sjuswalinbai
Ajoinieis pue [eo0] yum souedwo) e
:S8A1199(qOo 1043Uu00 pue seate Buimol|o) sy} Bulienoo
‘19U aJe 921AISS SIY} JO SBAI108[qO 8yl 1Byl 8Jnsus
0} 920®|d Ul S|041UOD BY] JO MBIABI [N} B ] |IIM SIYL

sjoBIUOD aJe) Aeljioiwog

0L [

ainynoH
pue saueIql
‘Bujuies]

Hnpy - av

‘6002 Joquisides
ul pejeldwiod eq (iim ypne siy} ey pesodoid si
"90IAISS Y} 4O} J81siBal YS9yl UIYUM S|0J1u00 Aay eyl
Jo Bunsel uo Buisnooy lpne paseq Ysu e 8q |IIM Sy

Bunsa] Jsisibay ysiy — ainyn)
pue seleqi ‘Buiuies ynpy

] 4

S80INIBS
[euoljeaIo8y
- av

"600¢ AInr/oune
ul pele|dwod g |Im upne syl jeys pesodoid si Y
"90IAJSS 8U} 40} Jo1s16a S 8yl UIYHM S|0JJU0D Aay 8y}
jo Bunssel uo Buisnooy) Hpne paseq MsuU B ag |IMm SiyL

Bunse] Jeisibay Msiy — (eunsieT]
Buipnjoul) sedIAI8S [BUOIEBI08Y

shkeq | 1spend

wslD

adoog

9111 ¥pny

01/600¢2 ABaiens pue ueld upny [eussiu} yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuoT

1S901AI19S AJlunwiwio) pue ainyn) ‘synpy



G¢E Jo g¢ ebed 60-£0-LE 01/600¢ 9bBI9A0D JIPNY [BUIBIU| ABBULEBH YBIq

09 [elo|

Page 73

‘'syuswiabuesie buipodal pue Buliojuopyy e
pue {|0J1u00 pue Juswsebeuew 196png e
‘ss8004d uoleljIoUoo8l
puUe 8WoodUl JO U0oI199||00 ‘sabieyo
BuiAidde pue Builes Jo} S|0JJUOD PUE WBISAS e
‘siapinoid 9oines 0] sjusihed e
‘stepinoud 8oinIeS
[BUISIXS 4O} $8550004d 10BAU0D pue Bulepus] e
‘sainpaooud pue Aojjod ‘uoijeluswinooq e
sluswalinbau
Aioinjels pue [ed0| yum aoue|dwo) e

S82IAIBS :S9AI108[qO |041U0D pue sease Buimojjo} syl BulieAod
[euoljealosy ‘oW aJe 82IAJSS SIU] JO SBAI10a[go 8yl 1Byl ainsus U01109]|00 pue uoneisush
oL e -ay 01 8or|d Ul S|0J1U0D BY} JO MaIABY [N} B 8] ||IM SIY ]| aWIOoUl — S8J1U8Y) 8INsieT]

‘losuon Aelebpng e
pue {paAledal SOOIAISS JO) SJUBWARY e

01/600¢ Abajenis pue uejd ypny jeusaiu] yeaq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo]



Page 74

Gg Jo £¢ ebed

60-£0-L€ 01/600¢ @belano) ypny [euseiu) AebuueH yeiq

G¢

elolL

ot

S80INIBS
Jaquisiy
1% 4O pesH

‘sjuswisbueLe buipodal pue BULIOHUO

pue ‘ssaiboid jo meinal pue Bulojuo

{sassaoo0ud jeusal pue uoneolddy

{sainpseooud pue Aoljod ‘uolyeiuswinoog
‘syuswialinbas Auoiniels yum aouedwo) e

:S8AI109[q0 j041U0D

pue seaJe Buimoljo) syl BusAod ‘1aWl aJe oINS SIY]

J0 saAnoalgo sy} 1eyl ainsus 01 8oeid Ul S|0JIU0D By]

JO MBIABI ||N} B 8Q |IIM SIYL "M8IASJ J0o} ALoyine JUBAs|a.

8y} 01 psem Jisy} Bunosye Jsjjew e Usjel 01 8|ge SI

Awioyine sy} Jo Jaquisiy Aue ‘|iig YijesH Ul JUSWSAJOAU]

91|qNd PUB 1UBWUIBAOL) [BO0T 8y} JO Ued sy

uooY 01 j1en Anunwiwo)

Gl

SO0IAI8S

paJjeys
€ O pesH

"UOIIBIIOUO0D3) WBISAS
pue ‘suoioNpap jjoJAed e
{Aed 01 spuswisnipe ¥ suoljeueA ‘sjusiied e
{SIBABST] pUR SISUBIS MBN e
'SpJoosl
pue suonoesueld} jo Ajubajul g Aljigeley e
{sainpaooud pue Aojjod ‘uoljeiuswinooqg e
sjuswaiinbal Aloiniels yum soueldwo) e
:seaJe Buimojjoy syl Buusnoo
s|041u09 JueolIUbIS pue A8y Y1oq jo Buiisel pue
‘uoleuswinoop Buipn|oul pue ‘suoliepusLILLIODa) pne
snoirnaid jo dn-mojjoy Buipnjoul ‘upne walsAs jaAs| YbiH

(upne jenuue) waeisAs eioueuly
Aoy} — sasuadxg % |joJAed

sheq

JepEenD welD

adoog

9111 Upny

Juswdojsna( jeuonesiuebiQ pue ajdoad — aAlINd9X] JBIYD

01/600¢ Abajeilg pue ue|d Hpny [eusdiu] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuot




Page 75

G¢ J0 p¢ ebed

60-£0-LE 01/600¢ 9beI19A0D JiPNY [EUIBIU| ASbUlEH YRIq

SeIIUNWIWOD

‘1ouNo) ayy Aq pepuny suonesiuebio
Arejunjon Jo sjdwes e 01 SHSIA 8pn|oul |IIM Jipne ay |
‘syuswsbuene Buipodel pue Buloluop
pue {joJjuod pue wewebeuew jobpng
‘AuaAlBp 821AI8S Jo BuLioyuoN
‘ssepinoid 9o1Mes 0} sjusiAed
‘s1apinoid 8o1IAIes [eulaIX®
10} sasse004d Judwissasse pue uoleolddy
‘sainpaooid pue Aoljod ‘uoneiuswnoo@ e
‘syuswiadinbau
Aioniels pue [Boo] yum aoueldwor) e
:SOA1108[q0 |041U0D pue sease Buimoljo) eyl BulieAod
‘1aW aJe 92IAISS SIU} JO SBAII08lgo ay) 1BY) 8insus

[ ]

0z e Jajeg Jo pesH 0} 99e|d U] S|0J3UOD Y} JO MBIA8I |IN} B 8] ||IM SIY | suonesiuebi Asejunjon
‘uoljewolul Juewebeuew pue Buipodsy e
‘sysenbeu Buojuow pue Buisseoold e
‘o4 pue ydq - sisenbai jo Buipioosy e
sjuswaiinbal Aioniels ypum aoueldwo) e
sainpaooid pue Aoyjod ‘uoneiuswindoq e
:S9A13098[Q0 j05U0D
pue seale Buimoj|jo} ay} BulisAoD ‘oW ale 8oIAIeS
SIU} JO SOAII08IQ0 By} eyl ainsus 01 8oe|d Ul S|0J1U0D
Byl JO MaIASJ [N} B 3] [lIMm sIy] "S]}OY uol109]0Id
Aoljod Ble(] pue UoljewlIou] JO WOpaal4 ayl 0} buijees
® 9ouBWIOUad | sauUinbus Jo) sjuswaiinbal [B20] pue uole|siBa) Jueas|al
JO pesH jJo spuswaiinbai sy} Buizesw st 1DUNOYD By} JBY] 8INsSus
oL 2 ajeisodion 0} 90k|d Ul S|0JJUOD By} JO MBIABI ||N} B 8] [IM SIY | "sossaooud Aunbus Aioinjelg
92IAIBG JO "90IAISS 9y} 10} SI9)SIDaI Y¥SU BY} UIYUM SJ0JIU0D Ay 8yl
0]8 14 speaH - Oddd | Jo Bunsel uo Buisnooy ypne peseq dsuU e oq (M Siy| Bunsey Je1sibal ysu — Oddd
skeq | 1auenp walo 8doog 9|11 Upny

:uonesunwwo) pue sdiysiouped ‘@ouewiopad ‘Aoljod - 8AlINoexg Jeiyd

01/6002 ABajesnig pue ueld Hpny |eulaju] Yyeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 76

G¢ Jo Gg ebed

60-80-LE 01/6002 9bEI8A0D HPNY [RUISIU] A9BULBH YRIQ

09

jelol

Ol

Aaijod
R aouewIOpad
Jo pesH
a1eJodion

‘suinial Aioiniels Buipnjoul
‘syuswebursie Buipodsals pue Bupojuopy e
‘5955900.d UOIIBOIJLIBA PUB UOI08|j00 Ble(] *
‘seinpaoo.d pue Adljod ‘uoneusawWINOOg e
sjuswalinbal
[eoo] pue Aioinjels yum aouejidwo) e

:SOAI300[qO [0J1U0D pue sease Buimoljo) sy} Buenoo

‘1oL 8JB 92IAI8S SIY} JO SOAI08[gO 8y} 1ey) 8Insus
01 9or|d Ul S|0J1U0D BU} JO MBIASI [N} B 8] |IIM SIYL

sJojeolpul oueuLIopsd
jeuoneu - Ayjenb eieq

ol

14

SauUNWWO)D
Jajeg Jo pesH

‘spJe) buiseyoind Jo esn e

pue ‘sbupjoog |eael|

saseyoind ysed

‘s1epJQ Jo buisiey

‘saunpeooid Buuspus) pue Buijie| 10e/U0D
‘sialiddng jo uoljesiilusp| e

:seaje BUIMO|j0) Y} JBA0D [IIM JipNe SiY] "SpJed

e & o o

Buiseyoind jJo esn pue sbupjooq |eAes ‘Buiseyoind
Jo} yseo Aped jo asn ‘sieplQ eseyoind jo Buisiel
‘sjo11ddns penoidde jo asn sy} 0} psebas yum Jejnoiued
Ul ‘s,0SD Yum aouelidwiod [eieusb JeA00 |iim Jipne siyL

s8jnJ seinpadoid aoueUl
pue 10BJ11U0D YiMm aoueldwod
- juswebeuepy pooyinoqybiaN

sheq

Japenpd

jualin

adoog

9111 Upny

01/6002 ABajens pue ue|d 1pny [eussiu] yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuoT




Y Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Counci

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2008/09 Quarter 4

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@bharingey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the fourth quarter by
the Internal Audit Service in completing the annual audit plan and any responsive
fraud investigation work. In addition, the work of the Council’'s personnel division in
supporting disciplinary action taken across all departments by respective council
managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the fourth quarter 2008/09.

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.




Page 78

3.3 That the Audit Committee considers whether any further action is necessary to
address outstanding priority 1 recommendations.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 31%' March 2009 and focuses on:

» Progress by Deloitte and Touche (internal auditors) on internal audit coverage
relative to the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised

e Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with special
attention given to priority 1 recommendations

e Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team, including
information in respect of disciplinary action taken.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management Unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and Human
Resources.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no specific legal issues which arise out of the report, or the
proposed recommendations.

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 79

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1The Chief Financial Officer notes that there are no direct financial implications arising
from this report and also suggests that the targeted work outlined in paragraph 16.2 in
ensuring that greater focus is placed on implementing Priority 1 recommendations should
also reduce the potential for any negative financial outcomes arising.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors are consulted in the production of individual internal audit reports and
follow up programmes and their comments included in the final report which is
circulated in accordance with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B — In-house Team - investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C — Council-wide disciplinary information

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 80

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate
Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between
the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Ref. | Performance Indicator 4™ Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1 Audit work Completed vs. Planned | 100% 95% 95%
programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 5.00 3.88 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 17.6 weeks | 14.5weeks | 12 weeks
investigations (2008/09 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 99% 95% 95%
implemented at follow up (based
on position as at 31/03/09)

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the fourth quarter of 2008/09 to date is detailed at
Appendix A. In this quarter, a total of 22 projects have been finalised, including 13 school
visits to assess compliance with the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS).
All 13 schools achieved the required outcomes against FMSiS and will be receiving their
certificate from the Department for Children, Schools and Families.

16.2 The programme of planned follow up audits is also reported at Appendix A. The work of
internal audit and the new reporting requirements to both the Audit Committee and Cabinet,
which receive details of all outstanding Priority 1 recommendations as part of the 2008/09
corporate performance reporting arrangements, have ensured that managers take greater
responsibility for implementing recommendations. Details of the outstanding Priority 1
recommendations from 2004/05 to 2008/09 are shown in Table 2 below.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 81

Table 2
Year Number of Number of Implementation Target
Priority 1 recommendations rate
recommendations | fully implemented
or addressed at
follow up

2008/09 12 10 83% 95%
2007/08 20 18 90% 95%
2006/07 39 38 97% 95%
2005/06 7 6 86% 95%
2004/05 1 0 0% 95%
Total 79 72 91% 95%

16.3 At the previous Audit Committee, further details of all outstanding recommendations
reported when the follow up work was undertaken were provided. Since July 2007, work has
been ongoing, in conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, to ensure that Directors were
aware of the required actions necessary and from 2008/09, the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations has been included in the Pl reporting requirements for all departments.

16.4 Directors have been kept informed of progress at all stages and Internal Audit are satisfied
that managers are taking appropriate action to address the issues raised in the original
recommendations. Appendix A details the current position in relation to all outstanding
recommendations.

17. In-house Team - Fraud investigation/lrregularities

17.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall
outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-house
Team during 2008/09 and any which were brought forward from 2007/08.

17.2 Within the fourth quarter, 6 new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation, and 3
cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The cases
investigated during the fourth quarter covered allegations involving fraudulent right to buy
and working whilst off sick. The three cases completed in quarter four took 17 weeks on
average to complete. The increased timescales were as a result of one case being co-
ordinated between another borough and the police. Internal Audit work closely with officers
from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as
quickly as possible. During 2008/09 to date, the average length of time taken to investigate
each case was 14.5 weeks.

17.3 The council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on
the Council website, by which members of the public can report instances of suspected
fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these referrals. During quarter
four, seven referrals in relation to new allegations were made via the council’'s email
reporting facility. Of these, five related to housing benefit/council tax issues and were

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 82

referred to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team for further review. Two referrals
were in relation to housing issues and were referred to the Strategic Housing Service for
further review. Follow up discussions with Strategic Housing Services to assess the
information received conformed that no further audit action was required. No referrals were
made via the telephone reporting facility.

17.4 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In 2008/09,
there has only been one referral for investigation as reported in the previous quarter. The
council has not lost any money, as the fraud was detected and the cheque was not cashed.
This is a substantial reduction on previous years’ figures. Improvements in procedures,
including the introduction of ‘positive pay’ whereby the council's banking team receives
information on cheques before they are cleared, and new cheque security measures have
reduced the opportunity for attempted fraud in this area.

18. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

18.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the fourth
quarter of 2008/09. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by

the Council’'s Human Resources business unit in line with council statistics reported
elsewhere.

18.2 Improved processes, monitoring, management information and liaison between service
departments and HR has been in place during 2008/09. These actions has enabled the
Council to reduce the average number of days per suspension case by approximately 40%,
from 104 days in the first quarter to 64 days in the fourth quarter.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6



Page 83

V XION3ddV

600 [Hdy
"PIT UPNY JBUIdIU] 10103S d1[qnd SYdNO [ 29 O[]

AdSuLIeH JO y3noiog uopuory
600¢/800¢

110day Jpny [ewadduy § J9%1eN)
JNpny [eurdyuj



Page 84

60/800C Hoday  1a1rend) — 1pny [eurau] Ae3uLiey jo y3nolog uopuor]

Aypgisuodsay jo Juswelels

€

62 60/800¢ dn mojjo
4 80/.00Z dn mojjo4
Gl /0/900Z dn mojjo4
€l 90/500¢ Pue G0/700Z dn Mmojjo
Ll SjusWssassy SISINA
[ :60/800¢ ¥ Jeyenpd - Alewwng ssaibold jipny
L Arewwng aAnnosxg
ade

SUET oY)

V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOdIY LIANY ATHILHEVND - LIANV TYNAYILNI 311107130



Page 85

L 60/800C 1oday § 1011en() — upny [eureju] KaSurrey jo ySnotog uopuor|

suolnepuswiwosal aonoeld 1S8q J0/pue Siajiew Jouiu - € Auoud
uonoe Juswabeuew [BD0| JO} SUOITBPUSWILIOIA) JBYI0 - 2 Auoud
Juswabeuew Jo1Uas JO uonuale ay} Jo) sensst Jofew - L Aol

:sauobajeo Bumoyjoy ay} 0} Buipsodoe pasijiold ale suoiepuUSWWOal INO ‘JSpUIWS) B Sy

"99IWIWOY) Npny 0} podas Alewwins ayy ui papnjoul ase sbunel
aoueinsse ,ou, Jo paywi, Buiaeoal sypne asoyy Ajuo ‘Abajesis Buipodal auy jo ped sy siseq Ajyiuow e uo spodal
upne pasijeul jje jo Alewwns pajielap B YIm ssjiwwio) ipny oy} Jo siaquisiy sapiroid AbBejesis Buruodal pasibe inQ

"9a)lWWO) HpNY 8y} 0} papodal pue panssi St Jodal jeul) sy} swi) a8y} Ag s190140 j1ouno) Aq pajuswasidwi usaq
aney Apeaije Aew suoljepuswiwodas pue ‘Jpne sy} JO awi} ay} je swalsAs oy} Jo sniels ay} 1o8jjal sajge; payoene ay|

‘spodal Jpne [eul [enplAIpul 8U} Ul pajielap Ajiny
ale ‘uola|dwod 10} sulpeap 3y} pue JadIyo ajqisuodsal ayl Buipnjoul ‘suoilEpUSLILIOIS] By} SSaIPPE O] SUONoe SISO
‘poalbe usaq aaey podal siyy ulyum paybiybly sossauyeam [0Jju0d Aue SSSIppe 0} SUOHEPUSLILODaI ||y "Panssl
Buieg podal jeuly ay) o} Joud passnasip ale sandsip AUE pue ‘SISO |I0UNOD YIM pasibe ale suoijepuswuwossl ||y

"Jsenbai uodn spodal ypne Jno jJo $a1doJ [Ny UM papinoid aq Osje [Im SaRILILLIOD 8y} JO
Slequsi\ "aalilWwo) HpNY 8y} JO siaquisiy 0} siseq Ajyjuow e uo pspiaold si yoiym uonjewojul Alewwuns ay) Jayjeboy
smelp podal ay] -uoljewlojul 10} papnoul st sBuipulj ipne aouelnsse pajiwl 8yl Jo Alewiwns pajiejap aJ0W Y ‘SMaIA8I
}pne [euldjul Jo 8sIN02 ay} Buunp payuspl ussaq SABY UDIUM |1oUN0d By} pue sjuswipedap jenpiaipul Buioe) sysi
Aoy au} wybnybiy oy paubisap osje si podal siy} JO Jewloy ay| ‘ewli} Jano psbeuew Buieq ale sysl MOY UO UOleLIojUl
UM siaquisiy apinoid [jIM yoiym YJom swiaisAs Aay 10} [9ABI] JO UOIDSIIP 3y} JO UONBJIpUl Ue SaAlB pue aoueinsse
[ellUBISgNS IO ||N} POASIYOE SABY UOIUM Seale 9SOy} uo uoljewusojul sapinosd podas ay| "obels |euly 18 mou aie yoiym
spodal jje jo sjielop Buipnjoul Jeak [epueul 60/800Z SY} Jo) ajIWIWO) PNy ay} o} Hodas Jauenb yunoy ino si siy|

uonoanposuj
Alewuing dANNIIXY

V XION3ddV 60/800C LYOdIY 1LIANV ATHILHEVND - 11NV TVNY3LNI 3111073a



Z 60/800¢ Hoday { 1a1en) — pny [eusdu] AsSuLiey Jo ySnotog uopuory
aoueinssy
0 € € VIN fenuelsans | 60/€0/61 | 800z isnbny Juswabeuey Josloid yied synuiseyn
0 0 0 P lin4 60/€0/9L | 600 Arenuer Jabpa [eseusn pue Buiunoody
L g g V/N pajI 60/€0/ZL | 800Z isnbny Juswiaindold sleuajey buiues|o
0 Z 0 v/N Y/N 80/€0/2) | 6002 Aenuer Aianooay Jsisesiq BOINID
0 € 0 VIN |enueIsqns | 60/€0/90 | 800Z 4890100 |  Aunoag pue juawabeuely uoewLIO|
b € 0 < lenuelsans | 60/20/6L | 800z dunr sainpadold sjuiejdwo)
b g 0 V/N [enuesans | 60/20/60 | 800Z 1840100 uoneolddy aseqejeq PHOM-|
0 g L V/IN V/N 60/20/60 | 800Z 4200100 sishjeuy de9 [0d
‘payyisseo
usag Jou  8ABYy  Uoiym
uoIsSiIWOoY Hpny pue DA
AQ pesiel suoiEpuUBWIWINdal = 800¢
O Jo sjielop sepnpul Aewwing 0 0 0 jepuelsgng 60/v/6 JOQUIBAON Juswabeueyy Ainseas]
e £ 2 b
o)) Hoday upny
© sjusWIWoy (Auioud) [9ABl]L JO | [9AR)] B Jeuiy o 3L ¥pny
a suofepuawiwoday uonoallqg | ouelnssy | jo ajeq ajeq
o JaquinN

‘Jessusb ul senuoyine [eso] Jo Aebuuen o} oyoads Jay)ie smalnal jeuolippe Jo Led se pasiel
SUOIIEPUSWILIODS) UO UOHBWIOMUI UM S1aquisy apinoid 0} suop uead sey Siy] "papnjoul useq aAey lipne juswabeueyy
Ainseal] ey} jo sjiejep ‘pspinoid sem Bunes jepueisgns, e ybnoyje ‘podel SIYF UIYIAA "UOHBULLIOMUI SISQUIS|N
Jo} pspirold osje aie sBujes eoueinsse |enueisqns, Jo Jind, 9AI909I JOoU Op YOIYM S}ipne [|B JO SSLeWwWNS pajiela(

“98JIWIWIOY JIPNY By}

0} pauodal Ajsnoinaid jou asoy) aie pjoq ul pajybiybiy sipne ay] ‘sapwwo) Hpny 8y} 0} papodal pue panssi si podai
leuty sy awiy ay} Ag sisoio 1ouno) Aq psjuswaldwi usaq aney Apesije Aew sUOEPUBLILIODSI U] Jey) psiou a4 jshw
}] ‘'Hpne ay} Jo swi} ay; Je swa)sAs oy} Jo snjels oy pue Japenb siy} ul paje|dwod sipne sy} Ino sias ojqe) Buimojjoy ay |

V XION3ddV

:60/800Z ¥ 18uenp - Auewwing ssaiboud jpny

60/800¢ LAOdA™ LIANV ATHILYVND - 11AdNV TVNYILNI 31110713a




Page 87

¢ 60/800C 1oday ¢ 1ouen) — 1pny [ewru] Aa3uLiey Jo y3nosog uopuos]

U99(Q SABY SUOIEPUSWWIOIA] g| BalE SIY] Ul UOISSILUWOY
}pny ay} pue DA Aq pala|diod SMaIASI 8y} JO JNsal e sy

‘walsAs Bununoooe
dVS 9y} pue wa}sAs yoa10607 sy} usamiaq Ino paliied
Buiaq suonelouodas Jeinbal Jo aouspine SEM alay| e

pue ‘pajdwes saseo ||e jsowje ul Aep
awes ay} uo ‘Aejop wnwiuiw yum waisAs yooa0607
3y} U0 popJodal aiom SBUIMOLIOQ pue SJUSWIISSAU| e
‘souewlopad
MOJ} USED J9U S JIduno) Byl JO  uolesiwixew
ayl yum jsisse 0] siseq Jejnbas e uo psonpoid
S| uopewloju] |eloueUly JeY} SOUSPINS SeM alay] e
‘800¢ 4900100 Ul ybij 0} swed sisio sy}
S0UIS SJUSWISAAU] Ulepad uo paoejd usaq aAeY SHWIT e
‘Juswasaibe
JuswyseAul ue 0] saipyediajunod  Jo SSauUIyUom
Jpaio oy} Mues O} pasn aie sjsieoads Bunes UpaID e
‘seinpadoid pasibe yym aoueploooe
ul SISeq |enuue ue uo [I2Uno) fin4 pue jBuigen yjoq
Ag psmainals si ABojeng juswabeuepy Ainsesi] ay| e

:MOJ3q Paj}SI| 818 YOIyM Jo awos ‘Ajliojoe;sies
Buneiado aq 0} paAIBSUO SIJ9M SOJJUOD JO JBquinu v

‘(Bupodal
Buipnppur)  uopelsibs;  ywm  soueldwon e

:sease Buimojjoy
3} ISA0D 0] USyEeHSpPUN SBM MIOM PNy |euidlu|

"$80IN0SAI pue awWll} SIao1jo
Jo asn ay} 0] piebas yym aAjoaYyS jsow sy oq
0} paiapisuod si yoeoidde siyj ‘ssaooid Buipodas
fewuou 8y} jo Ued se pomsinsl pue passaippe
lle aie Asyl ley) ainsus 0} pue ssauaj}a|dwos
loj uodas uno jo ped se papnpul  usaq
aney spodal om} 8y} Ui pasiel suolepuUSWWOIal
8yl ‘-swweiboid dn mojo} Jno jo ped se
‘pasiel suoljepuswiwiodal ay} Jo uonejuswajdu
M3IABI M Bm  ‘uoiippe  up  Cwaylr  Aq
pasies sanssi oy} JUNO2oE Ojul saye} osle Bunel
doueinsse Ino jng ‘jipne pauueld auinos 8y}
Ul UoISS|WWIo) HpNY 8y} pue DAA Ag usyeuspun
Yiom eyl sjeolidnp jou pip Jpny  [euislul

‘ow
swes ay} Je UoISS|IWWo) Jpny ay} Aq uayepspun
osje sem saljlioyine [edo] UyIM juswsbeuew
Ainsesll jJo malnal Y 'g00Z JoqwienoN Ul

su | (DMd) siedooD-asnoyialjepp 991id Ag usyepnapun L
[epueisqng | 1© SoAi103[qo walsAs 8y} Jo awos Ind yYolym sessaudeom | Sem  ‘OalNdax3 JaIyD 9yl Aq pauoissiwwod | Juewabeuepy
) ale aioy} ‘walshAs punos Ajeoiseq e SI ausyl SpUAA | ‘Sluswsbuelse juswabeuew Ainseal) JO MoIAS) Y Ainseau]
SADUNOSTH ALVHOIHOD |
dUBINSSY _ ; ssuipuyy Aay/smyelg b adoag BB JIpNY
sorIewIwInS pajreld(q
V XIAN3ddV 60/800C LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILHEVND - 1IANV TYNAEILNI 31110713d




Page 88

¥ 60/8007 Hoday 4 Jarend) — npny [euselu] AaguLier jo ySnolog uopuos]

Ajiep e uo suonedunNwwod (,10}08S,) Pajill] SaJIAIeS
Ainseai] 10109g Bumainas o} ssaooid jBWIOL Y e

‘MaIAD1 SIY} Jo ped se 1801 [eloueul JaIyD

8y} pue JsquiB|\ pes| 8y} ussmiaq play o9 pjnoys

sbunesw pue siseq Apapenb e uo pamainal Ajjewio)
aq pinoys AbBsjeng juswabeuelpy Ainseal] ay] e

:Aonjod Juswisanul s jrouno)

8y} jo ued se paje|ndils SpjoyYsaly} Yim palapisuod aq
pINOYS SjusWi}SaAUl JO uoljesjuaduod jeoiydeifosb sy e

‘suonnysul

jo sbunes ypaio ayy uo juspuadsp sywi Auedisjunos
JO Xxujew e Buisn ISpISUOD piNOYS [IDUNOD By e

‘uoisIoap

JusWisaAul 8y} Jo awil ay} 1e eudyud Buipus) wnwiuiw

Jayjo sy} jesw Aay} Jayleym jo ssajpiebas ‘ssiousbe

sBunes npaso Ag yoyepn sbuney 1o yoopno anaieban

uo paoejd ale jey} SUOINNISUI |eBIDUBUL Ul S}SSAUI
} yolym O} JusIXe 8y} JOpISUod pInoys [IouUno) ay| e
;iounog Asbulie 1oy suoepusWIWOdal DA

'ssausle|dwod
Jo} 8J8y pepnpul usaq oABY SuOljepuSWIWOIal By

'9SIN0D 8Np Ul 98IWWOo) PNy 3y} 0} papodal aq |IIm
SIY] "Jom dn mojjo4 8y} jo Hed se asay) jo uonejuswalduwil
Sy} M3IASI |IM 1PNy [BUIBU] "UOISSIWWOYD lipny 8y}
pue OMd AQ pesies suoilepuswiwiodal 3y} 0} papuodsal
pue posaibe aAey JodIYO |elOUBUIH JOIYD pue Boueulq
sjejodio) jo peaH syl -sbunes Awoud o) Buipioooe
suonepuswiwodal 419y} AJSSEO JOoU  pIp  UOISSILIWOD
upny a8yl pue DA JUSWUONAUS |o)U0d 8yl aAoiduwil
0} digy pjnoys sasay} jo uonejuswaldw] (uolssiWwos)
upny) |essusb ur sanioyine [eooj 0} Aldde yoiym jo auu

‘suoljepuswiwoos.
}ipne jeussiul 80/200C 4O dn-mojjo4 e

pue ‘ejep jo Ajundag e
-SJUSLWI]ISSAUI PUEB SUEBO| JO UOHBIIOU0DSY e

'MOJ} YseD Jou "ai UOIjewojul [e1ouBUl e

JdUBINSSY

pue (DMdJ) AsBuueH o) ooads aie yoiym Jo auiu ‘spew
] ; , sSuipuy AN/sniers

‘S]oSSE |IoUN0Y JO UOI03)0I] o
: adodg

BaIR JIpNY

V XION3ddV

60/8002 LHOd3Y LIANV ATIILYVND - LIANV TVYNYILNI 311107130




Page 89

G

60/800T Moday p souend) — upny [eurdu] L38uLieH JO y3noiog uopuos]

abeuew o} Ajjigedes jusioyns Jojpue ayadde ou ©

Jo ‘suonnyisut feioueury yum spuny buioejd
Aq ysu ebeuew 03 ajqe aq 0} AJjigedes pue spjedde o

'sey Jl Jayisym apiosp pjnoys uonesiueblio ay) ‘|oAg)
1saybiy au} 3y ‘pansiyoe aq o} pjalh ayy pue Aypinby pue
Ajinoas usamjaq aouejeq oy} pue s}dadoe )i Ysl JO [9A8)

ay} jnoge }oidxa si uonesiueBblo sy} Jey) 0S Ylomawel)

juswabeuew Ainseal} 8yl }8s pjnoys |1ounod sy

“S31JlI0YINE [ED0] JO} SUOIEPUSWILOID) UOISSILUWOD HPNY

‘siseq Ajlep e uo payoayo

g pjnoys sywij uonesuoyine Ajep yum asueldwon
pue

‘powuopad ag pinoys siseq Ajiep e uo Asuow ongnd
Buiiseaul aje oym asoy) Joj uswipedsp ayy ul pasinbai
soous)adwod pue Sji¥s 8yl Jo malnal Y AlAnoe
Sly} 0} paydepe sysu |eoueuly pausiybley sy pue
uonjesauab swodul Jo 82IN0S B SE |1ounoy) ay} ul Aeid
0} Sey }| 9j0J pasealoul ay} SSISSE 0} usyeuapun aq
pinoys uonouny juswabeuew Ainseal} ay] JO MalAdl Y
110J08S WOl paAIadal adlApe By}

woJy} Apuspuadspur ‘siaoiyo Ag paldde aq ued sy
Apedisjunod jey; os papiodal pue paliuspl 8q pjnoys
s)yueq jo sdnoib usamiaq solouspuadapisiul ay|
‘suolnyisul jenpialpul 0} uey} Jaylel ‘dnob

B Ulyum syueq ©OAI09)j00 8yl 0} jwi Apedisjunod
sund sy} bBulAjdde sspisuod pjnoys |1ounon ay|
:paAISDal 9oIApE

8y} 0} asuodsas sjounon ayy bBunou ‘sjeudoidde
Sloym  ‘SjJuBWWOD  Yypm  Siaoijo  Agq  palapisuod
usagq Sey oSJIApE JO0J09S Jeyl odjeljsuowep 0}
pautejuiew aq pjnoys Hoj 10 pJod3ai B pue pajuswinoop
g pjnoys ssao0lid SIY} paysijgelse aq pinoys siseq

AIULBINSSY

ssuIpul} Aay/Sme)s

adoag

B Jipny

V XIAN3ddV

60/800C LYOd3N LIANV ATHILHEVND - LIANV TVYNAEILNI 311107134




Page 90

9 60/8007 1oday § 1o1ren() — upny [eurou] A9SuLie Jo ySnolog uopuor|

[e00] 1ey} pasiubodal S| I 1ey} pue Jes|d ale SISSIApe
[eUISIXD JO S8|0J 8y} Jeyl ainNsus p|noys [louno)d ayj
‘spunj
usodop 03 aleym Buipiosp 810j8q pPasn S| uUOlEWIoU
jo abues js9Ny By} JeYl 2INSUS pJNOYS |1DUN0) Byl
‘Sysl1 aonpas Aew pasu
Jo peaye Asuow Buimosiog jou Jo ‘sueo} jo JuswAedsl
Ajjea 1ey) sjou pue ‘palapisuod si spunj Buibeuew Jo}
suondo jo abuel ||n} By} Jey} aINsus pinoys |1ouno) ayL
‘uonouny Juswabeuew
Ainseal} ay} 1o} 9|qejunodde ag pue AjoAljoays asiulnIos
0} o|qe ale Asy} jey} os paures; ase Asuow oygnd jo
diyspiemals ayj 1o} Ajjigejunoooe aaey oym saljioyine
JO SIBqUIBN Pajoale ay} ey} 2InNsus pjnoys |1ouno) ay |
‘90IApE |BUJISIXD
pue uonewlojUl O} SS900B aAey pue s|Is ybu a8y}
aAeY PINOYS HEIS "POAJOAUI SYSU BY) YIM S)einSuswiuwod
‘pooinosas  Aejeudoidde  si uonouny  juswabeuew
Ainseas; 8y} ey} aINsSud pNoOYs  jIounod  dyj
‘uny
Buiag sysu jo abuel ynj oy} uo sajepdn senbal a8l
sloquis|)y pajosle Jeyl alnsus pjnoys |1ounod ayj
‘Alejnbas pasoyuow ale  ©
pue ‘Ajioyine ayy Aq
pajdeooe Buieq o1059q ‘@aIWIWOD Jpne ayl Ajlensn
‘@apIwwoo 1sijeoads e Ag j1lelap Ul pasiuinios aie o
‘aonjoeid Jo 8pod Y4dID PasIAal 8Y} MOjjo) ©
:sa101j0d
wawabeuew Ainseas} jeyj ainsud pinoys |1ouno)d ayl
‘20140 Juswabeuep
199 s uawuianob N ayl yum spuny aoejd pesisul
Esocm pue ‘1oxiew ay} U spuny Buoeld jo ysi Y}

UBINSSY

sauIpulj AdY/SNJe)g

adodg

vaIe Jipny

V XION3ddV

60/800C LHOd3Y 11ANV ATYILHVND - 1INV TVNY3LNI 31110713d




Page 91

i 60/800C Hoday  1oprend) — upny [euidu] Lefuriey jo ygnoiog uopuor

pue
‘@0In1eg ay) Ag pesn Jeyddns ayy Joj aoejd ul ssasoid
Buioyuow 10eU0D |BWIO) PUB PSJUSWNOOP OU SI BJay| e
‘90INBg
ay} Aq pasn Jsayddns jusuno syl ioj pajojdwiod sem
$S9004d JOpUS) B JBey} MOUS O} SOUSPIAS OU SBM dJay] e
‘901AJ8G 3y} ulypm ssaooud Buuoyuow
196pnqg pue Bumes 19bpnq jewsoy ou AJuaino S| aiay] e

:9pNjoul puUNoy} a1oMm
S9SSOUNEOM SI9Um Seale Y| sl Je saanoalqo wolshs
ayl Ind yolym sassauxeam ale alay)l Wa)sAs syl UIYIAA

"PAYSIA SB)IS INOJ 8y}
le Ajainoss psiols alem Xo0]s sjeusjew Buiuespp ay| e
pue
'sasodind Aiaalep 1o} ‘B)is 9y} JO sassalppe oyl sjels
Ajes)o siosinedng sy Ag pais|duwioo sjeays Jepio, ay| e
11921 9oueUI4 UIWPY BY)
Aq ‘Aed o} uonesuoyine Jo asuspiAe se padwels usaq
SABY 0} USaS a1am pajoolas ojdwes sy} Ul SSDIoAUI By | e

"J0JJU0D o018

pue Buueaijap pue Buuspip
‘sjutod Asaniap Jo uoneoiuap)
-ebesn pue Buipuads jo Buiioyuopy

‘(s1e1jddns jo uonosjes

:MOjaq pajsi| aie ydiym ‘AjLiojoesnes | Buipnjou) sjuswabuele juswaInoold e 60/800Z
Bunesado ©q 0} panIESqO SJoM S[OJUOD JO JagUNu Y .
‘Sjuswialinbal |elsjew Jo uoneouap| e JUBWIN20Ig
psywI WSl Je sanoalqo welsAs ‘seale BuIMOj|0} By} Ul JUBWIUOIIAUS sjeusje
T 9y} Ind 0} yoNns dJe S|OJUOD JO WSISAS BY) Ul SOSSOUNEINN | |OJJUOD B} SSOSSE O} USYELSPUN SEM HIOM upny Buiues|n
INHNTHNO0Ud - SHOUNOSTH ALVIOJH0D
‘spuny
9soy} jo uonesedas Buweyjurew sjiym ‘spuny uoisuad
UHM Jo sanuioyine usamiaq saainosal Buueys Aq jybnos
8le 9|edS JO SOIOUO0ID Jey) SINSUS PINOYS |IoUN0Y) 8y e
pue spew suoisioap J0) S|qeIUNOIJE Uiewal sallloyne
JdUBINSSY sauIpuly A/SMIE)Ig adoog vaIE JIpny

V XION3ddV

60/8002 L¥Od3Y LIANV ATIILAVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 3LLI013a




Page 92

8 : 60/800C Hoday { Jo1end) — Npny [ewIAu] Lo3uLiey Jo ySnotog uopuor]

‘Juswebeuepy seaioe4 JO peaH oy)) Ssiapjoysyels
Aoy oy} yum uoneynsuod ul pejejdwios 8q pnoys
Bumes 196pnqg [emul 8y} ‘uoiippe U] SpasU JUB.IND
S,90IAJ9G 9y} JO BAld8Yal pue dnsieal s| }os 19bpng
ay} Jey} ainsus o} pasiaal Ajsjerrdoidde pue pamainal
8g pjnoys ssoooid Bumes-jebpng S90S By e
‘saiqisuodsal
pue sueld uopoe Aue yum  Buoe  ‘ssinuiw
Ul pajuswnoop 8q pjnoys suoisioap ayy ‘sbunesw
9Say} Je passnIsSIp 8q PpINOYS SjuLWIWWOoD Aue
yum Buoje ‘eouewiopad pue seoueleA }1@6png ‘uolippe
uj 'siosiniedng pue siabeuey ealy ‘1abeuepy a0IAIBg
'siepjoy 196png s,901A188 By} yum piey ate sbunssw
olpouad pue Jsenbas jey} 8INsus pINOYS SDINISS Y| e
‘sjuswabuee Bupoyuow aouewlopad pue sioyedipul
souewlopad Aoy ‘sjusweaibe [pAs| 9oIneS Aue JO
S|lejop UIBJUOD PINOYS JOBJIJUOD U} ‘UOIHIPPE U] ‘paule}al
pue paubis si (s)ianddns uasoydo a8y} Yum 10eiuOoD
[ewio} e jey} (Swes) Juswaindoid pue SaDIAIBS
[ebo auj jo diay eyl ypm) ainsua piNOYS S0IAISS BY| e
's9Iny
2INpao0ld juswainoold S,jlouno) 8y Ag palinbai
se Jopus} 0} jno Ind si sjeusyew bBuiues|d jo Aiddns
8y} JOJ J0BJjUOD BY} }jey} aINSUS pINOYS S8JIAIBS BY| e

'SMOJ|0} SE ale suoljepuswiwodal | Aoud ay |

"JUSWIUOIIAUS |OJ3U0D
ayl enoidwi 0} diay pinoys yoiym ‘suoiepusuioosi
¢ Auoud suo pue g Ajoud aay ‘L Awoud sAl pasiel
SABY M EalE SIU} Ul YIOM JIpne [eulajul Jno JO }nsal e sy

"SJ9pIo 8y} Jo uonesuoyine jo ydisoal ayy o} Joud jlews
eiA sialddns £_>> wL_mEo aoe|d AjJuaiind 8oIAI9S Y| e

 DURINSSY

suIpuLy Aa%/STEIS

3dods

BIE JIpNY

V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOd3Y 11ANV ATHILHVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 3L110713a




Page 93

6 60/800C Hodoy  Jouend) — 3ipny [ewsau] Aa8uLief] jo ysnotog uopuor

jo siaquisw jueasias 0} papiroid si Buluiely sysaljel
JenBas jlenuue jey} einsue pPNOYS BOIAIBS BY| e
'SMOJ|0} SE SI uojepuawwooal ¢ Aloud sy

'sialiddng ayy Aq siseq
leinbals e uo ss aq pnoys Yoiym ‘yeayspealds abesn
[eoiwayo ay} Buisn says juslaylp 8y} ssoioe obesn
%003s jo uosuedwod e 819|dwod piNoys 90IAIBG BY| e

pue S[oA9] JopIo-8l WNWIXew pue wnuwiuiw

3Y} JO sjlelap UBUOD pjnoys spied YO0iS ay| ‘sais

3y} 1e sjun abeiols sy} Ul SUlBIUIBW } YOIYyM ‘Sjeulew
Y} IO} spled 3O0}S ulejulew PiNOYS SDIAIBS BY| e

-sajou Asanjep BuiAjipes Buipnpoul

siapio jo dieoas 1o} ainpadosd Byl Jo papulwal
ale siosinledng sy) Jey) ainsua pjnoys BDIAIBS By e

:ssao0.d Bunojuow asuewiouad ay)

jo yed se ‘Jenddns ussoys ay; ypm pjay ale sbunesw
Buuoyuow Jenbes jeyy ainsus pjnoys aoIAISS BY| e

:s9o1n18g Apadold Aq pabeuew

SBJIS S [IOUN0D 8y} ||le uo SHSIA ays Jenbai a)ajdwod

0} swalinbas pue Aprgisuodsas ayy jo siebeuepy
Baly 8y} spulwal Ji Jey} ainNsua pnoys 0IAIRS ay| e
‘SMOJ|0} Sk ale suofiepuawiwodal g Ajuond ay |

‘paJlaplo se paAldal
usagq eaey spoob sy} jeyy uonesyuad Buimoloy
uanlb Ajuo si uolesuoyne syl 1Byl ainsus 0} Saj0u
pani@oal poob /sejou Aleayap oyl jsutebe juswAhed
1o} pasiioyine saoloAul Jo ajdwes e uo 30ayo ajdwes
e s)9|dwoo pinoys juswebeuely Joluag S.90INISS By e

pue asioioxe
Bunsoo paseq-oiez sjeudosdde ue apnjour pinoys pue

T AdURINSSY

(siebeuely eary oy} pue sabeuely saoiniag Bulues|)
: : % ssuipuyy Aaysmer§ | % ; adoog ‘BAJE JIpny

V XION3ddV 60/800¢ LAOd3Y LIANVY ATHILHVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI 31110730




Page 94

0l 60/800T Hoday  Jarren) ~ upny [puidu] LofurieH jo ySnolog uopuory

‘papinoid si Agjiqisuodsal
pue mmmws uo wmc__mv_sm an 0}-dn jey} ainsus 0} yejs

UBINSSY

sduipuyy Lay/smeys

adoog

vAIE JIpNY

V XIaON3ddV 60/800¢ LYOd3Y LIANV ATIILIVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 3LLI0713a




Ll 60/800T Hody  1011eNn) — JIpNY [RUISIU] As3uirey jo ySnolog uopuory

(Trey 10 ssed 1o sB patiodal ST YOIYM) pIBpURIS SY1 YIM douerduiod
0} SpIE3I YIIM SNIBIS JUSLINO O} PUE  Id1IeN{) Ul pansst sem 110dax [EUL} € yOIym I0J S[OOYDS AIBWILL SY) INO SIS MO[Aq d[qel Y.

21q1ssod se uoos se pajudwd[dw! 218 SUOHEPUSIWIWO0AI £33 1BY} INSUS 0] PIEPUEIS A1) JoW Jo£ jou SABY 1B} S[OOYDS ATewiLl |
pue ATepuodog JueAd[dl yum SUISIBI] SIk oA\ "PIEpuBlS oy} SulIe} Se passasse uddq Sey [0OYds QU "pIepUE]S I} AR K3
JeU) 2IMSUS PINOM [DIYM SDUIPIAS Pa1mbal oyl ap1aoid 01 S[oOYds 353 J[qeUDd 01 POMO[[E TUISq ST AW IS “douepnd QISIAL
HM 9OUEPIOdDE UL ‘pue sassed [BUONIPUOD UIAIS UG JABY S[OOYDS XIS "PIEPUEIS A1) SUNOSUI SB PISSISSE U] dARY S[OOYDS ()7
PUE PIJISIA UG APBalle IABY S[00YIS LT ‘3531 JO “(%Eh) SIOOYDS (f SIDA0D 6(/800T UT SOOYDS AIBWLL] 0] SIISIA JO [npayds Ing)

Page 95

'010T UOTBIN IST€ 3yp £q S[0OYIS JO 0407 »
PUe {600 YOIBIN IS € Y} £q S[OOYDS JO %40t

“800T UdIBIN 1STE Y1 £q S[00YS JO 9401 e
'SMO[[0] SE ST83K 32} A 10A0 PASSISSE 3 [[1M S[OOYOS 53} 18Y) pauue(d SI IT ST} QASTYIE 0] 0107 YoIBIN
<1 € AQ PIEpUEIS 3y JO SIUSWSINDbAI 3y} 199U AJY) ISYISYM O} SE PISSISSE 3q 0] 1L S[O0TIS [e1adg pue Jotuny ‘syueju] ‘Arewid [[v

(SIS
S[O0YOS Ul PIEPUR]S JUSWDTEURIA [EIOUBUL] SY1 JO sjuswaimbar iy yim soueijdwos Suryoayd uo SAJOAUL [[IM 60/800C SuLIp YIom Q)

:AIewuIng pue s)UIWSSISSY SIS

V XION3ddV 60/800C LY¥Od3Y 1IANV ATHILIVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 311101730



Page 96

rd) 60/8007 Moday ¢ Japend) — upny [euiaiu] Ko3uLieH Jo ygnolog uopuor
ssed 60/€0/81 800¢ Toquuade(] [00ydg Areurtid s[jumo(
Ssed 60/€0/€0 800¢ Tequrada( dNUI) WHIO,] YIXIS AoTuLIeH
SSed 60/C0/LT 800¢ I2qUISAON [000g ATRWLIJ dUINOG[OA
ssed 60/20/ST 8007 1_2quadd( [00UdS AIewWILL] ULIR,] 10JeMpPeoIq
Ssed 60/20/5¢ 800¢ I°qUIdAON [00Ydg Areurtld 01e8YSIH
Ssed 60/C0/L1 800¢ 1990190 [0049g Arew AeSuLLIeH YlION
ssed 60/C0/L1 800¢ ToquI2AON [0040g ATRWILd DA S UBPIY 1S
Ssed 60/20/60 800C 1290120 [00YOS SIUBIUT 73] SUTeyD) Ul 19194 1S
Ssed 60/20/60 800¢ IPqUIRAON [004dg ATeWLL] UMOPIYId |
SSed 60/20/50 800T TequIad9(] jooydg Arewtid A9[eA B
Sseq 60/10/€T 8007 I9qQUIDAON AIDSINN YIed SPUB[POOM
ssed 60/10/0C 800C 1290150 [00Y9g [e10adg J[[OsOIN
Ssed 60/10/0C 800T Anf [00yog Arewld swmnoqsdure))
SJUIWWO)) -~ (preg/ssed) jaoday JUIUWISSISSY [00YydS AremiLL
wonn) [eui Jo ae(q Joaeq
V XION3ddV 60/800C LYOd3Y 1IANV ATHILHYVND - LIANV TVYNYILNI 3111073d




Page 97

€l

60/800T Hoday  1oueng) — upny [eurau] L33uriey jo ygnolog uopuo

'600¢ |1dy woly jjoihed ybnoiyy
passacoid aq 0} swieo sasuadxa Joy |esodoid ay)
Juswia|dwi 0} aoe(d Ul aie SUOIOE ey} WILU0D MH

'60°L'91 arepdn

‘'sasuadxa [enpiAlpul
Jnoui o) sesfojdwse Joj pasu sy} eonpas 0} spled
d pue ssso0ud juswaind0ld dy} asn 0} siebeuepy
196 0} oAup e pue |oihed sy} ybnoiy wiep
jo adA} souslsisqng pue [aAel] ay) jo Juswhed
SpJEMO} SAOW B BQ OS[e (M 2idy)} paiinbal
$90inosal sy} Jo malnal e Buimojjo4 “sidiesal Aq
P2JaA0D 8q O} SWIeD ||e 40} pasu 8y} WJIjuod osje
M SIy] ‘pawied aq ued jey) sasuadxs JO S|SA9|
pue suopnenys ayj uo sashoidwa pue sisbeuepy
0} anss| 0} souepinb Buedaid ag [Im |puUOSIad
swil swes 98y} Jy ‘anoge psuonusw  sadA)
8y} JO Uoes Joj Buo ‘suoy wiep mau Buuedsid
Jo sssooud a8y} ur S| weal upoddng MH 9yl

‘sasuadxa Buiwie)o siaxiopn Aousby (o
‘(1800 ay) Buiwiea-as si pue Ajioyiny oy} 4o Jeysq
uo Buiylswos paseyoind sey aakojdwa ue aioym)
asuadxs ssauIsng Jayjo (g ‘9oualsisqng pue jaAed |
lo} sesuadxs oohojdws suinusb (e :ssuadxs jo
sadf} Jounsip ale aisy) yey) paybiybly sey 3 "yseo
Apad ybnouyy pred pue paswiep Buisq sssuadxs
8y} Jo msinal e ubsq 0} yels soueul{ UYiIm
Jaw Apeaile oABY [SUUOSIB JO SaAnelussalday

60/8002 -auljpesqg
‘sjuswhed swiep asuadxs

abeuew 0} |joJAed 10} padojensp

ssaiboid u} | Buiag s ssodoid suluo  uy 00'€o’LE L sasuadx3 @ jjoihed
S0/¥002
auljpeag
uonejuawajduw] =,
ajepdn/sjuswiwio) smejg/ssaiboiyg jeuibuQ fAuouyd Baly Jipny

90/500Z PUe G0/400Z suoiepuawiwiodsy | Ajiold jo uonejuswaldwyi - Joday ssaiboid pajielaq

V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOd3IY LIANV ATHILYVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI 31110173d




Page 98

145

60/800C Hoday  1arend) — upny jewnuf Asguriey Jo y3noiog uvopuo]

6002 aunr :aujjpeaq pasirsy

‘sjuawainbal

SSA 10d ssalppe osje jim yolym ‘00z sunp
JO pus 8y} aJojaq pauueld si jouu02 siyy Bulureiuos
uolslen mau pssodoud JBY} 03} opesbdn uy
"‘aoueldwos

Joj sajep wuly epirosd jou pinod Asy) Jaaamoy
‘6002 Bulinp s1em}yos 418y} ojul [01JU0D AJLIND3S SIY)
pIING 0] pusiul A8y} swiyuod ainsie] NX "oses|al
Xau Jlsyl ol }Ing aq O} |0JjU0D papusSWILIOIa]
8yl Joj Buisseid (sunsie7 NYX) Joyddns asemyos

8002 19quisds(J -eulpeaq
sydwane uoboj plieaul sanadal

3y} o} 1| Aq spew usaq aney sjsenbai |eloA9g | Buimojioy ssaooe juanaid Ajny walshAg

0] JopJo Ul welsAs ay) 1091109 8002 juswebeuepy

ssaibolid u| | 0} sialddns alemyos o} }senbay |  Aepy /Buiobup L ainsia X301

90/5002
6002 Aeyy :auljpeaq pasirey
‘pred aie swied asuadxa yoiym
Aq sseo0ud 8y} usyjbualls 0} S| UOHEPUSWILIODSI
8y} Jo wie 8yl  "uONEBpPUSWIWODdl  SIY}
Jo Ayjeanuo ay) seyebniw yoiym ‘pasn Bulag wa)sAs
Jusuno sy ulynm soeld ul Sj04U0D aje aJay)
JJuswiwo) )pny Jeuladiul
‘6002 Aeyy Bunnp jjoiked
ybnoiyy sal ob pjnoys sesuadxs 9ous)sSISgns
pue |oAes; jo wswhed oy} pue psadojersp
ussg oABY SWIO} WieD Mau eyl pelels MH
60'v'8 arepdn
suf|pesqg
: ; uonejuaws|duw
ajepdn/sjuawiwio) smjejg/ssalboig feuibuo Ruongd ealy upny

V XION3ddV 60/800C L¥Od3Y LIANV ATYILIVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 3LLIOT3A




Page 99

Sl 60/800C Hoday ¢ Javend) — upny [ewreiu] AoSuLiel] jo ySnosog uopuor]
0 0 0 [4 [4 0 [4 0 L4 | € 0 |lenuelsgng abesn jew3
11 - s9dunosay ajeirodion
S92IAISG |eba
0 0 0 0 g l 3 | g L € L | lequelsgng — JWB swnoo( B JoenuoD
0 0 0 0 L € 14 0 L € v | 0 |lequeisgng | syjousg xe] |1ounod g Buisnoy
0 0 0 0 14 0 [4 [4 14 0 ¢ | T |lenueisgng HANN
0 0 0 0 € 0 € 0 € 0 € 0 |enueisgng Jebpe jessuan) g Bununoooy
0 0 0 0 [4 l l 0 [4 l L 0 |lenueisgng Xe] [lounoyd
0 0 0 0 € [4 } 0 € [4 l 0 | fenueisgng | joluo) Atejebpng 3 N4 o168jens
0 0 0 0 g 0 € 0 € 0| € 0 |lejueisgng Juswabeuey Ainseal |
0 0 0 0 g } 4 0 S } v | 0 |lejueisgng SJO}paID
0 0 0 l 14 0 € L 9 0| S | | lenuelsgng sJojqeg
$92In0saYy 8jes0dio)
0 3 0 } 6 [4 L 0 13 [4 6 | 0 pajwi sosuadx3 g |loihed
qo®Rd — s9AnJdax3 Jaiyd
0 b 0 0 g 0 g 0 9 0 | 9 | 0 |lenueisgng syjuswabueny diysisuped
abusjieyn
Juspuadsapu| Buipoday jouon
0 0 0 Z S 0 g 0 L 0 | 9 | | [lequeysgng Jobpng 3 19bpng swweiboid
J'8ddd — S8Aindaxy jaiyd

Buipueysyng s |ssaiBoig| "duwy , :
UOEPUSWILLIOIDY uj JON | V/N |IBjol| € [4 I |Ielol | € [4 |
} Muoud pajuswajdu) KioBajen
[ELER]
SuonepuUBWILLIOIaY asueInssy vINVY Lianvy
}dom yipne 20/9002 - dn mojjo4
V XIaN3ddV 60/8002 LHOd3Y 11NV ATHILYVND - 1IAdNV TVNYILNI 311107130




Page 100

ol , 60/8007 Woday  1a1end) — 1pny [ewisiu] Ls3uLieH jo ySnolog uopuoy

suollepUSWWOD3l JO UoiejuswWwaldwi palels sAey Siadio — pajuswsjdul Apied

"UsMe} usa( Jou Sey UOO. SAlRUIS)E ‘PBSSaIPPE USSJ JOU SBY UONEPUSWILIODS) oy} — pajuswajdwi JON

Sl 9y} ssaippe 0} U)e)} Usaq SeyY Uoljoe aAljeuIR}e Jo ‘Wa)sAs ay) ul sebueyd o} enp s|geojjdde JaBuoj ou S| uonepuBWIWOIal Y] — YN
'sasuodsal Jo a|duwies e payliaA SABY SAA 'SUOIEPUBWIWIODa] Jo ssaiboid ay) uonesyue-jas Yybnoly) pajesipul Sey sisoiyo — pajuswsajduwy

ek | vi | 68 | 9¢ [ 291 | o1 [soL] et |

PRS- e
juswabeuep joaloid
0 |lenueisgng | — aining ay} Joj sjooyos Buipjing

€
v | L | €| 0 |lenueisgng | sjooyog jo Buoyuo [eroueuly
b

Z |enueisgng siea A Ale3 :pejs aing
ERITNETS
s,8|doad Bunoj pue uaipjiyo|

(S30IH) seoines awdinbg
0 0 0 | s | 6 0| s [ ¥ | v |t |6 ]| v ]| pewwi [ Aunwwoy pajesbojul heburey

EERTINETS
Aunwwon  axmyny ‘synpy

0 0 0 0 | 0 S 9| 1 O] S| 9 V/N SapUNWWOY Joj [eag MaN
0 0 0 | 9 0 4 4 L 0 | S | z |/eyuelsgng | juswsolioju3 pue |osjuo) Bunped
0 0 0 0 9 0 € € 9 0| €| €| peywr | [ejuswuoliaug-Alojes pue yiesH
L 3 0 0 gL | 0 L 9 | #b | O | 2| 2 ]| peywn Juswabeueyy sjsep
suoljeoidde

0 0 ! 0 0l | L 2|l W | L 8| T | paywn J3)sibay Buisnoy jo Bunuiod
swsyos

0 0 0 0 oL | | 3 9 lor [t | €| 9| peywun BuiseaT uoyjeroossy Buisnoy
0 0 0 [4 S 0 4 X L 0 | 6 | Z |lenuesgng sJieday Buisnoy Aseljodws |

JuaWuUoIIAUT ueqin

Buipueising s | ssaaboad| "duj
UOIEPUBWILLIOIY uj JION | VIN |IBj0L ] € [4 L |IBjloL}] € | T 3

| Ayoug pajuswajdu] AioBajen

ELCR]
sSuoljepuauwoday aoueInssy VaHv Liany

V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y 1IANV ATHILHEVND - LIANV TVYNYEILNI 31110730



/1l 60/8007 110day § 191N — NpNY (eI} ASFULIBH JO YSnolog uopuor|

Page 101

60°v' L @repdn

‘s196pnq |enpIAIpul yum aulj ul ae sabueyo
ay} eyl siseq ay} uo ybnouy; nd aie 8say} pue
sebueys Bunsanbal sabeuely aulT 8y} wodj paAIesal
S| UONEDIUNWWOD JBYJo Jo jews ue ‘Apussaid

'600¢ Atenigad jo
pua Ag asn ul aq |m swioj palipow ay] "sabueyod
Jayjo pue sspelb qol ‘suoipuod pue swis} Ul
safueyo I9A0D [|IM SULIOS BU} JO 3Sh dY] "POWIIJU0D
aq 0} uopiesuoyine ajeudoisdde sy o} piBY
MU B apnjoul 0} payipow Bulaq aie SWIo)-3 |SAY)
U ssauisng /2IAI9G JO peaH ‘9’1 uolesiuebio sy}
ul |oA8| ajeudoisdde ue je pasuoyine ale so9kojdwse
fenpiAlpul ue 1oy sabueys Aed jey} aunsus |IMm HH

'60°L'9L S¥epdn
"S9UO MU S3pN|dUI pue

"@oe|d Ul Jou jis S isl| panoudde ue pue ‘saliojeubls  pasuoyine  Bunsixe
ssaiboud ul i3S SI SIy} ey} pauuiuod sey Jabeuepy sSuLuUo%a) yoiym 1811 sauojeudis
jo1ju0n Aed ayy ‘JansamoH 200z Aea ul ainonais ajep-0}-dn ue apinoid 0} pajsanbal
-3l [IDUNOD BY} JO Syjuow oM} ulyim psole|dwod ale sjuswuedsp e Agaseym
8g pinom sauojeubls pasuoyine jo isi B ey pajonpuod ag pInoys 8slolaxs uy
pajesipul podal Jpny [eussiul /0/900Z Jno Ul pasiel
uoljepuawiwodal sy} 0} asuodsal juswabeuew ayy | (6002 Aenige- “in200 sabueyd

posingy) se pajepdn Apdwoid aq pnoys
ssaiboud uj 1002 Yoiepy Z salojeubls pasuoyine jo sl 8yl | |}

sosuadx3g % |jolhed

INIINJOTIAZA TTVNOILVSINVOAUO ® 37d03d — S3IAILNDIXT 43IHD

S3DUNOSIY F1VHOdHO0D

suljpeaq
uonejuawa|duyy ;
ajepdn/siuawiwion : snjejg/ssalboid 1 rewmbBug fuoud UOHEPUBWILLIOIdY 9y

L0/9007 SUOIEPUIWMWOINY € — | AJLIOLLJ Surpue)sin() - 310day ssauagoad pajierdq

V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILHEVND - LIANV TVNYILNI 31110713d




Page 102

gl 60/800T Moday  1apend) — upny [eusolu] AsSutiey Jo y3nolog uopuo
6002 [udy :auljpesq pasiney
LINS
0} uaxe} aq [IIN\ [19M se wes | Juswabeuew Jolusg
8y} o} seidde ) se ‘suoneoidde Jsjsibas Buisnoy
1snl uey) suoneondwi Japim UYum anssi ue sl siy)
1ey) paiiiuspl sem Il pue ‘@ous)sixs ui Jajsibal Aue jo
aJeme aJe Jjels ou Jey} pawlijuod aney Juaiiabeuepy
'60't'6 Je se ajepdn
‘pJemIo) usye) aq [|Im SIYL "SUOIIENYIS YoNS SISA0D
yolym JojsiBas 1sassjul Jo uonelepsp ou st asey|
"Jolues Jiayl Ag yim
Jeap sl 8sed sy} ‘Mouy Asy} Jey) SUOBWOS JO pudLy ‘siseq Je|nbai
B SBAJOAUI SSED B JBey) Saljijuapl 9010 Ue 8I9UAA e Uo pajepdn pue Jeoiyo pajebajep
1901J0 Joiuss e AQ yum jesp S| aseo ay) ‘Ajiwe} e AQq peueew oag pnoys
djelpawwl Jidy) Jo Jaquisl B JO YHels JO Jaquis Jg)sibal 1saselu| jo uonelepsq v
e Ag opew bBudq s! uonesndde ssausssjswioy
Jo uoneondde Buisnoy B JEYl paypuspl S ‘sjueoidde
} 8IBUAA “uononpul J1sy) jo Hed se jsalajul Jo 101|juod [njsseoons  jo  |eaoudde  pue
Aue asejoep 0} pasu sy} uo pasIApe ale Jels Mal iy | (6002 Aenuer sjuiod jo Buipseme ‘suoneoidde
60° L2} uo Juswabeuew wouy panlesal ayepdn aulpeaq jo Buisseooud ayy ul eney Aew
pesingy) Asy) 1sesejul [euosiad Aue aiepdep
pajuswajdwy JoN 1,00z aunp Z Allewloy pinoys yeis jueaspl IV | Z
suonei|ddy 1935160y BuisnoH jo Bunuiod
INIINNOYIANI NVaHN
6002 Ae -aulpeaQg pasirey
"92IMI8S [|0JABd BU)} WoOJ) uoleuULIojU! palinbal
9} paAleoal Jou aney Asy) ‘uonebsiag jo swayog
lleJano sy} Bunepdn uo pes| ayy Bupje aie Asyj
ybnoyje jeyl pswuuod aAey soueuld ajesodion
suljpeag
uonejuswajdwy | .
ajepdn/sjuswiwon snjejsg/ssalbouy reuibuQ Auoug  UOHEPUSWIIOTY oy
V XION3ddV 60/800C LAOd3Y LIANV ATHILHEVND - LIANY TVYNYILNI 3111073a




Page 103

6l 60/8007 Moday { Jorrend) — ypny ewssiuy AsSurrey jo ySnoog uopuory

S| ADsjesjS UONE}NSUOD PUE SUOHEJIUNWWOD Y l[e4dn0 3y} ulyym  pajesodiodul
pue padojoasp ag pinoys AbBsjess
ssaiboud uj 8007 Aey Z uoielnsuod  pauljep Auesp v | ¥

sjuswabueny diysiouped

J%ddd — S.3AILNOIX3 43IHD

'600¢ dunr :auljpeaq pasiAsy

"syjuow Jo a|dnod Jxau ay} Ul 80USWIWOD

lIm JaBeueysHIOAA asijiin 0} Joofosd uonejuaws|du
8yl ‘;ounod eyl Ag palddns 9471 9y JO UOISIaA
pejepdn ayl Buisn 8g [IM yons Se pue NMJN
uo syiom walshs || nay] sebeuBpSHION ‘Wo)sAs
LI 81el1odiod umo sy} Ag peoejdal ag M walsAs
siy} se asufepy Bunepdn ag jou |m esudisjug
'60'¥'v} 9repdn

‘Joesuod Asbunen
8y} uo psjswsdwi ag |IM ©dT1 pue Jebeuep
SHIONA USUM 3jep B ulyuod o} 184 ale esudisiug

‘'splemiayje 9|qIssod se Uoos se 1o pajuaws|duul
S| JoBeuepy SHOM USUM OdTT BUI UM Ny

0} JaBeuepy SHIOAN Jo} JuswaaiBe 3aas (M [1oUnoD) ‘asudiojuy Aq seno
ayJ ‘60 Uer / 80 92 Ui uaddey |im JoBeuepy SYIOM usxe] useq sAey pioddy Asbuer
Buisn o1 sbueyo sy} jeyy Bunewnss Apuaund s|
asudiaug spodal souewlopad jo uoionpold sy} ul -BJON JIpny [euisjuf
Isisse 0} 947171 ayy Buisn Joy jenusjod ayy o) psebai .
yum asudisjug ypm psbebus sey |1ouno) ayj ‘spodai aouewiopad jo uononpoud
3y} yum isisse 0} plodoy Asbuliey
'800¢ JaqwanoN e ayepdn juswabeuepy 1e waysks asukepy oy} uo papeojdn
ssaiboud uj 1002 1snbny L 80 PINOYS UONBWIOUI PlOY3SNOH, | ¢

juswobeueyy aysep

aujpeaq
1 uonejuswajduw) 3
wﬁmvn:,ﬁ:mEEoo | ; smejg/ssaibolyg . reuwiBuo fuond - UOlJEpUSWIWIONdY oy

V XION3ddV 60/800¢ LYOd3Y LIANV ATIILIVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI 3LL10713d



Page 104

02 60/8007 1oday ¢ Joren) — upny [eusoju] AoSuLiey Jo y3noiog uopuor|

6002 J11dy :auljpeag pasiray
'6002 {ludy jo pus
ayy je diysisuped oibajeng AsbuueH ayy Agq paaibe
8q [IM JoMauwel) ay| “Jomawels yelp sy} uo
SM3IA J18Y) oAIB sdnoiBb AJlunwiwod pue sjenplAlpul
Agaseym  Aemuspun  Ajusund sl UOBYNSUOD
sseyd puoodss Yy HJOMBWEN) Syl Wliojul O}
usyeHspun sem uoneynsuo Jo aseyd jeniul ue pue
sJomawely oy} Buidojonsp st dnoub Aousbe nw vy
'60'¥'6 Slepdn
‘solbajelis
asay) Bupjuy sajesodioour yoiym ‘uone|siBa) BAjoAU|
0} AinQ, mau a8y} Jo Junodoe aye} 0} juswdojensp
ul st yiomswel 4 uswsbebuy Ajunwwon 4SH mau

V '9SIn02 uo (IS si ABsjel)s ay} Jo Juswdojansp ay | "pasijin aq jjim sBuipuly

'60°L €2 Srepdn uolJBlNSUOD MOY puE UOIEB)NSUOD

Joj  Ajpgisuodsas  ‘uoneyNsuod

"Jajew siy} Ul 4SH jo spoylaw ‘pa}INSU0D

ay} Jo sdnoiB-gns ayj jje o saljIAlOE By} UIBAOD |Iim 8 M oym Buysp  pinoys

ABsjeng uoleynNsSuOD pue SUOHEJIUNWWOD JdSH pue ‘siapjoysyels pue sjenplAlpul

8Y] ‘slisuped s} pue [1IDUNOD) By} SSOID\ Suonoe pue s|qisuodsal jje 0] Ps8ledIUNWWIOD

so|dipuud Arejuswasdwod poddns [iIm Siyl [1ounoD g pinoys saibsjesis uoneynsuo
8y} JoJ suoledUNWWOY JO pesH ‘sumolg aMIN

Ag ps| Buieq si saibsjelis syl jo Jusidoasp sy ‘Juswabuele

"dSH 8y} pue j1suno) 8y} Jo} yjoq padojansp Buiaq diysisuped yoes Joy ABsjess

i ot auljpeag L i
; uonejusawajduw
ajepdn/siuswiwion snjejg/ssalbouy feuibuo | Qjuoud UonEpPUAIIOIAY Joy
V XION3ddV 60/800¢ LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILAEVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 31110130




Page 105

Lz 60/8007 110day § Jo1reNn() — JIpny [euIU] As8uLreH jo ysSnoiog uopuor]
0 0 0 0 14 0 € b L4 0| € L | Ienjueisgng Bulpung Jie /Buipun4 ejnw.o4
0 0 0 0 } 0 L 0 ] 0 | 0 |lenueisgng uondopy
[4 [4 0 0 ] 0 0 | £ 0 | 0 | € |lenueisgng awweJboid |eyde) Aewid
0 0 0 0 14 3 € 0 L4 l € 0 |lenueisgng juswdnoosy
ERTINER
s 8|doad Buno) pue uaippys
0 0 0 0 8 14 14 0 8 ¥ | ¥ | 0 |leauesgng juswiaindold ||
wes | -jusuabeuepy
0 0 0 0 0b | O 6 L L O | O 6| L | Pejwnm ABiau3z uawaind0id-3
0 0 0 4 14 0 v | 0O 9 0 | 9 | 0 |leyuelsgns Aiddng Ayoujos|3 passjew-un
0 0 0 0 £ 0 Z L £ 0 c | | lenueisgng S80IAI2S JBWOoISN)
0 0 0 } S [4 £ 0 9 € | € | 0 |leyueisgns Bundisosy ysen
$924nosay ajesodion
0 0 0 L 3 | 0 0 [4 b } 0 |lenueisgnsg QWY jo juswabeuepy
sassed
0 0 0 [4 v 0 £ L 9 0| v | 2 paywi wopaal4 — pnelj-juy sAljoe-oid
sabpeg
0 0 0 0 6 0 € 9 6 0] €] 9 pajiwi an|g — PneJj-juy aAloe-old
0 0 0 0 S b [4 [ S b ¢ | 2 |lehueisgng swasAs ALDD
BUa2s}8a.]S - SaINpPad0id
0 0 0 14 [4 0 [4 0 9 0| G L | |enueisgng juswaindold yim soueldwo)
juswuoJdiAug ueqin

Buipueising s | ssaiboid| duy
UOEpPUAWILLOIaY u| JON | VIN |80l | € [4 I |IBloL] € | 2 I
I fjuoud pajuawajduwy KioBajen
EICH]
SUOIJEPUBWILLIOIDY aoueinssy V3NV Liany
}dom jipne go/L00Z - dn mojjod
V XION3ddV 60/800¢C LHOd3Y 1IANV ATHILYVND - 1IANV TYNY3ILNI 31110130



Page 106

(A4

60/800¢ Hoday  1a1end) — 11pny [ewsajuf AsguLie}] Jo y3noisog uopuory

suonepuawiLWodal Jo uonejuswsdwi pepels aAey sisoiyo — pajuswajdwi Ajed
‘USXE} USD(J JOU SBY UOHOR SARBUIS)E ‘POSSaIPPE US8( JOU SBY UOHEPUSWILLIODa) 8y} — pajuswiajdwl JoN

Sl Y} SSaIppE 0} UdXE) Udg SBY UOKROR aAjjeuss}e JO ‘WeysAs ay) ul sebueyd o} enp s|qedijdde JabBuoj ou Si UOEPUBLIWIOI 83U} — V/N
'Sasuodsal Jo s|dwes & pPayLIaA SABY B\ "SUOREPUBWIWIOOa) JO ssaiboid sy uoneoyiied-Jas ybnoiy peeoipul sey sieoiyo — pajuswalduw)

o V ..?-. _..m. ..ﬂiﬁ i I T s .y.”__,...__._: . , : ‘Fah

0 € L I 6 pajwi diysian@oay pue diysaajuioddy

S)Jed - Sainpacold

0 0 0 0 [ 0 £ Z S 0| € |ejueisgng JuswaIN20id ynm aoueldwon

EERTEVETS

Aunwwo) @ ainyny ‘synpy

Buipueisinp s ssaiboig| ‘duj
uolIEPUALILLIOIAY uj JON | V/IN |IBj0L| € [4 L |lejoL| € 4
} Buoud pajuswajdui KioBajen
j9Aa7
SUOHEPUBILLIOIDY 2JueINssy VIV Liany

V XION3ddV

60/800¢ LHOd3Y LIANV ATHILYVND - 1IANV TYNHALNI 3L11073a



Page 107

WA 60/800¢ Hoday  1aren) — upny [eusdu] As8uwiel jo ySnoiog uopuog
IN ¢ O} 9@%usalaype JO S82USPIAS JO UOISSILUgNS 8y}
[jun pausjep sem |eaosdde (ased ssauisng) pig 8yl
'800¢C JOQWIBAON [un
asuodsal B aAl@9al Jou pIp INg go0g Jequsidag Aq
408@Q wolj ssuodsas e Hupedidnue siem 1DUNOD 8y |
"8002 JequianoN Aqg paje|dwod aq pjnom sased
ssauisng 8y} jJo Jelp e pue salpnis AJjgiseaq 0
pue g0z 1equwsaideg Aq yosloid
uolsuedxs [ooydog e pue sndweo Buiuies)
BAISNOUl wied Jsyempeolg - syosloid Jolew
Z Joj |eaosdde pue juswdolsnsp jeuqg 1osloid
ypm pasocoisd o} usalb ag pinom slepuew \y ‘g
8002
Jaquwsos( Aq |eacudde jiounon Jop  papiwgns
pue pajyeisp aq pinom |d swwelsboid 404 v B (Qid paonpau
‘pIg 8y} jo jeAcsdde e se yons) sjpsfoid psajejal 1oy
Jo 1di@oal uo jey} gooz 1snbny ul pasiApe alam Jipny ssao0.id jeroidde ue Buidojansp
JapIsuod pjnoys juswabeuepy
"'SpJemuo 01/600z 10} suwwesboud
leydes  Alewnd Jojy ued Aleaep  pesodoud lomawel juswabeuepy
sAebuley jo siseq sy} pawloy pig SIYL '800Z Jo3foud s j1ounod 8y} yum aul ul
aunpr ul 4S90@ 8y} 0] pajiwgns sem (esen ssauisng ‘soueuld ajesodio) pue Josuodg
swwelboid) pig sbuey) lJoj Absjeng Aewud a8yl palould 8y Ag pssuoyine
60°1L°GL S1epdn uswabeuepy Al@yeipswiwl g pJnoys pue spaloid Aoy |e
pels 0} paysabbns Jo} padojensp aq pnoys (gid)
ssalboud uj sabueyn L Juswnoog uoneniu] jalold v I
swwelbouid jeyden Arewird
JDIAYTS S.I71d03d ONNOA ANV NIHATIHD
suljpesg
uonejuawuaduy
ajepdn/siuswiwion snjejg/ssaiboid jeuwiBuo Auoud uonEpPUAIWOIY joy
80/.00Z suoljepusawiwiodady ¢ -} Ajuond m:_U:mumuzO — Joday ssaiboid p3jle}ag
V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOdIY 1INV ATHIALHVND - 1INV TVNYILNI 31110130




A 60/8007 Hoday ¢ 1arend — upny Jeuruy LeSuLiey Jo ySnotog uopuo]

Page 108

6002 [1dy ‘auljpeaq pasirey

‘padojaasp aq |jIim asen
ssauisng pue ld |enpiAipul ue swwelBoud sy} uyIm
syosfoud Jofew oy jeyy psuueld si )} ‘asen ssauisng
8y} spnpul |jim swuwelboid sjoym sy} 10j dld dUL
"siopjoysye)s sholieA sy} woly sasuodsal Bujieme s
nq aysidwos Ajenuia si swwesbold fenden Arewd
ay) Joj dld 8yl ‘J8o0 dqisuodsas sy} Jod sy

'60°v'8 9jepdn

‘(,@sed ssauisng/piq
s Asbuuey wpoddns o} psjsenbas uonewlojul
jeuonippe sy} jo Jeaoidde 48DQ jo diBoal
ayy, — auoissjiw ayy o} algns si yed eonuo)
6007 1Mdy — Qld swwelboid 40d jo jerouddy g

pue 16002 Yose
- Qld swuweiboid 4Dd yelp 8y} uonsldwon ‘e

‘8Je sauo)ssjiw swwelboid payosfoid yussaid sy

"'sosed
ssauisng 109foid sy} jo uonesedeaisd pue seipn)s
Aunqisesy syl yum pssocold 0y [eaocidde pue sjolq
18foid 4Dd 8Anoadsas ayy 0} |eaosdde sneb pieog
swwelboldyiosuodg alold syl ‘@00z JeqUIBAON
ul pIq s|iouno) 8y} o} Yoeqpasy 8y jo 1disdss uQ

‘Juswiainoold B uswebeuew

obueyo 19| Joj} peasnbas s pelep alopn q
pue

‘AysJonip pue ao10y) Joj pasinbal si jejep alop e

600¢C Yot ISt e

Agq ueld Asealep eswwelsboid sy} ulyIm SUOIIPUOD
=L R ; LRI ‘ auljpeaq

; uonejuawajduwy ; ;

ajepdn/siuswiwon - smejg/ssaiboid \ : ~ ewBuQ Auouyg | uonepuaAWWo2aYy R - Y

V XION3ddV 60/800C LYOd3Y LIANY ATYILYVND - LIANV TVYNYILNI 3LLI073d




Page 109

G¢

mc\wcom Hoday ¢ souen) — upny [euraiu] L33uniey Jo ydnoiog uopuor]

6002 11dy :auljpesq pasiray

'600¢ IUdy jo pus Ag use) oq

1M UOHOB JUBABJS. Jey} PaULIUOD SABY OUM ‘@oueul
9)e 0dioD Yym UOISSNOSIP Ul |IlS SI 90IAIBS 8y

pajuswajduwiy Ajjied

600¢ UdIe|y

0] Jsaid . a8y}  bunipalo
pue Jauueuwl a)elidoidde
ue Ul SJunoode 8say} UO paules
Jsessul  jle Buwoiodde o)
usnlb @q pinoys uollelapisuos)

"SJuUSI|O
8y} Jo Jjouaqg ay) 4o} ‘sjunoooe
sueq Buuesq jsasoul Ul spuny
Jasn  9oines diysasiuioddy
Buipjoy JapIsuoo 0}
aoueul4 sjelodio) jo pesH ay)
yium asiel pinoys swebeuepy

€

diysioniooay g diysosjuioddy

S3JIAY3AS ALINNININOD ? 3HNLTIND ‘S11NAY

"‘8A0qe 998

6002 |udy :aulpeaqg
DA0QE SlUSWILLIOD 89S 8ses|d

pajuswajduwiy Ajjied

aoe|d
Ul Mou wa)shg

‘pleog wealns ayy Ag
peaibe pue soueui{ s)eiodo)
Aq yo paubis aq osje jsnw asen
ssauisng ay} ‘swwelbold ay) 0}
podal jey; syosfoud 1oy jey) pue
‘wes) jJuswsbeuew Jo Josuodg
pafold 8yl Ag penosdde
8q plnoys osen ssauisng
ay} ‘spsfoid  Ugjews o4

jlomawel 4 Juswabeuey
pafoid  sjounod Byl yum
aul uw ‘swwelboid ay} Buiypm
sjoafoud |enpiaipul jjle loj pue
swweibold @y} 1oj padojonsp
8q pjhoys ase) ssauisng VY

ajepd/sjuswiwion

snjejg/ssaibold

suljpeag
uonejuswajduly
reuibuo

Auoud

UOEPUIILIOITY

9y

V XION3ddV

60/800C LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILHEVND - 1IANV TVNAEILNI 31110734




Page 110

9z 60/8007 Hodxy ¢ 1uend — upny [eusu] As8utiel jo ySnotog uopuo]
'600Z Jequuialdag 1o} pa|npayods ||13s ! soeuSUI
I} 8yl "}os usaq sey Aejy Ul 3oem puiy) 8y} Jo ajep
aAl| ob e pue paseyoind usasqg sey walsks mau ay|
60 %60 9¥epdn uswabeuepy
‘JUBASJSS BJaym
Jsuuew Ajswiy e ul pasies ale sao10AUl ‘pajs|dwod ale
SJUSLUSSSSSE USYM Jey} ainsua [im syl -aAoslgo
SIYyl 8A3Iyoe 0} ‘HYVY dV¥YS O} padusisjol SSOI
‘Spjodal uopelIouodal BSN |IM 9IAISS By} ‘edueuld
I-omaweld jo uonejuswadwi sy} jo Wby u
60°1°Gl S1epdn wawabeuepy
‘wiayshs Buibieyo ay)
pue |-jiomaweld usamiaq aoeualul aaey 0} Buyoo)
8q |Iim uswabeuepy ‘00z Joqweldeg 01 pakejop
8q 0] aney Aew painbByuod ag 0} SdBULBIUI BY)
Buimolie ‘uonejuswsidw |enoe 8y} ‘JOASMOH ‘6007
yosey Aq peseyoind aq o} Aoy si Wa)sAs mau ay | uotieyuswa|duw

jenjoe — '$Jasn 32IAl8S 0} papiroid

“Ajeuonouny siy) sjqeus o} I-jomaweld | 00z Joquaydag SI 98D aJayM SISED JuBAS|a) BY)

ur Buiyiou Ajjuaning si aiay) Jey) pawIojul 3J8M ST lle Joj Jsuuew Ajpwin e ul pasiel

aseyound ws)sAg 9Q 0} S8210AUl Jo} ssaooid e

pojuswajdwi Apuied | — 6002 Yolep Z | @oeld Ul Ind pjnoys Juswaebeuepy v

‘'sasodind

wnjal xey} Joj} ‘U Jo ssoub

panpalIo S| Isalalul |yl Jaylaym

payads ag pjnoys ) ‘sesed |je

uj "ploy Asy} Jey; spuny jo |an9|

8Y) uo psseq ‘sjusio |enplalpul

suljpesqg
uopejuawajdu|
ajepdn/sjuswiuion) smejg/ssaiboid jeuibuo fuoug UoHEPUIWIWOIY Joy
V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOd3Y 1INV ATHILEVND - 11NV TVNY3LNI 3111013a




Page 111

12 60/8007 Hoday  Jauend) — ypny [eutoju] AouLiel Jo ySnolog uopuoy
6002 Ae :auijpeag
}9s usaq ‘sJiole Buipoosiw
sey 600z KA.\ Jo aulpesp pasiAal Y "SISEq [enplAIpul Aue 1081100 pue Auspl 0} J8pJo
ue uo Ajjenuew 3oayos aJe swioj }sanbas jJuswdied ul swiod 1sanbay swAied ay)
[e yey) os siabeuepy aled yym Bupuom Ajusuns ale pue s1asn ad2IAIBs  AJUNWILIOD
wes) ay) ‘JonamoH ‘pajuswaidwi ussqg jJou sey siy} 0} pebieys spuswAhed usamiaq
SI9MIOAA [E100S Upm uaseuspun Buieg smainas 0} sn( syuow om} Aisns peejdwiod
‘80 0°'60 91epdn Wawabeuepy aq pinoys suoneljIouooal
papuswwodsas  Jayuny s )
Jayuny uswifed Buissssoid
passnosip aq 0} spsau |Iis leyy ssadoid Buiobuo usym (uo4 isenbay juswhed
ue si sIy} ‘JeanamoH Heis Ag Buipod 4y 8jeinddeul By} UO pajou se) walsAs syl uo
JO 8nssI 8y} SWOJIBA0 PINOYS SiY} :UOISIAI] S2Ueuld 9p09 1S00 dVYS 1084100 8y ndul
sy} Ag psulejulew ag |im Buipo) -psanocisdde sl 0] soueuodwi 8y} jJo papulwal
a|npayos Apieem e Agateym sigel dn yooj, e aonpoud 8q OS|e plhoys  sidiysed
0] s! |esodoid y ‘(aien [B100S pue ANunWwwo) "SULIO
Jo} iobeuepy) uebiue] piseusag UIM  pPassnosIp }senbay uswihed (e apod 1s09
Buieg Apjuaund sie siyy Buiasiyoe jo spoylaw MaN 1081109 8y} Jaus 0} soueuodull
ay) Jo SI9NIOMA [eros
pajuawa|duwj JoN V/N Z | 01 W8S ag p|noys Jspuiwsl vy S
auljpesq
uonejuawaduly
ajepdn/siuawiwion snjejg/ssaiboid jeuwiBuQ Auouyg uonepusWIWoIay 1oy
V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANY ATHILAIVND - 1LIANV TYNYILNI 31110730




Page 112

8z 60/8007 Woday { Jouend) — ypny [eusau] AaBuLieH jo y3noiog uopuory
6002 Aeyy :autjpeaq
‘6002 Aey
Aq pajeidwos aq pinoys siyj — aoiape |eba) Bunieme
aJe jJuswpedsp ay} yoiym ui uonoss Buulewsas auo
woly Hede psesinal ueaq sey Aojjod gp UONDSS BY|
60 ¥0°60 21epdn uswabeuepy ‘Jels JueAs|al
le 0] psjesunwwos  pue
"9}ep MaIASI B apnjoul pelep &g pjnoYys Ssjuswnoop |je
M eleidws) siyy -oyeidwa) sadiAJeg  Ajunwiwio) Jeyl pspuswiwiodsl Jsyuny si
R 8Inn) ‘'SYnpy pezipJepuels 8yl yum aui| ‘Aiessaosu
ul payeip-as Buteq st Aojjod g uooag pamsual v Jl ‘porepdn pue ‘Ajjenuue jses)
'680/10/G1 S1epdn wswabeuepy e pue ‘AueinbBas pamasinas aq
pinoys sainpasoid pue saiolod
pajuawsajdw) Ajred V/N € [ lle Jey} pspuswuwodal si } 9
R : suijpeaq - R
; : uonejuawajdw]
ajepdn/sjuswiwon snjejg/ssaiboid reuibuo Kuoud UoiEpUAWILIOIY joy
V XION3ddV 60/800¢ 1¥0Od3d LIANV ATHILEVNO - LIANV TVYNAI3LNI 311107134




Page 113

62 60/800C woday + Jaren) — upny [eusoiu] AeSuriep] jo ySnosog uopuor
wie
0 0 0 0 0 [4 0 } l 4 0 2 L |lejueisgng | Jsjempeolg — sajus) s.uaipjiyd
SaJIAIRS
s,91doad BunoA g uaipjiyo
I 0 0 0 L 3 S 2 8 2 9 | | lenuelsgng wnuojews.y) g ssuelswa)
0 0 0 0 3 8 2 L 0 6 } 8 0 |lenyueisgng SWOH [eljuapisay asnoH pay
0 0 0 0 0 8 L L 0 8 2 L 0 | lenjueisgng |aWoH 8ie) [enusplsay poomueld
S99IAI9S
Alunwwiod g ainjng ‘syinpy
0 < 0 0 0 I 0 0 3 £ 0 [4 L | lenueisgng | (sassao0.d Jojoejuo)) shemybiy
JUSWUOIIAUT ueqdn
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IInd jusuiiseau] pund uoisuad
0 0 0 0 0 0 0|l0] O 0 0|0 O lin4 1abpaT |essusn pue Buiunoody
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (N4 sjuawsbuely soueinsu|
sa2inosay ajelrodion|
0 £ 0 0 0 Z 0 L L g 0 v L |1enueisgng sy28Y2 juawhodws-ald
a072d — saApndax3 Jeiyd
0 l 0 0 0 £ | 4 0 14 L € 0 |lehjueisgng ainpadold sjuieidwo)
J%ddd — S8AlNJax3 Jaiyd

Buipueisinp s |enp| ssa
uonepuawiwosay| 394 [16oid| "dwy
| Ajuolld  |ION| U] 1ION | V/IN |Ielol | € [4 I |I1el0L| € [4 5
: pajuawajdw) KioBajen
[ELER]
SUONEPUIWILIOIDY soueInssy vINv Liany
}iom ypne 60/8002Z - dn mojjo4
V XION3IddV 60/800¢C LHOd3Y LIANV ATHILEVND - 1IANV TVYN¥ILNI 31110730



Page 114

0¢

60/800T Hoday  JorenQ) — upny [euru] LsguLieH jo ygnolog uopuor

SUONEpUSWIWOD3I JO UoKejUaWaldW] palels aAeY SI81y0 — pajuswajdw Ajied
‘Use} USaq JOU Sy UOIJOE dAleUIS)E ‘PBSSaIPPE USaq JOU SBY UolepuswiLodal sy} — pajuswajdun JoN

IS By} SSBIPPE 0} USKE) USag Sy UONOE aAneuIa)e 10 ‘weishs ay) ul sebueyo o) anp sjgestjdde Jebuo| ou S| UOIEPUBWIWOISI BY} — VN

'sesuodsal Jo sjdwes e paljiueA SABY B\ 'SUOHEPUSWIWIODS! JO ssaiBoid ay) uoneoyiLao-)1as YBnoly) paledipul sey Sisdlyo — pajuswajduy

e R Bl SRR R T
0| z [enueIsqng 8inyny ay} Joj sjooyog Bulpiing
jo9(old pue asueinssy
Qubp 1osloid - sajesoyaa1q 1Y
L 0 L L 0 6 0| 8 bW | o | 8 | z |enuesgng $80IAI88 Hodsuel | sabuasseyd
0 0 0 0 0 [4 0| T (4 0 | 2 | 0 |renueysgng | 'SH Anquiad — sanus) s.uaipiyd
b } 0 I 0 8 I 9 0l } 9 € pajiLm [BI8USY) — aljua] s,usipjiyd
Buipueising s |onp| ss8
uonepuawiwosay| 394 |i1Boid | “dw
} Ajuoug JON|( Ul | ION | V/IN |IejoL| € | 2 jejoL| € | 2 I
pajuawajduwy RioBajesn
ELER
suonepuaWIWoIvy aJueInNssy vINV Liany
V XION3ddV 60/800C LYOd3Y 1INV ATHILHEVND - LIANV TVYNYILNI 31110734



Page 115

LS 60/8007 Hoday { 1orend) — upny feusduj Asuriey jo ygnolog uopuor|
Jeyl pepuswiwodal Jayun) si
6002 419quiaydag reulpeaq pasinay
"90UBISJ31 IO} Jje)S JUBAS|al
Syjuow XIs ulyim pale|dwiod sainpaosoid ay) aney [le O} Sjge|leAe Spew pue |aAd)
0} suejd pue 82IAI8s 8Y) j0 Juswabeuew 0} uonppe sjeudoidde ayj je panosdde ‘pajep
ul 8o1Au8g podsuel] 8yl Ag psjessdo sainpasoud ‘pPojuswWNOOp aq pjnoys sejeisdo
Ile Bunepdn pue Bumaiaai Jo ssacoud sy} ul Apuaiind 90IAI8S  podsuel]  sabuassed
S| pue g0z Aenuge4 woiy se pajulodde usaq ay) yoiym Aq sainpaosoid
sey (JJag uyor) Jebeuepy suoneted podsuel| mau y 80 AON rA 9yl Jey) pspuswwodsl s} ¢
"JOBJUOD BY} Ul N0 188
spiepue)s ay} jsuiebe souewiopied
6002 j1dy :aulpeaq pasiney Jisyy BuiAmuepr suodas Ausuenb
sBunsapy apinoid 0} suonebiqo |enioesuod
19K s,1dM 10 Buinodal ou Ajjualing si aiay) siopenuon jIsyl jJo pepulwal 8g pjnoys
Ing ‘paulelqo aiam sajnulw Buizesw Auspuenb ise| sy - 80/L1/¢ L SJ0JOBJUOD Jey} PapuUsSWWOdal S| ) Z
S99I1AI9G Modsuel ] Jabuassed
S EIREIE)
S| sIy) ainsus 0} psydope aqg ||Im
swuwelboid Bulules) e pue psaulen
Ain} ale yeys jeyy ainsus ||Im
sanua) "saJusd sy} 0} d|ge|ene
60/b0/.L :aulpeaq pasinay spew aq |m Aay} ‘penoidde souo
pue padojansp aq |m sainpaooud
ow pue sspljod axjodsaqg ayy ‘JauLieH
Jou sem uiebe yoiym ‘60/£0/€0 sem yoiym paaibe sem uo 9ojgejieae  saljod  IPDUNOD
aulpesp Mau Y ‘aulswi} usAalb ayl uiypm juswaiduwil AsbBuueyq oususb ey} aie pasn
JOU pIp OYM Jagquiaw Wes} B 0} pPa)edo|je Sem Mse| 80/Z1L/1E L Apjuauino sainpsooid pue saplod | |
jeddouan) - a4judn s ualpjiyon
SIADIAYIS S T7d03d ONNOA ANV NIHATIHD
auljpesq
uonejuawajduy
ajepdn/suswiwion snjejg/ssalboid : : jeuibuo Auoud uonEpUAWIWIOdaY Joy |
60/800Z suonepuswiwosdy ¢ — | Ajliold BuipuelsinQ - Joday ssaibold pajielag
V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y 1INV ATHILEVND - 1IANV TVNYILNI 311107130




Page 116

AN 60/8007 Hoday  1a1end) — upny [eurelu] AsguLiel jo ysnoiog uopuo|
‘siseq oipoled
e uo ‘sjeudoidde aseym ‘ssay
Bunepdn pue Bumaines Buipnpul
‘sainpasoud ay] Buiureiuiew
Jo} J92I0  pajeulwou B 0)
psubisse ag pinoys Ajjiqisuodsai

suljpesqg ;
uonejuawajduy
ajepdn/sjusawiwio) | - snjeyg/ssaibolyd reuibuo Auouyg | UOEPUALILIODIY 9y
V XION3IddV 60/800C LHOd3Y LIANVY ATHILYVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 31L110713a




Page 117

ce 60/800C 1oday f Jarrend) — 1pny [eusaiu] As8uriey jo y3notog uopuory

H1€ v¥D3 uopuoi
198115 MON BT | ‘asnoH IIiH 900 paisisiBay 791585y Jaquinu palaisiBal yum seiep pue pueibul ul pasoisiBal si PajWy] HpNYy jeulelul 101093 dljgnd ayonol g spojeq

‘PanIBsaI SIUBL 1Y "PaNILUIT IPNY [BUISIU| J0J0BS DlqNd 8YONO L *§ SHoled 60020

"UIBISA NSJRWYO] 3UdN0] a0 8yl Ag jou pue saleijiye Jo SSLEIPISANS 1Sy} IO SUY Jaquusw ay)
Aq papiroid sse seoinlg "sSWeU pajelal JBYI0 JO L NSJEWUYO] SYono | sploleQ, .Buioeq, seweu ay) Jepun Bunesado Ayus 1ebs) Juspusdapul pue ajeledas e S| swiy Jaquisw ay)
40 Yoez "SUOISSIWIO JO SIOE 8 .Jay10 Yoea Joj Ajjigel| Aue sey suuy Joquisw s) jo AUB JOU NSJEWYo | SYINO] SRIOIAQ JOYIISL ‘YoNs se ‘pue (UONBIOOSSE) UIBISA SSIMS B S| NSIBWYO0 |
SYonoL sjiojdQ NSJeWyo ] SYoNoy SHIOIRQ O LY JaquisW WwopBury palun 8yl SI UdIUM ‘4T SNI0|SQ JO AJBIpISANS B S palwil PNy [eulalu J0)03g dliand ayono) @ spiofeQ

PRI IpNY [BUIBIU| 10J08G NN SYINO | °§ S0 0} S80UBISI 18 SJI0j9Q O} SBOUSIBLS] JUBLUNDOP Siy) Uy
600¢ 1dy

uopuon

PajiwiT Upny |eulslu] J032ag dliqnd ayonoy| g axojaqg

‘pleog SpIepuelS SOUBINSSY PUE JIpNY [BUORBUIBIU| BUL AG panssi
(000€ AVS!) siuawobebuy soueinssy UO pIepUBIS [BUOIRLISIU] 3yl Yum Sjgeledwiod Jou si podal JpNe [euIsjul INo Ui PapieME [9A8] S0UBINSSE 9| "WIISAS |ONjU0D jRuIS)ul
S|qelial e jo soueUSIUBL 8u Joj Juepodwl si Juswabeuew Ag suoiiepuswIosa INo Jo uolejustus|dwy AjSw) pue SA0alT 'SIUSWNJOP asay] jo Ajpnuayine ay) aInsus o) pue
Iom JIpne Jno Jo sasodind sy} Joj suohoesUeI) pue SPI0oal BUNUNODOE 1By} 0} SS80E Jiny SN apircid o) Juswabeuew uo Aja1 om yons se pue souedyiubls pue ysu }sejealb Jo Buraq
se juswabeuew Aq payluspr Se seale UC SO0} 0) pauBISap a1e saiNPaoold JPNE JeulslU| PNEl) SAISNIO0D Isutebe jooud aq Jou Aew pue aduBINSSE BINJOSGE 10U PUE JGRUOSES]
apinold Ajuo ued 101U [euldlul JO sWS)sAS punos usAg “saiuenBou Jo pnely Jo Aupgissod ay o) spiebal aney o) pannbal are “iom Jsyy BuIONpUoD Ut ‘siopny “AlsenBai
10 pney} j0 SeoUBISWINIIG |(e AJjuap! 0} uodn paljal Jou ‘SI01UCO [eUISIUl Ul SassausEam pue syibuans fje Ajnuapl o] uodn paiysl aq jou pinoys Jipne jeulsiul Ag pawiogad yiom pue
Juswsbeuew yym sisal sanuenBell 1ayjo PUB pney Jo UONOSIdp pue uohuSAaId BY) PUB S|OUOD [BUIBI jo weyshs punos e 1oy Aypqisuodsal sy) 1oyl asiseydws opy 'sadioeid
JuswaeBeuew punos jo uoneoydde ay) 1oy sanliqisuodsal s uswabeurw 10} SINYISGNS B SB UXE) 84 JOU PINOYS PUE JOU S! 3IOM Jipne jeuwsslul Jo soueulopad oy pajusuisidu
ase Aay) aiojaq oedwl finy 11dY} Joy NoA Ag passasse aq piNoys SjuBLBACIdWI 10) SUCIIEPUSWIIODSY Bpew aq bW ey sjuswerosdul fle 1o ISIX8 JBY} SISSaUNEaM au)
IIe Jo Juswisiels aatsuayaldiod e AjIessadau Jou 818 pUE YIOM IPNE [BUISIUI INO JO 9SIN0D 8y} BulNp UOHUSHE INO 0] SLUBD YDIUM 850U} Ajuo ase yiodas sy} ul pasies siaew ay

"MOI9q N0 18s SsUOolENL BY) JO SISBG B} Uo pasedald si yolym Hodal siy) oy Ayjigisuodsal exe; apn

Ajiqisuodsay jo Juswalelg

V XION3ddV 60/800¢ LYOd3Y LIANY ATIILHVNDO - LIANV TVYNAYILNI 3111073d



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

¥ jo | abed

passiwsiq

Asuow
SJUsI|D JO 8snsiW
Jo uolebely

Bujuiepp

awi} Yom
ul uswdinbs jo
asnsiw uopebs||y

, paubisay saiojdwg

Buipusad Areuidiosiq

abpeg en|g
jJo asnsiw pabs)y

BuiuIepp USLIIAA [BUl

[eaddy uo
paleisuley ssho|dwg

pJesH [eeddy

passiwsiq

abpeg anig
jJo esnsiw pebay

passiwsiq 8aio|dwg

3oIS
1O 1sjiym Bupjiom
81eAud pebely

[eaddy uo
peleisuiay asAojdwg

psesH [eaddy

pneu} Buisnoy

S90IAISS
Ajunwwon
pue

pessjwsig eahojdwy L ! L jo uopebe|ly | sinyn)d ‘Unpy
uonebisanu|
Areuydiosiq
01 109[gns 60/€0/1€
(umouy ) SI80140 1e usnaoid | porebiisanul
(3) enjep | swoonQ Aseuydiosiq Jo "ON SOSBD JO "ON | s8se0 Jo 'ON | odA] Awsenboul) ajel1031084i(

9 XION3ddV

80/L007 WOUY4 4/9 '8 6007/€0/1€ - 80/#0/10 A3LVOILSIANI SALLEVINOIWYI - LIANY ISNOH NI




Page 120

i jo g ebed

Apuedoud
JO uoiEenjeAIspuUn

g9 XIaON3ddV

80/L007 WOY 4/9 8 6007/£0/1€ - 80/¥0/10 A3LVOILSIANI STILNHVINOIYYI - LIANY ISNOH NI

0 0 L Jenba.un paba|y
swieo
switusAo Jeinbalil $904N0SaY
paubisay sakojdwg L L L O uonebay ajeiodion
suoneodde
ueln Jejnbau)
Bulurep [eqiep X g 4 c € jo uonebely
3OIS 4O
1S|iym ssauisnq
Buiuuni eshojdwe
Buipusd ! ! L 1ey} uopebajy
swieo
asuadxe Je|
passiwsiq @9Aojdwg nBa.14|/SUOIIOIAUOD
Buriojow asojosip
Buipuad Aseuydiosia L ! ! 0} ainjre} pabajy
$82Jnosal ERTINETLS
jo esnsiw pue | sajdoad Bunoj
paubisey eaAojdw3 ! b ! pnelq gH pabe|ly ® UaIpliyD
passiwsI(
aakoldw3 X |
Buidseyawiny
paubisey Jeinbai
sahojdwig X | 2 2 z jo uoneba)|y | @AIN28XJ JBIYD
uonebiisaau|
Areudiosig
0} 109[qgns 60/€0/1€
(umouy y1) S1920 1e usnoud | pajebiisaul
(3) enjep | swoonQ Ateundiosiq JO "ON S9SED JO "ON | SOseD Jo 'ON | adAj Ajuenboauri ajelo1oalq




Page 121

t 10 ¢ ebeyd

4/4a
Wwiepw gH v 10
paubisay esAojdwg L L 1 | tenbaui pebejy
[1ounon
JO JNOAB} Ul PUNO} |3
plesH 13
4/d
jeaddy
1e pleydn ressiwsiqg uoneosydde
Buisnoy JUSWUOJIAUY
passiwsiq eakojdw3 L L L reinbali| pabe|iy ueqin
uonebyseau]
Areuydiosig
01 109[gns 60/€0/1€
(umouy 1) S19010 1e usnoid | pajebiisanul
(3) enfep | swooi1nQ Areundiosiq 10 "ON SOSBeD JO "ON | s8seo Jo "'ON | adA} Ajuejnbauyj ajeloloau(g

80/L00T WOY4 /9 8 6007/£0/1€ - 80/#0/10 AILVOILSIANI STLLIEVINDOIUYI - LIANVY ISNOH NI
g9 XION3ddV



Page 122

¥ jo ¢ ebed

0v0°L3

Ll

ll

€¢

e1ol

0r0°'L3

V/N

V/N

V/N

1dieoel
-Uuou Jo swie|o
sanbayd Hg1

opoads-uoN

passiwsiqg 9sAojdw3

S1010B1lU0D |BO0|
UM suol1osuuod

8s0JosIpP
0} ainjre} pabajy

OIS JJO

1Siiym Ausisaiun
Buipusye
soko|dws pebe||y

0

ssjpadoid 1S4
O Wwswainooud
Jeinbauy pabs|y

0

Buidesyswr |
Jeinbaui} pabajy

uonebnsaauj
Areuydiosig
0} 109lgns

60/€0/1€

(umouy y1)
(3) enjep

1e uaaoid
SOSED JO "ON

pajebiisaaul
SOSED JO "ON

SI921140
JO "ON

awooInQ Areuydiosiqg adA] Awuenbauny a1eloloaq

80/L00T WOUY4 /9 8 6007/€0/1€ - 80/#0/10 AILVOILLSIANI STLLIHVINOIUYI - LIANY ISNOH NI
g9 XIaON3ddV



Page 123

Appendix C
Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis January 2009 to March 2009

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 January 2009 — 31 March
2009.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

s hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
e are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

¢ Casual or Sessional Workers
e Schools
¢ Agency Workers

Adults Culture & Cemmunrty Servrces ;
The Chrldren & Young People s Servrce

Corporate Resources

: eople & Organrsatronal Development /
‘ Polrcy, Pen‘ormance Partnershlp & Comms

Urban Envrronment

Harrngey Councrl

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

e Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

s Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

o Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

¢ Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

¢ Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

o Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

¢ Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

| of 6



Page 124

Appendix C
Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate
AS 5 ‘ 14 19 18
c R 18 L
CR 3

o T R
T e

| BT |
HGY & 28 24 52 | 48

> 0 O = o

Please, note that the total number of cases is 52, but this only represents 48 employees.
The reason being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently.
For example, an employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

¢ Urban Environment has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at
1.50%

e 28 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

Invest. - notsuspended 9 |

. DI |
~Invest. - suspended 16 24 g 46
ET 1 0 1 2 :

Apneal | B Faa— a— PR
Total 28 24 52 100

20f6



Page 125
Appendix C

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 24 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

© Invest. -  Invest. - Invest. -

Outcome not
|  suspendeq  SuSPended  appeal BT

Appealdismissed 0

Total %

o
o

Appeal upheld
Dismissal
o actnon e
:mOther SN S
Part upheld ,
Verbal wammg

oo o ©

Wntten warnmg

NG NG IS S B P

Flna‘ ert Warnlng,, et
| R‘93'gned

SUSpens|on hfted S

0o 0o 0o - 0 4« 0O 0 O o o =

Relegatson/Demotlon

o, 0o 0 ©

RO

Compromlse Agreement
- Total :

® oo wa o000 oo

© o ©o o o o o o ©

o
N

I

=)

o 29% of cases resulted in Written Warning

e 8% of cases resulted in Dismissal

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases
: 4 | 4 B 8 )

4 . 8
Behav:our

2 2

’/Fraud/Theﬁ U . 4 e 4 . , 8 , , 15 SRR
3 0
8 8

Assault

Misuse of resources 12

| ] G
28 24 52 100

e The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Other reasons not categorised at 31%
3ofb



Page 126

Appendix C
This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representation
by Ethnicity and Gender
Female Male All
, % Total % Total %
54 e P o 73
| 58
Not Declared o 100 |
‘@”Total . 27 . 56 . 21 " 48100

 Ethnic ( Class Total ]
B&ME 19

* 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation of the disciplinary cases is
significantly higher at 44%
The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band ;
(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total dlSCIpllned employees in Dlrectorate)

 Ethnic MANUALf 'SC1-SC5 sossozf
- Group : " - WF !
§ M?B&MEfMprmwwwwmwwaWWéék, 7MTTW
P 222 0 ;00
Total E ;
LTI RET
o wms
| w0
SITINRY
e e T
e
. B&ME
PO White
?M'Total ;
N v
- e T Feo
| o T el
T T
e e o o0 T
| ot R
C manE | o .
HGY White
Total

Dir

?dd;y
00

e
ot
el
o
et
ool ot
oo s EARR
Foa e s | W e

014 A OO OO OO 0 O O = O a4

—
o

A - O 4 0 00 o0 o o

| ; ”éms;
85 12 255
5 47 100

LW
(—I.

T T

0 0

0 0

0 2 0

0 3 0

0 1 3

0 4 3

0 0 0

0 0 1

0o 0 1
et ; = | | |
OMW, o ,Wd,ée”mmWWWmmw
o o -
: e .

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 4 0

0 2 4

0 6 4

NB: 1 employee from Children and Young Peoples Service is excluded from the above table due to not having an ethnicity
declared, however, falls into salary band SC6-S02

40of6



Page 127

Appendix C
Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases
Case s Total
Noofcases o -
| No. of caces not comeiude J -—Ieaver L
Total et ,’ | 24

No. of cases not concluded

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 24 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

N o . . %:;Total d;AVgOf Max TOta‘
- Directorate  1-60 f 240+ ‘» ~ caysor .

,; : » , : cases - days of
120 | 180 | 240 | cases days total = Days |  cases |
‘ *  heard -
f | : ... cases 0 heard
57 |

f136§5f§36

AS 6 2 2

c 4 80 320 1 320

CR 2 o o 0o 0 2 8 19 23 0o 0

PO 115

PP

UE 2 1 0o 0o 0o 38 471 5 19 1 109

HGY 14 7 2 0 1 24 1538 64 320 7 &

On average, 64 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter. Of the 7 cases heard, 4
were concluded within 60 days of suspension.

50f6



Page 128

Appendix C

450

200

100

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

400 -
350
300 -
250 -

150 -

50 -

R PO UE

- BAvg. days Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

200

160 -

120 -

80 -

40 -

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case
by Quarter

The average number of days taken per suspension case has significantly reduced over the last year,
showing the benefit of the extra scrutiny and focus on management action that is continuously ongoing.

In quarter 2 we achieved our target of 70 days average per suspension case and have exceeded this

target in quarter 4.

6 of 6



Page 123 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report Title: Risk Management and Corporate Risk Register

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk management
implementation across the Council and provide a revised risk management strategy
for consideration and approval.

1.2 To provide a register of corporate business risks for review.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place and makes recommendations for improvement
where appropriate.

2.2 Risk management forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the implementation of the Council’s risk
management policy and strategy ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended note the implementation of the risk
management strategy across the Council.

3.2 The Audit Committee is recommended to review and approve the revised risk
management policy and strategy .




Page 130

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council's Risk Management
Policy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide
information on its implementation across the Council, progress reports are provided
on a regular basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the authority.
This report focuses on:
* The work undertaken during 2008/09 to implement the risk management

framework;

e The corporate risk register
» The updated risk management policy and strategy

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no specific legal issues which arise out of the report, or the
proposed recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1The Chief Financial Officer has been consulted over the contents of this report and
notes that there are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

8.2 The Council’s overall business planning process allows it to assess the impact of any
risk highlighted during the course of regular review of risk registers or the PBPRs and
those felt to have key financial implications over the medium term are addressed in
the Council’s financial plans. The financial or business impact of any risks
materialising in year will be addressed as part of the council’'s monthly budget &
performance management process.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the council, which
have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 131

and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections of
the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports and follow
up programmes, and their comments are included in the final report which is
circulated in accordance with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to implement the risk management framework is part of the contract
with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive tendering
exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this
contract are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management
revenue budget. Service departments manage risks as part of the routine work to
achieve their business plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Corporate Risk Register
Appendix B — Risk Management Policy and Strategy
Appendix C — Update on risk registers

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council’'s Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The previous version was

approved by CEMB in January 2008, and the Audit Committee, in May 2008.

15.2During 2008/09, Internal Audit has continued to work with business unit and
departmental representatives to review, test and update the risk registers in accordance
with the requirements of the risk management strategy. The review and testing of risk
registers formed part of the 2008/09 annual audit plan and will be an ongoing process in
2009/10 to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective and operate

as intended. This will also ensure compliance with the agreed strategy.

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 132

15.3The Council has been implementing a new performance management system
(Covalent) during 2008/09. This system will also include a risk management module
which will enable all risk registers to be managed electronically at business unit,
department and corporate level. The process to input the current risk registers on to the
performance management system will start in April 2009, and this will be completed by
Internal Audit, supported by Policy and Performance. Training for system users will be
provided during May and September 2009, with full reporting in place across the
Council by October 2009.

16. Corporate Risk Register and Departmental/Business Unit Risk Registers
16.1The corporate risk register is attached at Appendix A for review and approval. This
reflects those risks identified at corporate level, referenced CEMB 1 — 12 in the
corporate register. Following discussions at CEMB during 2008/09, additional risks have
been included in the corporate register to cover:
e Current economic conditions (CEMB1);
e Data quality issues (CEMB2);
e Treasury Management (CEMB3);

16.2The current high risks identified in business unit and departmental risk registers,
referenced CEMB 13 — 21 and cross-referenced to the individual departmental and
business unit risk registers. These risks may also have a corporate impact either in
financial or reputation terms. Some of the key risks included in departmental or
business unit risk registers may already be included as corporate risks e.g. overspends;
staffing issues; safety of staff and clients.

16.3 Appendix C shows the latest position for all Business Units and Directorates as at
April 2009. All Business Units have been requested to provide copies of the latest
version of their risk registers in accordance with the risk management strategy ad we
are awaiting final copies of some Business Unit risk registers in order to complete the
process of loading the information onto Covalent.

17.Electronic risk registers

17.1The electronic Covalent system will replicate the majority of the existing format for the
council’'s risk registers, but will provide Business Unit Managers with a more effective
and flexible reporting and monitoring process than the current manual process.

17.2The electronic system is able to produce a variety of reports and information to suit the
managers’ requirements. The electronic system allows managers to view and sort their
current risks individually, or by risk rating; RAG status; or actions due.

17.3 As stated earlier, all existing risk registers will be loaded onto Covalent by Internal
Audit and checked to ensure that the data is correct. After the initial data has been input
onto the system, business units will be provided with the risk register information
relevant to them and will be able to update and amend their risk registers online. In
order to facilitate this, all business units will have a nominated representative who will

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 133

have access to the system and will be responsible for keeping the risk register up to
date.

17.4Covalent will automatically send reminders to the business unit representatives when
updates are due. Internal Audit will provide resources as part of the annual audit plan to
assist business units on an ongoing basis and to ensure that all actions and updates are
being done in accordance with the relevant timescales.

18. Risk Management Policy and Strategy

18.1In addition to risk registers, the 2008 risk management strategy has brought together all
key processes involving risk, including health and safety, business continuity,
emergency planning and project management. A Risk and Emergency Planning
Steering Group has been established during 2008/09 which reviews key risk issues on a
regular basis and ensures implementation of the risk management strategy across the
council. Key documentation, including the PBPR templates have been revised to take
account of the revised risk management strategy and ensure that risk management
processes are embedded across all key functions and processes. Risk management
forms an integral part of the business planning process, including the pre-business plan
review stage and the final business plans, where business units are required to consider
the key risks to the achievement of their objectives.

18.2 The risk management strategy and policy has now been updated to reflect the

development of the electronic performance management system and is attached at
Appendix B for review and approval.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 134

gz jo | ebed 6002 14dY — 01/6002 JeisiBey ysiy sjeiodio) j1ouno) AeburieH

"Msu 8y}l 01 ainsodxa

8y} oonpaJ 0} Juswebeuew AQ payiuep! useq eABY SUOIIOE Jayun) YSu [enpisal BUIpUBISINO SI 8Jay} SJoUAA (UOIOY J8yung
‘9oe[d Ul S|0JIU0D JUBLIND Byl Yyum Bulinooo

3SI 8y} JO pooyiayll pue 1oeduw ayl S| YSiY [enpisey oyl "YsSiY lualeyuj se sbupjues swes ay} UO PassasSE S| MSiy [enpisey
‘pauiusp! ysii sy} ebeuew 0} ooe|d ul Ajjusiind aie Yyolym sasse00.4d pue SUOIOe 8y SjoJuo))

‘podai siy} o | Xipusddy ui ajnpayos sy} o} Buipioooe g 0}

| WOJ} PaI0OS ale SYSH ay} JO pooyiy] pue joeduw| oyl "sSuU a9y} ssaippe o1 9oe(d ul suonoe Bunebiyw Aue Jnoyym Inooo o} st
H A9)i| moy pue ‘Bunina20 s oy} jo 1oedwl ey} St ysu usiayul syl (7)) pooylayi pue () 1oedw| AQ passesse S| )siy juaiayul
‘Juswebeuew Ag payusp! ysu oy} siieleq :pelilusp] dsiy

suofesIuNWWo ‘Ad1j0d ¢ 9ouUBWIOHS ‘Juswebeuey pooysnoqybisN ‘Saiiunwiwo?) Jejes

‘suojjesjunwuwio)) pue sdiysisuped aosuewiopad Aolod — Dddd

Bujuies) g Juswdoloraq [euoiiesiuebli( ($81AI8S Jaquis| @ Aoeioows(d 8O0 (S80In0S8y UBWInK

:Juawdojanaq jeuonesiuebiQ pue sidoad - A0Od

sooineg Apadold (seoinieg [eba fluswiainooid

a1ei0dion) (S8OIAIBS JBWOISNY) ‘uoljexe] [e007 ¥ sljouag ‘SedIAMeS || ‘Juswebeuepy ysSiY R HpNy eoueul{ ojelodio)
1$924n0saYy ojeiodion — YO

juswdolens( ¥ poddng ssauisng (UOISN|OUl R SPJEPUBIS |00YDS ‘saljiwe) 9 Uaipjiy)

:90IM9g s,91doad Buno pue uaipjiyd — SdAD

S9OIAISS UolIesI0aYy {ABalelis % BuluOISSILIWOY S821AI9S HNPY ‘8nynd ¥ saueiql| Buiuies| ynpy

:$99IA19S Ajlunwiwion) pue ainyny) SYNPY — SOOV

uoljessuabay olwouoo] ‘BuisnoH Aunwwo) R o1be1es1s ‘uswedioug ‘juswdolansq ¥ Aoljod Buluueld ‘eusosieang
JJUSWIUOIIAUG uBeqUN — 3N

pieogq swabeue s.8A1IN09XT JOIUD — GNID

:BuIMO||0) BY] UO paseq — XSII U1 JO} Jaquinu 8ouUaisjal 8y} s|ielaq :Joy - :191sibay Ysiy oyl 01 Aa)y

"9s8Y} AJljuspl 01 pepnjoul Usaq aABY S8oUaI8La) ‘sis]siBay Ysiy

|ejusipede(g Jo/puUe HUM SSauIsng BIA Pale[eoss uasg aAey JolsiBal Siyy Ul SYSL 98U} J] 'SYUMN SSeuisng pue S8}el0}0aJlp [enpIAIpUl
JO saAo8lgo eyl uodn peseq ale SysSU 8y "JIoUN0D) 8} SS0JOB S8JEI0}08JI(] O} UOWWOD SysSU A8y 8yl INo S18S usnoop siyj|

01/600¢2 191s16ay sty a1esodion — j1ouno) AsbuueH



Ze Jo g obed

6002 14dY - 01/6002 Je)sibay Msiy ejeiodio) jlouno) AebulieH

‘abpajmou

pue uoljeuuoul

ul sdeb aseym

‘syosfoud Buiddew
spesu oioads Ajljuep| e

018 SNHO
pue Ipd Ag peonpoud
80 UBD 80USPIAS Spasu
1Bym Je Ajjeonio yoo] e
% ‘uoisinoid sjenbepe
+~ ainsus 0} epusbe
@ uoinesijeuossad yum
S suij uj pesnooyel oq
Qum 8oiInIes abeiayolg o

" SOOV AQ J0308s g
Jo 8si04ex8 Buiddew
anlsusyaidwio) e

‘peonpoud Buleq ueid
90UWI|IS8.1/UoISS808Y
‘pes| ajelodion ‘sueid

S.30V pue si0108ig IY
JBUMQ |04IU0D
‘aseyd g 919|dwoo 01 yyesH
alland jo Jojoadig uIof Yum
Buom SOV "e18jdwod
VNSIjo eseydisii4 e
"S|oA8| 1SBI8.40)
an0ge puBWSP 9DIAISS
JO SBSBO UM [Bap 0} JopJo
ul eoe|d ui suejd Aousbunuon e
‘puBwISp 198W 0}
s196png sjijoid AjoA110848 01

JOpJO Ul 1SBO8I0) PB| puBWSg  ®

‘AjunwILIoD 8y} Ul S82IAISS
panoidwil 01Ul 8nusAsl
1SOAUIB) PUB 84BD |elluspISal
Jo Buiuoissiwwod 8onpal

01 sI 8A108lqo 8100 s ABajeng

asen) Ajunwwon ayy e

UINUMOP DILLIOUODS

S.30V pue sio1os.iqg IV
:JoUMQ Ysiy

‘puBWIBP pasea.oul
0] 8NP S80IAIBS JBAlep 0} Ajjigeul

Ss8uisNg Ul passalppe 9G wio.y Buisue saanssaid €9 ue Buipnjoul ‘frouno) AebulieH
aq 03 Aluoud S yum [eap djay o1 s1ebpng B uo Ajgsianpe 10edwi suolpuod
SE Pajjljuspl uoissedsy ¢ / 8 aininy ul Aousbuiuoo jeisusy) e ] 6 OlWOUOD3 [EDO] PUB [BUOHIBU 100d | | giNgD
Aunqisuodsey ;uoo:__e_: joeduw) pooyiey | joedw) ,
0oy Jayun S|0J1uU0 Sl (2]
;.E L ct : )SiY [enpisey 2 YSIY jusiayu] S i

01/600¢ 1915169y Ysiy ajesodion — j1Iouno) AsbuueH




zz Jo ¢ ebed 6002 14dy — 01/6002 4018189y Msiy ojesodiog |1ouno) AsbutieH

. uonooes
Aaisuodsey wuswebeue Aunseal| 049/s92inosay
Ajereudoidde pepodai 01 @21ApE apinoid o] soed a1e410di07) JO 40108
pue pessalppe aJe Ul SI010BJJUOD 1SIBI09dg e .
JusweBeuely Ainsess] 60/8002 HBUMO ST
JO Mm8In8I By} ok 9¢ ul papodal pue pajsjdwod uolnouny juswebeuey
suoljepuswwooal — sjuswebuee uswebeuew Ainsesi] s Jlouno) sy}
Aue ainsug e b 6 AINSEB.} JO MOINSI [BUISIXT e 9 6 JBAO S|0J1U0D a1eudoidde JO yoeT canan

S, 30V pue siojoaiq IV
JaumQ |043u0D
[IouUNoY) 8y} O} Senss|
Aoy uo Aejuswiwiod pue
poddns spinoud o3 8oeid ul
ind pJeog sswiooinO Ajeny) e
Aurenb

O BlEP JO UONEPIBA [BUISIXD
™
~— pspoddns uoniquiy jexden e
(] Buipodal souewopad
w UUM SUOIBPUSLILIODSS
ol | |oA8] OU PUNO} HpNe JUsday e
"LNd
pue soluljo souewopsd s, 30V pue sJoaid IV
ybnoiyy paioyuow aJe |eoo| OUMA S
‘SJUBLISSOSSE 93e10108MIP pue [euoljeu yjog siojedlpuj e . O sid
pue ajelodiod bujpoddns senssli ‘sBuijes yy9 pue uoneindal
pue Aujenb eyep souewWwIopad uo Jeuige) s,J1ouno) 8y} uo syoeduwl
Buninsue Joj Ayjigisuodsai pue gN30 o1 spodal seinbay e sjusWISSasSe |eluswipedap
Yim paysijgeiss wa 01/600¢ 404 aoe|d @m pue 81eiodlod |BuIaIxe
wes} Juswebeue | ——— Ui sI WwieysAs juswsbeuew —— poddns o} eiep isngou pue
soueuLIopad 8es0dio) v 8 souewopad 91eI10dio0 MBN e / 8 8jeinooe epiroid o3 Ayjigeur uy z2dan3n
; Ajpqisuodsay pooyyexn | ioedu) | pooyyexr | 1oeduw ;
Sjo4Juo , ySIH 2 )
et fh it )SiY [enpisay ; 2 jsiy juaseyul | e ; :

01/600¢ 101s1bay ¥siy mﬁ;o&oo - __oc;:oo >mmc:m,I




2z jo ¢ ebed

6002 [4dY — 01/600¢ 1015188y Msiy e1etodiog |1ounoy AsbuiieH

219A0 ||BD 196pnqg
Ajyiuow eIA palojuow
pue jos sjebie| e
Jeal [eloueUl} Mau 0}
Joud peieidwos Buieq
sue(d [e1oueul pajie1ap
:sbuines Hdgd ¢
aoe|d ul sI spuadsiano
UMOp 82npaJ pue
[0Jju0D 01 ueld Uy e
pamainel
Auiznios/sessaooid
Buuoyuow Asejebpng e
‘19181684 Ysu o1eiodiod
g pue sieisibal
o0 MSM Hun ssauisng

TBIA Juswebeuew pue
()

s a9y} Jsurebe uosuedwo)
"sysu 196png

Aue abeuew 03 sjqe oq 01
SOAJSSAJ JO S|BAS| JUSIOIYNS
“Womawel} Juswsbeuew
108foud jewioy B uiyum
s1o9foud jo Juswebeuey
‘s196pnq snusnsy

pue [euden aJ siequusiy

01 suodal Jejnbas yum soe|d
ul ABejeJis [eiourUl JesA INo4
"lsuige) 0} peplwgns podsal
9oUBWLIOLIBd pUR 8oUBUI4
yum sseo0.d Burioyiuow
1ebpnqg Ajyuow [ewio
‘9ouRUI

JO spesH wol poddns yum

$.40V pue siojosug |V
JJeUMQ MsiY

"SSBUSS8|BWIoY

‘60 Buipuny Juswuisnob [esued

) YsSH Jo uoljeoljuspl G siseq Buiobuo ue uo syebpng 18 J0 ss0| /ABUOIN J04 BNn[EA JO
hue | NG Ag Aulgnuos —_— J1I9y} Jojluow sio1d8uIq ———— %o®| /spusdsiano /juswebeuew
D.Ucm SMaINBI Jejnbay e G 6 pue sisp|oH 1eb6png 6 6 leloueuly eyenbepeu| yan3a0
siseq Jejnbai e uo pasuodai
uonouny Juswebeuey
Ainseal] ayj Jo aouBWLIOLISd
aoe|d ul suoiouny
[euonesado Jo mainal Jejnbsy
MBINSI
[feulaixe buimoyjoy pas|dwod
sainpadsoud pue saioljod
JUBWIISBAUI Juswabeuein
0Od40/s8dinosey Ainseal] pue SJUSWIISOAUI
ajesodio) o Joyoaig S,]10UN0YD By} JO MaINaY
Aujqisuodsay |_poounsn | oeduw) 82__3: SmaE_ u
; (o) ,
FADION. ._m;tﬁ ~JiSIY [enpisay e v_m_m_ Juaseyu xw - i

01/6002 L_Sw_mmm ysiy mwmk_oa\_oo — Jlouno) >mmc:mI




2c 40 G abed

6002 I4dy — 01/600¢ 1915168y Ysiy e1esodio) 1ounon AsbuiieH

sybnoioq
JOUI0 yum uosier] e
s|ans| Buipuny Jo
109dsal Ul JuswiuIanob
[eJiued AqQgo e
‘uorneibolul
pue uolesijeuoliel
10} SOOV
Ul SUOISIAIP UsaM1aq
sSuoIOUNY paXUI|
Auept 01 ABejens
pue BUIUOISSILILWIOD) o
‘Buiuiesy Juswebeuew
(o 0] 106pnq aneo8.
™ 0} siebeuew Jan ¥

*—

@ SJeploy 196png jIy e

(@) . i
S SOOINIOS

o LA 8insus 01
ABajeais uswebeuew

1o)ew dojpasq e
‘ooe|d
u! sjoJiuoo poddns oy
pue SOV SS0I0B SHUI|
aieudoidde sunsus
o1 dnoub gns vy syl
uiyum BuioBbuo spiopp e
puads BuluoIsSILLWOoD

‘Bunjiom

Jo Aem ol pappaquie
Buiaq Asuoy 104 enjep
Buipuny

-)oeq uoisuad ul aseaJoul
108}j01 sjesodoud 196png
papodal siseq a1ei0diod

B UO spuadsiano 196png oN
siseq Jejnfal Uo usyeuspuUn

[le sesuoyINe mou gy e

Aunqisuodsey

- | poounexn yoeduwy

/UonoY Jeyund

v_w_m jenpisay

sjuswaiinbal seoinosay Jo

sjonuoD

pooyiex] | 1oedu

jSIY Jusieyu

sty

JoYy

01/6002 Lmym_mmm xm_m 29_0900 ~ |12Uno0Y >mm::mI




g2 10 g obed

6002 I4dY — 01/600¢ 403151694 Ysiy eelodio) j1ounoy AsbulieH

‘HEIS |[e 1o} Janouiny yeis ybi
uj swuwesbo.d ] 99e|d Ul SeUO 0] BUO Jejnbey PHEIS UDIH o
diyseonuaidde v ) 6V -S80INIBS
. dojoreq sainpad0id |1ouno) B Auenb  ybiy Jeanep 0} Amjqe
g 9 paaibe Buisn pajjly sisod . L/ |9y uo joedw; senss| Buyeis | 9gw3Io
SOV J0 1010811
:Aujigisuodsay
T saAnoslqo/seibelens
Buipuad) >_Sm_\_ao.ao_m SBH uswaidul
o 0} SOTS 81el010841Qg
passalppe aJe S8dIAIeS uiee} uohonpal
YnpYy jo uonoadsul TSRS [sallers
[eussixe 600¢ dul Jo 1no SOINpE bﬂmm MEMI
Buisue suonepuswiWoosl juswiainbs
. AUE BInSU3 Jeindwod asn oym yeis
) Joy Buiuteny 3gQg Aosindwon
R usyeuspun
. SdAD Jo Jo1oauq SIUBLISSOSSE YSIY
Dnm :Aljigisuodsey usMepspun supne
o|qeIeWI) posiBe Keres ¥ yiesH aiesodion
ou1 Y1IM wocmo — sjuswalinbai Alajes
ul sejued jueAsal PUE Uijeay o1 Sxull yum soeid
__m.. o U spoday pue ut Absjens juswebeuep ysiy
paje|dwod aJe ueid uoloe pajuswadwi
UV Ul SYse} Aoy aInsu Burures; Buipsenbajeg
‘Buisue d i
ISl ind pieog sawoonO Ayend s ue sJio}o
uoloe Jo uofesiioud SdAD Ag siseq Jenbai 3OV P .__ Peidiiv
pue Buipsenbajes VA € U0 penodal pue paiojuow 2/ HOUMO Sid
Uim sdepoll | ————— Buieq pue peaibe ued c.o:om ———— '
! ! HB1S pue sjuslo
JO >>m_>m,\_ m“m\_oﬁumw__m 9 / ("UVr) meiney ealy iiop 6 8 Joj Buisg-jlem pue Aejes jo yoeT Sanan
Aujqisuodsey pooyyeyn | 1oeduw pooyyeyr] | 10edwy) :
JUOIOY Jayun4 Sjo1ju0n S| ,
| : ysiy |enpisay YSIH JuaIayu] i e

ov\moom L_ﬁm_mmm ysiy mﬁm‘_oakoo — 1Iouno) AsbuueH




22 40 1 abed

600¢ 1Y — 01/600¢ J81siB8Y ¥siy e1esodio) j1ouno) Aebulien

B UO SJoquis|y pue ging0
0} spodeal pue aoejd Ul 4S9
‘B9 spJieogq 109loid oioadg
siseq Jejnfal e UO SIaqUISiA
pue gN3D Agq pasonuow $.30V pue siojoaiiqg IV
‘309 M 01 sdnoib pue aog|d ul swwelboid IOUMO YSIY
gns woJ Buipodsi piemiog AsbulieH
0 opho  opas e ‘sewiweiBboid "S9A08[qo
diysisuped oibejeiis [IBJSAO S JIDUN0D 8yj uo
's109foud Aoy 9¢ BuInINo SS0JO JejWIS 9G Joedwl spJepuels SeWoH jusdsq
Jo} pejdope yoeoisdde e pue sjusWesIBy Baly [B00T] — ‘21nnd 8y} Joy sjooyog Buipjing
wewebeuew 109foid e 9 9 10 Buuoyuow pue AssAleq 8 J 68 *syosloud Aex o auniied | yqingo
‘oswwelbouid juswdojensp
yeis [enuue pue ue|d ajdosd
usyeuspun SMalAIBiuUl X
o siseq Ajyiuow e uo pamaline
A pue peonpoud sonsnels YH
® aoe|d ul seinpseosoud
& ® S310lj0d HH Sjeiodiod $,30V PuE sI030811Q IV
ol [9AS]
ajel0diod e je soueldwood ABUMQ MsiH
9JNsSuUd 0} paiojiuow pue
aoe|d Ul sseooud |esiesdde "S99IAJSS 9)el0diod 0) uoddns
aouewoped posiby aleudoudde spinoid 0} Ayjigeur e
‘slosintedns/siabeuew Butuueld uoisseoons
jle 4o} 8ok|d U swiweaboid Jo/pue AINuiuoD JO 3oe| e
Juswdojansp juswebeuepy , pue
‘}JB1S ||e 0] Sepeosen ‘Jonousny wes} Juswebeuew e
BuiysLg wes] eyl ainsus yels ybu
"S90IAISG UOIjea108Y SUONEDIUNWIWOD [BUIBIU| urejas Jo/pue ynuoal oy Aljigeu; e
Aunaqisuodsey pooyiiey | 1oedu| pooyyey] | 1oeduwy ;
i e NSiY [enpisey P 3SIY 1uaiayuj e i

01/600¢2 huﬁw_mom sty ayesodion) — j1ounon) AsbulieH




2z J0 g ebed 6002 14dV — 01/600¢ 491s1beY sty e1eiodio j1ouno) AsbulieH
saoe|d Jeneg pue ‘padojanep
‘AebunieH Jeneg ‘pieog ABejens Alenp eleq e
EoEm>oaM_c_ mc_msoﬂ Bulyoid aoueuLIOpSd ® S,30V pue sio1oaaq iV
"9’ ‘pJeoq diysieupe Aueinbau i
/ewwesboidyosfoid POMBIASI PUE m_vomga ul HOUMO Sid
jueAsiad se|ni ainpasoud 1oeauod $J01EDIPU| JUBWSBIBY
pue {INJ BiA uohoe JO VA 4 /@oueuly pue uonebajep €9 ealy [e007] pue [euojjeN ‘Bo
uonesiuoud pue mained | ——— JO awiayos Buipnjoul SO ‘syobue)] pue sjuswalinbal jebs)
‘Buioyuow Jeinbay 9 J UOIINYISUOD |I2UNOD) e 6 J pue Aioinjels s 01 ainjie 69INID
‘adam eui Aq
paJoyuuow aJe sdnoub gns sy}
JO SsauaAloaye syl ‘'ddgam
pue 3DEM eyi 03 bodal pue
s109loud jo ssaiboud Jojuow
s pue passnoo} aWooINo
— aJe sdnoib swooino gd4gm
o siseq Jejnbai uo paiojuow $.30V pUe siope
2 pue eoe(d Ul ABeiens [euden A0V P 1aiv
o 's108loid jenpiAlpul JeumQ sy
Joj) Buuoyuow pieog weans -spUadsIano
"1auIgeD 01 pewgns 196pnq Jo swweiboid
vodal sourwIOuad 8y} Jo AlaAljep-UouU JO ¥Su
0€ pue aouBUI4 YIm L8 e 01 buipes| swuweiboud jeudeo
—_— ‘eoeld ul ssao0.4d Bunoyuow ——— S, |IoUN0Y 8y} JO uswWwebeuew
G 9 196pnqg Ajyjuow [ewio 6 6 ‘ajeudoiddeul Jo 4o %07 | gqing0
uo
pauodal pue paioyuow aJje
yoiym aoeid ui sjuswesbuere
uswisbeuey 108foid
siseq Jejnbal
Anniqisuodsey pooyiexr] | 3oedu) pooyiieyr] | 10eduy i
\:o_B< ._m:__tz..._ )SiY [enpissy. Al YSiY juaisyu| i 25

01/600¢ 1915163y Ysiy aieirodio) — [1Iouno) >mm::m: |




g2 10 6 obed

6002 1udy — 01/6002 4918168y Ysiy e1eiodio) [ouno) AebupeH

"aoe|d Ul JSH 98Ul 10} WwnJio4
wswabebuz Ayunwiwon
‘pajuswsiduwl S, 30V pue s101024iq IV
9%ddd - 30V dSH 98U} Joj juswisiels JBUMO YSIY
-Aujgisuodsey aoueuwsnob jenuue . :
o puUE 80UBUISAOK) JO 8p0D SJ0}08s ssaulsnq
eaJe AsbuneH ‘3101088 Jusisyip pue suopesiuebio
9y} jo sjoedse ssauisnqg pue suoljesiueblio [eulolxe yum uolieindal s, |iounod
aAljsod ajowold o¢ [euselxe yum sdiysuorielas €9 9y} uo joedwi Aew yoiym
0} pasn aq pjnood —_— ey Jo wswdojenrsp — senjunpoddo Buppom diysisuped Ll
dSH 98Ul Moy Japisuoy) e G 9 PUE JUBWIYSI|geIST J 6 ajowoud pue asiwixew o} ainjie4 anan
siepinoid ||
yum sbunssw mainel 9oinI8Sg
peisel
suejd Aununuod ssauisng
Q pue A1on0291 Jslsesi( S, 30V pue siooauqg 1Y
- ‘syuswebuerie Aynuiuod -
%t_ SI | v_\_oszm\_mM MM_ 8¢ ssauIsng pue £1310084 6V . 0 v._m..m
e Jsisesip waisAs Buipnjoul dvS ‘0o oL
%_o_ Aionooss Jeisesiq b / ‘ooe|d Ul sseoo.d ssauisng J L | ‘sweishs "1’ eresodiood jo ainjied | giagn
s1eb.e} 19awW 0} suonoe
Ajiuspl sueld ssauisng e
"'SWI81SAS
. JBY30 pue feioueul) A8y Joy
_.mwo_\m% Mf__mzmvwmwmowm_@ aop|d Ul S6J0U 8INPad0Id e
sainsesw aouewlioped
au3 03 ybnodyy Aposuip Yum mo:m:a&oo
payoeJ} 8q 01 SJoedipul uo m.toam\_ \_m_zmwm .
YV O} paxulj s1oefoid uexEUSpUN
‘diysisuped supne sidwes wopuey e
Anpqisuodsay pooyyeyry | joeduw) pooyieyry | 1oedw
JUOIOY Jayun4 ; SISt ErDIseis s|osuo) )siy 8y

ysiY juaseyu|

oL \moow 1018160y v_w_m 3@_0900 ..:oc:oO Kebuney




Page 143

22 10 0} obed 6002 IMdY ~ 01/600¢ 4e181B8Y Ysiy a1ei0dio) 1ouno) AebuueH

‘'selousbe yjesH pue adiAIeS
ssauisng |[ews ‘eoinies
wswAhiojdw3 ‘yqg ‘@olod
ay1 ‘69 ‘sieuped Jojoes
Ayunwuwod /Arelunjon pue
Aioniels yum yom BuiobuQ e
‘ooe|d ul
dSH 4o} dnoub uswebeuew

2ouUBWIONad [9AS] BAIINDBXT e

Aunqisuodsay pooyyeyry | 1oedu) = : pooyyeyr] | 1oedwy

mobco; sl | FEtH
At isi [enpisey Al SIH Juesoyul o i

01/600¢ Lmam_mmm xm_m 9@6&00 — |1ouno) >omczm:




22 40 || obed

6002 14dY — 01/600¢ 1815168y Msiy erelodio) jlouno) AsbuieH

Page 144

049/s92inosay
a1elo0dio) Jo Jojosag

:Aupgisuodsey

pned}
a1eing|e 0} swalsAs Buiubisep
Uaym Sj0JuOoD jeulalu|
JuswIWwIoD pue

a1ebiisaaul 03 seiunuoddo
8yl aABY S82IAISS

pue seouelieA Aue saijuapl
wswebeuew 196pnqg Ajyiuon
$921AIBS pue spoob

jo Buisseoouid o} uone|el

ui selnp jo uonebaibeg
Buioesuod

pue juswainoouid o} uonejel
ur 9oeid ul seinpadsoud 1sngoy
SAllellU} pnel4 [euolieN

ay} u1 sejedioiued [1ouno)
el Wews pue jaug wes |

ui siseq Jejnbal e uo papirocid
sBuijeliq sseusieme pnel
sJo3siBal ysu [eyuswpedsp

ul pepnjoul pnelj Jo Xsiy
sueld yjsuag BuisnoH pue
HpnNe [eulaiul Ul YIOM pnedy
aAl1oe-04d JO awweliboid
siseq Jejnbai e

uo pamajaal pue aoeid ur ueid

S.40V pue sio108iq IV
doUMQ MsiY

suoljebpsanul lC asuodsau pned) pue Aoijod 18 |oAs)| s|geIdecoe ue 2
pneJj [njssaoons —_— Buimo|g-aisiym ‘Aberens — 0} pned} JO ¥su eyl ebeuew o} jie}
JO sjiedp ysiand e o 6 uoidnuod pue pnelj-nuy 9 6 saunpaooud pue saioijod jlounon | N3O
Aunqisuodsay pooyyey | 1oedwy | poouteyr] | 10eduyy |
S|ojuonH )Siy joy

/uonay Jeyung

%SIY [enpisey

3SIY Juateyu)

01/6002 ‘_mwm_mmm ysiy a1eso0dio) — [1Iounon) >,mmc_‘_m_._




22 10 g1 ebed

6002 14dY — 0L/6002 Je1siBay sy e1elodio) jouno) AsbulieH

age 145

Q1j0M18U BY} JO UOIIPUOD
a1enbape ayj aJnsus

01 ABajells JUsWIISaAUI
Jeak usay e saliuspl yoiym
padojaasp ussq sey

ue|d sweabeuely 19ssy
"YIM }Bap S| 8ouruUSIUIBW

9AIloBal 8INsSuUd
01 9@oe|d Ul swisiueyosw

‘sejoyjod 1noge syuiejdwod
paonpas pue |njssaoons
KaA usaq sey yoiym
swwelboud zyq sjoyrod

0} paiedojie 0000023
‘SpJepuels 10BIUOD YUM
90UBpIOOOE. Ul pale|dwod

S| }JOM SI0}0BIUOD

1eyl ainsus pue sAemybiy
8y} uo syne} Ajuepi

0} aorid ui awibai uoijoadsu
"ybnoJoq sy} uiyym
swweaboid ainjonssesul
pue 9oueBUBlUIBW BU}

puny 0} $824n0saJ sapinoid
uejd Buipuads ybnolog ey
'syibusy

[IN} Ul pUB UOHUSAISIUI
Buuinbai speod sy} e
pajabiey si Yoiym |1ounod ayy
Aq pepinoid Buipuny jeude)
‘POAJOSSI PUB POSSNISIP aJe
sAejep pabesinue Aue ainsus
0} SI010BJIUOD YUM play aJle
sbuesw ssaiboud Jusnbaiy
‘Ajwixoad 8sojo ul

Jebeuey aoueusiulely sAemybiH

“JIOUMQ YSIY
wes}

VMSHN UM UOlBUIDIOOD e
$90JN0S8J JOJOBIJUOD e

als
Uo 3Jom juswsidwi o} ainjie] e
Buyels e
"SWwie|o
@ouelinsul 01 ainsodxgy e
‘'shanins

Aduueos, Wouy [9As] Xapul
paiinbai oy} Builesw JoN e
JUSWIISOAUI JUBIDIYNSU]  ®

:opnjoul Aew
3SU SIy} 01 sJojoey Buiinguiuon
‘pJepuels o|gqeuoseal e 01 1dey

aJe Aemjooy pue AemabeLLied
1Byl 8insus 01 aJnjie

Msu -
Bunoyuow 1e6png Buunp BuLIN220 SyIoMm 0} yoeoidde A1eyes pue yyeey e Buisod pue (els )
spodal wbiybiy yosloid Gy pajeuIpio0D B Sl 81ay)] aJnNsus 2/ JuswiuosAuS 8y} uo Bunoeduwl c=iell
"Buliesw pejeuIpiooo Je 01 Wea} YAMSHN 9yl yum 8IN}UIN} }9811S puk ainjonJiselul el
peybiybly ase swejqoid 6 S piay aJ1e sbunesw ssaiboid 6 8 sAemybiy jo uoneiousidg | gn3an
Aupnqisuodsey el sty ) ‘ i
JUonoy Jayunyg )SIY |enpisay sjoiuo) jSiY juaiayu] - sy jod

01/600¢ 101s1bay Ysiy a1elrodio) — j1ounon) AsbuueH




g2 10 g1 obed

6002 I4dY — 01L/600¢ 4818168y Ysiy e1elodio) 1ouno AsbulieH

‘Siyi

ut SOV poddns o} Buppiom
JuswaIno0Id ayelodion
"S}IOBJUOD dS JUslnD
Japusl-al 0] Wawalnbal sy}
40 By ul Ino paes Buleq
sbBuines pasodoud Jo mainey

Ksuow

10} anjeA Ja118q ansiyoe

0} J8pPJO Ul S92IAISS
Bunsixs uiyum Buipuny

8y} |opow-a. Jo/pue
a1eubisap-ai 0} sjesodoud
ouoads e Bupjoo)

osje pJeog diysieuped 4

:JBUMO [0JIU0D
196png ay;
uo shooj 0} AjieaA ao1m] 108w
0} dnolg) aAIIN08X3 gddS e
60/10/¢¢c
uo pJeog diysisuped 4S 8y}
Aqg paJspisuoo swweiboud
dS 9ui ul seiouaioys/sbuines
}SOD jo seaJe oljoadg e
(adds) pseog diysisuped
g|doad Buipoddng
ayy Aq paalbe pue padojensp
ApeaJe Absreng sbuines
pue Buipunj wiey buo] e
ssa004d 186png
ay} pue pJeog diysisupned

Bujuoissiwuwion jo
pesH/ABarens ¥ Bujuolissiwwon
JO 103081 JUBlSISSY

JaumQ sty

Juswealbe eale [200] 01 padull

aq jou Aew ybnoyye ‘1 1/0L0g
ul (gSYy) eln paseg eeiy
oju! Buiob juesb swweiboud 4g

uoljiw 9'g1L 3 Alerewixoidde
01 L 1/010¢ uononpal %5

uoliw 9'613 Ajerewixoidde
01 01/600¢ uollonpal %g

(o)
< pleoq dS 8u3 ybnoayy pabeuew 01 ybnoJIY} PaLLIIUOD
Jn_lu diysisuped 4s ybnoiayy Buteq | 1/0102 PUe 01/6002 :omﬁ,mn\uwmwcwﬁozumdw n_Uw L_wmpt: q (9'1s%D
3, slesodoid uoponpai Jo} Buipuny punoJe senss| e SHOY)
@ Buipunj jo uoneoyel pauoissilwod ‘uoliui. 0¢3 o1
o [ewuo} pue sispiroad 0¢ g UBD YdIym SadIAIeS 18 wnuue Jad uoiiw €123 WoJj %€
UM UOIBYNSUOD | ————— J0 [9A8] 8y} Uo 1oedw — Aq peonpai useq sey 60/8002 Ul Gl
J0 swwelboud G 9 sy} ebeuew o1 puey Ui sue|d e 6 6 uolreoojie (ds) sjdosd bBujpoddng | dIN30
9o1AI9g Juswdona ¥ Ad1j0d
Butuue|d jo J0108.I JUBISISSY
80IM8g JuswWdojans(g JIBUMQ MSiY
» Aoljod Buiuueld jo pesH
:AQ uonoy ‘Remuspun Ajusiino yeis ‘'sebusjieyo [ebej ur ynsas | (LAdd
‘passao0.d Ajpusiolye paouauadxa Jo JusiinIoay Aw sajeosawi} AI0INIBIS UIYUM an)
ale suoieoldde |e ainsus S ‘wes} sl 18 suoljeolddy Jole jo Jequinu
o1 paylluepregq ol pedu | Joley e jo uswdoleasp ayy oy | ueoyiubis e ssaooud 01 Aujigeu) vl
Aew s824n0sal [BUOILIPPY 9 6 aoe|d Ul $824N0S8. [BUOIHPPY 6 6 :awwelboud seys Asy jo Aiealje@ | gNID
Ajjiqisuodsay | | ; ;
S|oJjuon) )SIY juaiayuj J9Y

Juonoy Jeyung

)SiY [enpisey

NSty

01/6002 Lmuw_mmm_ ysiy ajeso0dion — __o::oO AabuueH




ge 10 v} sbed 6002 14dy — 01/600¢ 4918188y Msiy @140dI100) 1ouno) AsBulieH

Page 147

Bujuoissiuwon

Jo pesH/Abarens

B Bujuoissiwwon
JO 1010841 JUBISISSY

:Aujigisuodsey

gddsS Aq yo ubis

01 Joud pJemioy Bupe; uo
slequiew WoJj Juswesibe Buiuoissiwiwio) jo
puUEB UoISSNOSIP 40} pesH/Abaienis ¥ Buluoissiwwion

gyo o1 o6 031 suoionpal 4s JO 10308l JuBISISSY

Aujiqisuodsay , | _ | | ClE iy 4 ,
/UONOY Jayun4 3SiH _mzu_mmm_ m_ob:oo : xw_m g bl ; jsiH JoH

01/6002 hmgm_mmm Msiy mgm‘_oahoo - __o::oo >mmc:mI




22 jo G| ebed

6002 Iidy — 01/600¢ Je1siBey Msiy e1eiodio) j1ouno AsbulenH

o)

4

—

%u S92IAIBS UOoIBaI0aY

@© J0}0auIq JuelSISSY

0 :AQ uonoy
Ndd/siemauai

pue sallijloe} Mau
Ul JUSWIISSAUI pauue|d e
sue|d juswdojansp

S80IAISS
uoljea08y 1010841 JUB]SISSY

:JaUMQ |041U0D

¢006 OSI/SWD
Buimes 10buey/(ssuleseq
WIBWYDUS(Q) 8SI0I9X0

BuppewiyoUSq [BNULY
swibai adourUSIUBW

aAljuanald pauueld e
siueidwod e1el0diod

Hoeqpas) Jswoisny e
sAenuns

Jasn fenuuy /shkening e
awuwesboid jlemausy aoedg

uadQ/Abereng soedg uadp e
sueld

S90INIBS
Joo8lIg  uelsISsy
ABUMQ MSIY

(2 ennoslgo aoinies)
SOlI9BWAD Ul Al9jes |euowsw -

uonieslosy

/iuswabeuew eswdojensp /iuswebeuew “ pue
pue uolieoyioads pue uoljeolioads 8oIAI8S -S1S09 mocE:wEh pesessour - | (LSH

aoines ‘ABeresis Aoljod ‘Aoljod syied jo juswdonrsg e . I -pautejurew SOOY)

syed jo wewdojoraq e Jeak sy} 4oy swwesboud |Sleldoidde jou aJe sjesse
(leuseixe G [ended /JUsWISOAUl 8OIAISS e 2/ ji S)S00  pesesloul JO Nsu -
Jo [eusayul) Buipuny soeld Ul swwelboid :seunlur o sl peseasoul - 91
[euolippe 1o} pig e S S JuawsAoIdW] 19SSY Syed e 6 8 -S]osse JO uonelouslsg | dINGD
Apqisuodsey ,
- /uonoy Jeyung YSiY [enpisey sjonuod | iSid jusisyu) Ysiy j°d

01/6002 Fﬁm_mmm Msiy tho&oo — |1oUuNOn >mm::m: -




22 10 9| ebed

6002 4V - 01/6002 Je1siBay ysiy e1eiodio) f1ounoy Asbuley

192130 [eloueUI4

Jalyn ‘sv8oinosay

a1elodion) o Jo3oaiIqg
:Aq uonoy

Page 149

JODIOS I1SNJ| pue
1SNJL 8yl YUMm panisdal
swie|o Aue mainay

192110 [elouBUIl] J8IyD
‘s92Inosay a1es0dio) Jo Jo108.id]
:loumQ [ouo)D

JOJIU0D
[eusaiul pue aoueulenob
anoidwi pue juswsroidul
10} seaJe pajliuspl ssaippe
01 9oe|d ul ueid uoIOY e

sessao0.d |0J1u0D
pue aoueulonob e1ei0diod
SSOSSE 0] polajdwod SMaIneY e

sessoo0.d
[eaosdde jewuoy 031 1o8lgns
poddns Jayjo pue jeioueul{ e

J1IouNod 8y} Aq

80O [eloUBUIY JOIUD
‘se0Jnosay 81es0dio)) 10 Jo1o8uIq
IOUMQ YsiY

"saunssaud
feroueuly jueoyiubis ur Bunynsau
s88ISnI|  pue  [IouUNOD) 8y}
Jsuiebe epew swied pusjep o}
Alngeu; ‘seaosiqo Aey s j1ounod

pajusweidwi st 1usWwaA|oAUl BuioBuo o3 piebei oyl uo 1oedun Apusnbesgns | (24D)
uejd uoloe Jey} ainsus o} UHM PBUIBIQo 80IApE [BBaT e pue obusjeyo o1 108lgns
jueAS|al aleym Buojuow lc €9 aq Aew yoiym seounosa. Buiobuo
pue poddns Buiobuo| ——— pie0g ddV U0 sedinossy | v lo/pue jeuonippe  sauinbai YA
apinoid 01 enuiuon e 6 e1eiodioD Jo Jojoallg e / 6 (ddY) eoeed % Med eipuexsyy | N30
Aujiqisuodsey g
/uonoy Jayun4 ASiY [enpisey sjonuod jSiYy juaiayu) jsiy {9y

01/600¢ 1818169y 3ys1y ajes0dio) — j1ouno) AsbuLeH




22 10 /| ebed

weswabeuen

Ysid pue ypny jo peeH
Aq uonoy

eig A dINY
}JO uojnjosals Buipuad

paAels 8sed UNoY

Hnoo
jeadde jo uswebpnl
Buipuad 0102 Yot -
60 Ainp 1en02 01 soeid ul
TAYT Yum spuswebuelie
Aousbuipuon

Page 150

JabBeuepy 8oueINSU| pue YSiY
1J8UMQ [043U0D

yoeoudde

pue suoido mainal 01 AV
yum piay sbunesw sejnbey e

$901AI9G [eDaT 8snoy-ul
pue sybnoiog uopuo] Jayio
yum yoeoudde pajeuiplo-00) e

SUOWILLNS UNOJ 0} 8duUsiep
apinoad o3 sybnoiogq uopuo]

AqQ (siseq aJeys-1S09 e Uuo)
pajutodde SIOUONOS [BUIOIXT e

22IApE Juspuadapul [euis1xe

6002 14dY — 01/600¢ Je1siBey siy 81ei0dio) j1ouno) AsbueH

WG ¥sid 2 HpNY JO peaH

‘pnoo |eadde apinoid 0} pajoesuod “JOUMO MSIY
10 wewsbpnl Buipuad J9)0iq aoueinsul i1sieoads e .
600z ounp - udy asE0 1Noo 0} Joud ee(d Ul A ploA pasapuies sie soed |+ HEY)
10} NV elA pebuelie Ge S10BJIUOD 1Y} PaINSUS SWUB) —_— Ul S}0BJJUOD pUE |NJSSaooNs 8l
doueInsul WL S / NV Jo 9oueydeooe Aeg e 9 l S TV o1 8busjeyo [ebe | N0
~ Aupqisuodsay | , ‘ o , :
~ JUOnOY Jayun4y - )SiY |enpissy Sjonuo) sty 1uaieyuj sy iSH

01/6002 Lkm#w_mmm ysiy oaresodio) — __uc:oo AabuuenH




Z2.10 g\ obe

600z 14dY ~ 01 /6007 481siBay YsIH a1e40di0n) 19unon AsBuLieid

i S90INIBS
‘lens) aeiodiod e Ausdoud e1ei0dio) jo pesH
e e pa1EpI|OSUOD 0.4} 01 8oe|d Ul 8Je S|0JIU0D LJOUMO YSiY
/peaibe  uesq  eAey 1B pue sjqejieAe spew .
seidiound pue ABejens aJe s$904nosal jeyl Buunsugy e owweIBosd
oy} ‘wes| eyeiodio) sy} [peojluowl pue ov psemio AeBuueH ay1 Aq 1os
JO JUSWISAIOAUL BU} UM Umc_ﬁc_mmE Buisq pue soe(d sieb.e} 88w 0} S|fey OS pUE SWil
Ul SI J91SIDaY Sy psjielep y e 8 uo pale|dwod Jou si ABsjen
SRl eI 0T S€ Jebeuepy . UOIIEPOWILLODDY w.__oc:ow
ur peisy sysel buiuonoy . G uswdojpnaqg ¥ AbBslens 1essy
:JBUMO [0J1U0D
"92JN0S8. PaiedIpap
yum preog uolnelsusbay
Avedoud ayi paysiigeisy e
‘siseq Ajyiuow
— "UBSIOM SUOIHPUOD e uo aoe|d ul s s1osfoud pue
_wm%mE Se ‘paJepisuod aq sfesodsip |je jo Bulioyuow
@Aey s1osloid swios Jsjep pue sisAjeue pajieleq
@« suolsioep  olbejens |043U00 Jsyesild
Qowwelboid uo sioedw ainsus o} pajusws|dwl
pue  SUOINPUOD 18)JBwW usaq aney sweisAs Bupjoe.
Buimainal pue BuLoyuow pue Buuoyuow paroidw e
j0  sseooid  BuobuQ sjosfoid
jo ssauboud abeuew oy soe|d
*90IN0Sa4 PaRIIPap Ul 8InjonJis mael/buiodey e
yum pJeog uoijelsusbey SBWO02INO0 B|geIaLul}
Ausdoid eyl psysigeis uo snooy o} sjosfoud Jolew SOOINSS | (gSy
lle 03 paubisse sjueynNsuod Auedold erelodioD Jo pesH | /g gy
‘s100loid jenpiaipul Isleoads pue yeis oyloedsg e aauUMQO MSIH | y0)
Jo}  s|gisuodsal  esoyy ‘aoe|d ul si €9
JO  siMs  eyr  anosduw Ge syo9foid e Jo} Ayjiqisuodsa. ) 5 -abe)s swdojansp o}
"asipedxs pue |0J1uod S / Jea|d Yum waisAs ssaiboud 01 |ie} s1oefoidoiberens 6l
108foud panosdwi dojeneq uswebeuew swwelboidy e :AisAnep 100loig | N30
Aupqisuodsey i
JUooYy 18yun4 xw_m [enpissy SjoRuoH ASIY usaeyy jSiY JeY

01/6002 4915169y Msiy ajesodion — [1ouno) >mmc:mI




2c 10 61 ebed 6002 I4dy — 01/6002 1818168y Msiy o1ei0dlo) (1ouno)) AebueH

Saljiunwiwo’) Jajes Jo pesH
JauUMQ |0U0D
aoe|d ul uejd Aousbunuoo
oiwspued nji4 yeiq e
aoeld
ut ueid ni4 10d Aebuuep e
lebeueiN DGR3
S\ pue 82IAJ8S JO peoH payhiusp!
LO ; ‘usaq aney d1wespued
— :Aq uonoy
o el Aue Buunp psuiejuiew
aQ 0} S82IAIBS Bl
w Nl S.10UN0) 1O-UBIS q o1 ! [eolID e Jebeuely | (gng
n_ anan >Q U®>OLQQN pue 0d%dd pue 82IAI8S JO pesH _ Oﬂ_n_&v
u mc_mrwmﬁu_ww_oumw aoe|d Ul S| (30y Se1ouabuiu0d ABUMO XSId
S e 1A1D) sjuswiaiinbay 12 JBIS puB S1UspISaJ O} SYSLI ay}
84049 | ——— Aioiniels yum saljdwoo yolym — Buisea.oul ‘oiwispued ny) e 4oy 0c
J1ey3 e191dwood 031 s,Ng e g uejd Aousbunuoo ajesodio) e e 6 Ajerendosdde asedeid oy aunjeq | GNID
sjuswsbuere ueld
108loid |ieisno sy Jjo ped
se wesel uonejusws|dw! Jobeue|y piojpueT] a1ejodio) e
8y} 0} peppe uesq
sey jueynsuod sbueyo vy 2JBUMO |043U0D)
- Aynqisuodsay ; R e . YFi=r) 2
/UonOY Jayunyg ASiH [enpisey Sjotio) | SIY jusiayu| ASiH i°Y

01/600¢ 491s169Y Ysiy o1e10dion — |10uno) >mm::mI




2z 40 0z obed 6002 14dY - 01/600¢ 4e1siBey Ysiy 8ei0dio) 1ounog Asbuiie

Page 153

$921N0ssY UelWnH JO pesH

$804Nn0Sey :18UMQ [041U0D

uBWNH JO pesy

mEum_Mme”“@q soe(d uj ueyd
e et O Aianjep pue uofejuswe|dw] e S8DIN0SaY UBWNH JO PeaH m PM_M

‘pasinbas gW30 ybnoayy Burodsi -SUMO Sty
se ue|d Juswebebus 12 ‘ued 109foud ‘dnoub 108foud ¢ ‘ueld
sulaJ pue —_— Jwbw Jojuss ‘dnoufb Jsquisiy BEE— uolreluswedun sy Jo 1oeloid LS
sysu 108loid JoyuUO e e 3 Buipnjoul eoueUION0b 108[01d v 6 Aed [enbe sy Jealep 01 ainpeq4 | GWN3D
Juonoy Jeyung | sSiY [enpisey sjofuoy )SiY juaiayu SR T B e 8y

01/6002 ._Em_mmm xw_m_ ajesodio) - j1ouno) AsbuueH




Page 154

gc jo | g obed 600¢ Iudy — 01/6002 J83s1baY Ysiy sjesodio) ounoy AsbulieH

SS8UISNQ JO JBJSUBI}/SINSO|D IO (B8] J1Be1elS
SUUOW g | IX8U Ul U000 01 Aje)l] %08< 1e j1oedw Jofew Jo uoljjiWw |3 9AOQE SSO| [BlouBUIl 6

UOIB.ISIUILLUPE JSAO 8)e] JUSWIUISAOK) [BIIUSD)
1o Ayoiignd asisApe [euoijeu Jo jans| oibeje.ls
SUIUOW g | 1X8U Ul Un220 0} Ajel| %08-%09 1e 10eduwi 40 uojjjiw |3 0} dn SSO| [eloURUI 8

suoloues AioreinBau Buouis Jo Aporgnd
8SJoApE [BUOIIBU JO SOAI08[qO |oAs] oiba1eS
SYUOW Z| 1X8U Ul 1n920 0} Ajd)I] % 09-% 0F uo 1oedwy Jo 000‘00S3 01 dn SSO] eIOUBUIS /

(spodau 1s8401U1
olignd ‘uonuaAelul Sk yons) suonoues Aiojeinba.
1o Anoygnd asisnpe |B00] 10 s8sse00.d Jsy10 9
Syjuow g1 IXau ui ind20 0} ANl %01-%0E Auew uo joedw 10 000‘00ET 01 dn SSO| [BIoURUI

wisionuo Aioeinbau
Buouis 1o Ayolgnd asieApe |Bo0] 40 S8A08[qo
SYJUOW g IXau uj Und20 01 A|gXl] %08-%02 Jay1o uo 1oedwi 4o 000‘001L3 01 dn ssoj [eloueUl S

SOAI199[qo J8y10 uo 10edW SWOS 40 8ousnbasuod
SYIUOW Z| I1X8U Ul In220 01 Al %02-%01 Aiojeinbal Jouiw Jo 0O0‘0S3 01 dn sSO| JelouBUI ¥

Ayongnd asianpe ou 1o aAoslqo sibuis
SYuoW Z| 1Xau Ui 1n020 01 Aid)l| %0 L-%G apIsino 1oedwi ou 4o 000‘0L3 01 dn SSO| Jeloueul e

Auonagnd esiaape ou o aanosiqo sibuis

SUYIUOW Z| 1X8U UI IN220 01 AjgMI| %G-% L apIsIno 1oedwl OU JO 000‘S3 01 dn SSO) jeIoUBUI 2
SUIUOW Z| I1X8U Ul N0 01 AjgMl 9 1> 10edwi ON L
apint pooyliain apIny 10edw| loyduoseq

sbuiel ysu Buissesse ul spinb e se pasn aq 0} s$ajeog pooyljayi] pue 1oedwj - | xipuaddy
01/600¢ 191s1bay sty aj1eiodio) — [1ouno) AsbuueH



Page 155

gc 40 g 9bed 6002 1AV — 01/600¢ J81siBay Ysiy e1es0diod 1ounoD AeBuie

pooyiioNIT
6 8 L 9 S| ¥l € 2 1
& | v
8L| 91| vl v z
Lz ve| 12| 81| Sl ) el ¢
82| vz| 0z 91| 2L y
0c| 2| 02| GL| Ok §| S
: ; 1oedw]
og| vz| 8L| k| 9 o
;ww 12| vt .
ve| oL | 8
1z 8l 6| 6

)su a|qeideooe ue si yeym Buunsesiy
01/600¢ Jo1s1bay ysiy o1es0dio) — [1ouno) AsbuueH



Page 156

London Borough of Haringey

The Management of Risk — Corporate Strategy
Version 5.0

March 2009



Page 157

Contents

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

7

8

BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION

WHAT IS RISK?

WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED

APPENDIX A - RISK REGISTERS - SUMMARY

APPENDIX B - PROJECT RISKS

APPENDIX C - BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS

APPENDIX D - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009

Page 1 of 13



Page 158

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Haringey is committed to developing a Risk Management Strategy, framework and the
necessary supporting processes as part of the Council’s on-going improvement
programme. This will help to improve and strengthen corporate governance and front-
line service delivery throughout the Council. The aim is to minimise the incidence and
impact of risk taking activity, improve decision making and increase opportunities for
innovation.

The Council undertakes that this policy will promote and ensure that:

1.

10.

11.

The management of risk is linked to performance improvement and the
achievement of its priorities and service objectives.

Members, CEMB and senior management own, lead and support on risk
management.

Ownership and accountability are clearly assigned for the management of risks
throughout the Council.

There is a commitment to embedding risk management into the Council’s
culture and organisational processes at all levels including strategic,
programme, project and operational.

All Members and officers acknowledge and embrace the importance of risk
management as a process, by which key risks and opportunities are identified,
evaluated, managed and contribute towards good corporate governance.

Effective monitoring and reporting mechanisms are in place to continuously
review the Council’s exposure to, and management of, risks and opportunities.

Open and inclusive processes are established and maintained by involving all
those associated with the planning and delivery of services, including
stakeholders and partners.

Best practice systems for managing risk are used throughout the Council,
including mechanisms for monitoring and reviewing effectiveness against
agreed standards and targets.

Accountability to stakeholders is fully demonstrated through periodic progress
reports and an annual statement on the effectiveness of and the added value
(benefits) from the Council’s risk management strategy, framework and
processes.

The Council’s approach is regularly benchmarked against high performing
public and private sector organisations.

The Risk Management Strategy is reviewed and updated annually in line with the
Council’s developing needs and requirements.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 1



Page 159

1.  BACKGROUND

1.11t is now recognised that all organisations face a range of risks which may affect
the achievement of their objectives. Risk management is therefore an essential part
of securing the ‘health’ of an organisation. Risk management is an important
element in the running of any business: ensuring that threats to corporate
objectives and service delivery are minimised; and that business opportunities are
exploited to maximise resources or revenue.

1.2 Risk management is part of the overall arrangements for securing effective
corporate governance. Corporate governance can be described as the systems
which local authorities use to direct and control their operations and relate to their
communities.

1.3 Good corporate governance can provide the authority’s various communities,
partners and other organisations, with confidence that the council maintains the
highest possible standards in delivering their services. It is impossible for any
organisation to achieve effective corporate governance arrangements without an
effective risk management framework.

1.4 The council also has to comply with various statutory requirements which include
issues relating to corporate governance or risk management. The Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2003 require local authorities to review, at least once a year,
systems they have in place to control and manage the services they provide. From
2007/08, the Council must publish an annual governance statement, which
represents the end results of its annual review, with its financial statements.

1.5 The Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) was introduced in order to
evaluate local authorities’ performance over a number of areas. Risk management
is included within the annual ‘Use of Resources’ assessment and is still a key part
of the assessment criteria for 2009 that is integral to the new Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA).

1.6 Other key statutory issues for the council in relation to risk management include the
requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and the Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and its related legislation. Internally, the council has developed
various business planning, performance and project management frameworks,
including business continuity and emergency planning - which all require risk
management to be considered.

1.7 Everyone within the council has a role to play in managing risk. In order to put this
in context and provide an explanation of how the various statutory and local
requirements should be met, this corporate strategy has been developed. This
builds on the previous risk management strategy to indicate where the various
statutory and key corporate requirements fit in.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 2



Page 160

2 INTRODUCTION

2.1This strategy provides an overview of Haringey’s risk management position and
what the council needs to do to move towards achieving the highest ratings in the
relevant CAA assessments. It updates the previous risk management strategy
(January 2008) and clarifies the various roles, responsibilities and governance
structures.

2.2Haringey Council, via statutory requirements and corporately set objectives, must
balance the demands of service users and tax payers; involve communities in
service provision; deliver, commission and regulate services; and enter into
strategic and local partnerships, often involving complex funding arrangements.

2.3Balancing all of these, sometimes conflicting, objectives means that the council
needs a framework which ensures that a pro-active approach is taken and risks
are considered before decisions are taken by the appropriate body.

2.4The aim of this strategy is to ensure that risks are identified at the right time to
enable good decisions to be made, including:

¢ reducing the impact and/or number of risks which could prevent the council
achieving its objectives;

e ensuring that the council takes advantage of opportunities to improve its
performance; and

e working with organisations within the Haringey Strategic Partnership to
maximise opportunities available.

2.5Risk management can make a difference and enhance the performance of the
council by:
¢ ldentifying and preventing the bad things from happening; and
¢ Ensuring that all the good things we want to do actually happen.

2.6The aim of this strategy is to ensure that everyone responsible for managing and
taking decisions is aware not only of the key risk management functions, but also
their responsibilities in relation to them.

2.7From the departments’ and business unit managers’ perspectives, the emphasis
should be to achieve their objectives and deliver their services. Risk management
should be used to facilitate this in the most effective way possible. By using a
systematic approach, managers will ensure that they consider all the options
available to them, and be in a better position to anticipate and respond to
changing social, environmental and legislative requirements.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 3



3

Page 161

WHAT IS RISK?

3.1 For a public body such as Haringey Council, risk can be defined as:

Anything that poses a threat to the achievement of our objectives,
programmes or service delivery to the residents, businesses and communities
of Haringey.

3.2 Risks can come from inside or outside the council, and may include financial loss

or gain, physical damage to people or buildings, client dissatisfaction, unfavourable
publicity, failure of equipment, or fraud. Failing to take advantage of opportunities
may also have risks for the Council, for example not bidding for external funding, or
not publicising successes.

3.3 Taking advantage of new opportunities, for example working with the voluntary

sector to deliver services, or working as part of the Haringey Strategic Partnership
can also mean the Council has to deal with different types of risks. However, not
taking advantage of these opportunities may leave the Council facing bigger risks
in the future.

3.4 Therefore, some risks should not necessarily always be avoided. However, this

means the Council should always carefully think through decisions which may
cause losses of confidence, finance, or reputation. If risks are identified and
managed effectively, they can allow the council to take opportunities for improving
services.

3.5 Risks can be classified according to how they may affect the council as it delivers

its services:

e Corporate (strategic) risks - risks which may affect the council’s ability to
achieve its plans.

o Reputational risks - risks that may undermine the confidence that the council’s
partners, customers, staff and the public have in it, e.g. adverse news articles.

e Service (operational) risks - risks which may prevent the council delivering its
core services, e.g. lack of staff, damage to buildings, equipment failure.

e Financial risks - risks which may cause a breakdown in the council’s financial
systems e.g. fraud. Alternatively, risks arising from the credit crunch and
economic downturn, e.g. on investments, debt management, etc.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 4



Page 162

4 WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

4.1 As a general principle, the Council will seek to eliminate and control all those risks

which:

e have a high potential for incidents to occur,

¢ would have a substantial adverse financial or reputational impact;

e would cause loss of public confidence in the Council and/or its partner
organisations; or

e may stop the Council from carrying out its statutory functions or achieving its
strategic objectives.

4.2 The Council recognises that it is impossible to eliminate all risks, especially those
which it has no control over e.g. UK economy, changes to legislation, climate and
weather influences, or external power failure. This is not an exhaustive list, but
provided for illustrative purposes only.

4.3 The Council will always try to reduce or eliminate risks wherever possible, but it
needs to strike the right balance between how much it costs to manage or
eliminate risks and taking no action. For example, the costs of eliminating risks in a
system may be more than the amount of money the Council may lose if the system
were to fail. In these circumstances, the Council would want to ensure that there
were sensible precautions taken to manage the risks, but that these were balanced
against what it would cost if the system were to break down.

4.4 Systems that the Council puts in place should therefore be flexible enough to
encourage innovation and imaginative use of its limited resources, subject to any
legal requirements, in order to deliver better services to its residents.

4.5 All projects and change programmes carry with them some risk of failure. The
willingness to take advantage of opportunities or new innovation, in a managed
way, is a sign of an ambitious organisation. It is important that risks associated
with opportunities and innovation are identified and effectively managed, to ensure
that the strategic objectives of the Council are achieved.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 5



Page 163

5 WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

5.1 There is no such thing as a risk-free environment, but many risks can be avoided,
reduced or eliminated through good risk management. Good risk management
also takes advantage of opportunities while analysing and dealing with risks.

5.2 Risk management is something that managers do every day as part of their normal
work, although it may not always be written down, and managers may not use a
formal procedure to make their final decision. Risk management can be explained
as a tool for managers to use so that they are able to identify, evaluate and
manage both risks and opportunities in a logical and consistent way.

5.3 Good risk management is forward looking and helps to improve business decisions
and manage performance. It is not only about avoiding or minimising losses, but
also about dealing positively with opportunities.

5.4 In addition to fulfilling statutory requirements, it should be recognised that there are
many benefits to making sure that risk management is considered and applied at

all levels in the Council, including:

Allowing managers to focus on the issues that really matter;

Spending less management time on operational issues;

Fewer surprises;

Managers are focused on doing the right things, in the right way;

Better chance of achieving business objectives;

Better chance that new developments can be delivered on time, in accordance
with the planned programme and within budget; and

e More informed risk taking and decision making.

5.5 Risk management should be considered as a continuous process, which evolves
as the Council gains more understanding of the risks and opportunities facing it
and how to manage these effectively.

5.6 Risk management consists of a number of elements, which should be considered
and applied regularly during the course of the year, as part of the Council’s cycle of
performance management and improvement processes:

e Understanding the Council’s, department’s, or business unit’s objectives;
o Identifying and assessing the risks facing it;

* Assessing the actions in place to manage the risks;

e Taking action to improve, monitor and learn from experiences.

1 Source: ‘Embedding Risk Management into the Culture of your Organisation’, The Institute of Internal Auditors — UK and
Ireland, October 2003.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 6



Page 164

6 WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

6.1Directors and senior managers are responsible for managing their services. They
are therefore responsible for identifying, assessing and managing the risks
associated with planning, delivering and monitoring each of their services.

6.2The following diagram illustrates the key processes in the council’'s overall
approach to the provision of its services. The assessment and management of risk
is essential to all aspects of this approach and is shown as an overarching aspect
of service delivery.

Figure1
_________ R SERVICE STRATEGIES ]
________ , | BUSINESS/SERVICEPLANNING | | z
| ®
. )
: )
: l 3
: DARRE, o
. Business Budget/ Stakeholders/ Health & Safety g
E Continuity / Funding Clients Issues a
' Emerg. Plannin
: g g §
! DELIVERY OF EFFICIENT AND 35
.; EFFECTIVE SERVICE ((%;
i | 3
| PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT =1
; AND REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS D Q,
g P
: )
! MEASUREMENT OF €] ~
: PERFORMANCE
________ L
Nis Customer/Client CAA - UoR/ Benchmarking
Local Pls  Satisfaction Other assessment

REPORTS TO MEMBERS

Management of Risk Cormporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 7



Page 165

6.2 Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer has a specific statutory responsibility, under
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure that the Council
maintains high standards in managing its financial systems and that procedures
comply with all relevant legislation and local procedures.

6.4 The Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) is responsible for approving the
Council’s risk management strategy at officer level and for ensuring that this is
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. CEMB is also responsible for reviewing
and approving the corporate risk register, business continuity plan and health and
safety policy on a regular basis.

6.5 The Council’'s Audit Committee has responsibility for approving the risk
management strategy at member level and is also responsible for reviewing, on an
annual basis, the implementation of risk management across the Council. Risk
management is included as part of the portfolio for the Cabinet Member for
Resources.

6.6 The Council has a statutory responsibility to “assess the risk of an emergency
occurring” under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. This responsibility is undertaken
in partnership with other agencies (e.g. the Emergency Services), and the resulting
Community Risk Register is signed off at the Local Resilience Forum.

6.7 The Council also has a responsibility to ensure that the strategy covers bodies
working in partnership with the Council. It is critical that both the risk appetite and
risk management arrangements for all parties are discussed and clearly
understood before a partnership is created. In particular, a risk management
strategy has been developed for the Haringey Strategic Partnership and risk
registers are being developed for each of the partnership theme boards.

6.8 Figure 1 above sets out the various areas across the council where managers need
to consider the risks in relation to their business, and how these should be
addressed. In practice, the council has various corporate systems and processes
which should be completed in order to ensure that risks are appropriately
considered. These are set out below in Table 1 below:

Table 1
Area/Process Action required/Response
Business/Service Planning Risk Register(s) to be completed

Project & Programme Management Haringey Project Management
Framework to be followed

Business Continuity/Disaster Business Continuity Plan(s) to be
Recovery completed

Health and Safety Risk Assessment(s) to be completed
Performance Management National (LAA) and local indicators to

be monitored

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 8



Page 166

7 RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

7.1 Our vision is that all significant risks which may prevent the Gouncil from achieving
its objectives and all appropriate opportunities are identified, assessed and cost
effectively managed, as part of the whole Council performance management
process.

7.2 The key objectives of the framework are to ensure that the Council has a
consistent approach and basis for measuring, controlling, monitoring, follow-up
and reporting of risk that is based on what the Council, not any individual, judges
to be acceptable levels of risk.

7.3 The framework demonstrates how the management of risk is embedded in the
various business processes across the council, including business planning,
financial planning, business continuity, performance management and project
management.

7.4 Table 2 below provides a summary of the council’s business planning cycle and
how the business processes operate within this.

Table 2
Timing Activity Completed by Key Contact
April Draft Business Plans | BU Head Performance
Management
Team
April and Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Head of Audit &
September of risk register CEMB Risk
Management
April and Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Emergency
September of Business CEMB Planning and
Continuity Plan Business
Continuity
Manager
September Pre-Business Plan BU Head Performance
Review Management
Team
April - March | Collate and monitor | BU Head Performance
performance Management
Indicators Team
April - March | Submission of Project Lead Project
Project Management Management
Highlight reports Office
April Undertake risk BU Head/ DMT Health & Safety
assessments Manager

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009

Page 9



Page 167

7.5 Education, training & awareness is achieved by:

" Facilitated workshops, training sessions and meetings with Members, managers
and staff at various levels.

. A developing framework of standards, practical guidance notes and briefings.

] Regular meetings with managers and staff to heighten awareness and share

views, ideas and experiences.

7.6 From April 2009, the Council will implement Covalent Software and this interactive
database will be used to develop:

. Corporate, departmental and business unit risk registers that will be updated on
a continuous basis. These will be based on identifying an “analysis gap”
between “where we are now” and where we want to be over an agreed

timeframe.

. High level risk actions that form part of Managers’ performance management
dashboards.

. A database of risk data and information for analysis and reporting.

. The identification of control areas that need to underpin the Strategic and
Annual Internal Audit Plans.

. Further integration with outcomes from value for money reviews; outstanding

high risk audit recommendations; corporate health and safety risks; business
continuity management; Civil Contingencies Act; Crime and Disorder; and
Equalities, etc.

. Effective links between risk management, performance management, project
management and business planning, etc.

7.7 Previous sections of this strategy have listed the areas where the council requires
managers to complete corporate processes. Table 3 below details the appendices
which set out how the framework operates in practice for each of these areas:

Table 3

Area Appendix
Completion of Risk Registers A

Project & Programme Management B

Business Continuity Plans | C

H & S Risk Assessments Under review
Performance Management Framework D

(Overview)

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 10



Page 168

8 HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED?

8.1The council has various means of measuring and recording risks. The reporting of each

of these areas, together with the links between each process, is set out below.

8.2Risk registers are subject to regular review and update, at least quarterly, by business

units, departments and CEMB. The timing for review should coincide with and form part
of the annual planning process. As a minimum, risks should be formally considered
twice a year in line with submission of the Pre-business Plan Reviews (PBPR’s) in
September and the annual business plans in April. Key risks are escalated from
business unit registers to departmental registers and ultimately on to the corporate
register where the realisation of the risk may impact on the ability to achieve corporate
or statutory objectives.

8.3The Corporate Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and

subject to test on an annual basis. The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Planning team maintain the corporate plan, incorporating lessons from incidents and
exercises. Business Unit BCP’s should be reviewed twice a year in line with the
business planning cycle (in September and April). Reports are provided to CEMB and
members detailing the implementation and management of the council’s BCP’s. Key
BCP risks are included on business unit, departmental and the corporate risk register
as appropriate.

8.4The council’s project management framework requires risks affecting each project to

be reviewed prior to the submission of each project highlight report (normally monthly)
and reported to the relevant project and programme board. Reports to CEMB and
members are provided on a regular basis as part of the reporting cycle. Projects which
carry significant risks to the achievement of business unit or departmental objectives
should be included in business unit or departmental risk registers, with escalation to the
corporate risk register in cases where the failure of the project may impact on the ability
to achieve corporate or statutory objectives.

8.5Health and safety risks are addressed based on the Health and Safety Executive’s

‘Sensible Risk Management’ strategy, which the council has adopted. Managers at all
levels are required to ensure that key assessment processes e.g. display screen
assessments and safe working practices are completed on a regular basis. Reports to
CEMB and members detailing compliance with the council’s policies are provided on a
regular basis.

8.6 Performance management information, including statutory and local performance

indicators, is provided on a regular basis to CEMB and members. The council uses a
‘balanced scorecard’ to highlight key risk areas.

8.7 The Council has to produce an Annual Governance Statement every year, which is an

assessment of the systems the Council has in place to control and manage the services
they provide. This risk management strategy and framework will provide assurance to
CEMB and members that risks are being properly managed.

Management of Risk Corporate Strategy — March 2009 Page 11



Page 169

Z jo | abey

80 48Q0120 uaipiiyD 4oy sbueyn ng SdAD| P2

80 1900100 juswdojenag ¥ uoddng ssauisng ng SdAD| €2

80 18903100 uolsnjouj pue spiepuelg |00yog ngd SdAD| <22

80 1990100 Saljie R UsIp|iyd ng SdAD| Le
(SdAD) @o1miss

80 1990100 901M19g s,8|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyn 1deq s, 8|doad Bunoa pue uaipiiyg| 0z

60 dy saoInI8g Auadold aeiodion ng 4ol 6L

60 IUdy juswiainooid a1elo0dion ng 4ol 8l

60 judy Juswabeue sy B IPNY nd HO| [/}

60 |udy 9oueUl4 B1eJodio] ng "4o| o9l

60 |Hdy uollexe] [e207 R sljeueg ng HO| &Gl

60 |udy S9OIABG JBWoIsnNy ngd HO| vl

60 |udy S82IMIBS 1] ng HO| ¢l

60 |1dy saoineg [ebe ngd 0| ¢t

60 |udy $92In0saYy ajei0dio) 1daqg (4D) seoinosay e1eiodion| ||

80 sunp Buiuses] x Juswdoaseq [euonesiuebip ng ao-3In| ot

80 aunp poddng Jequisiy pue Aoeioowa(] 207 ng ao-310 6

80 aunp $S92/N0Say uBWNH ng ao-3o 8

80 aunp swdojenaq jeuonesiuebip ideq| swdojansq jeuonesiuebio - 39 /

80 Joquusidag 9oUBWIOUSH puk Juswanoidw| ng dddd - 30 9

80 Joquisydeg SUOIEBDIUNWWOD ng Sddd =30

80 Jequisldesg Juswabeue pooyinoqybieN ng Oddd-30| +

80 Joquwaeldes SajiuNWIWO] Jojeg ng Oddd - 30 €
uonesiunwwo?) g sdiysisuped

80 Jequweideg uolleounwwon) ¥ sdiysisuped aosueuwiopad Aoljod 1deqg aouewIOudd Adljod — 30 2

60 |udy Jsisibay eresodio)| aresodion gingo - arelodion L

arepdn

juaoau jsouw jo areq a1 Jo181b60y [ena juswpedaq

9 xipuaddy

6002 1udy e se snjelg - sislsibay ysiy




Page 170

Z Jo Z obed

60 Asenuep IENTEIGITE ng anl ve
60 Aenuep wswdognaq ¥ Aoljod Buiuueld ng Jnl ¢¢
o 60 Asenuep S9DIAI9S SUIjIUOI ng anl ze
60 Aenuep BuisnoH Anunwiwo) g oibeieng ng Inl L
60 Aenuep JUSWUOJIAUT UBqIN 1deqg (3N) wswuosauz ueqiny| o¢
60 |udy 8inynD @ seleIqr] ‘Buluies)| 1npy ngd SOJV| 62
60 |udy SBJIAIBS UOl1esl08Y ng SOJOV| 8¢
60 Iudy S$80IAI8G NPy nd SO0V, /¢
60 [udy ABeyeng ® BuluoissiLwo) ng S00V| 92

(sD00V) seoinieg
60 |Ludy S90IAI9S ALIUNWIWIOY) pue ainynyd synpy 1deq Alunwwo) pue ainyn) synpy| <z

a1epdn -
juasal 1sow Jo ayeq a1 J91s1bay [oAaT juswipedaq

9 xipuaddy




Page 171 Agenda ltem 14

Agenda item: : [No ]
Audit Committee On 23 April 2009

Report Title: Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) Inspection

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform Members of the inspection visit made to Haringey by the Assistant
Surveillance Commissioner in March 2009.

1.2 To inform members of the recommendations made by the OSC and the council’s
response in order to ensure these are appropriately addressed.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the content of the OSC inspection report.

3.2That the Audit Committee approves the action plan to address the recommendations
made by the Surveillance Commissioner.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council's arrangements for
corporate governance and compliance with its own and other regulations as part of its
Terms of Reference. Compliance with legislation in relation to the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) falls within this remit. In order to facilitate this,
reports are provided for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit Committee.




Page 172

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Head of Audit and Risk Management acts as the lead officer in relation to
compliance with RIPA legislation for the Council. This report outlines the results of the
recent inspection of the Council’s policies and procedures by the Office of the
Surveillance Commission and focuses on:

e The conclusions of the inspector on the Council’s policies, procedures, training
and application/use of RIPA in practice
e The recommendations for improvement and how the Council will address these.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
makes the following comments.

7.2. The Head of Legal Services agrees that the measures set out in the action plan at
Appendix A, do form an appropriate and adequate response to the OCS
Recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Finance Officer has no additional comments to make.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how RIPA legislation is applied and used within the Council.
Use of directed surveillance could have an impact on the community as a whole if
used incorrectly; therefore it is important to ensure that safeguards are in place to
enable the council to comply with the legislation. Used in accordance with the
requirements of the Act, directed surveillance can enable the council to improve
conditions for those who live and work in the borough.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with relevant service managers where the
application of RIPA is included in their responsibilities to ensure that the
recommendations will be addressed.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The costs of
ensuring the Council complies with RIPA legislation and operating guidelines are
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management and relevant service
departments’ revenue budgets.




Page 173

13. Use of appendices

13.1 Appendix A — Action Plan
Appendix B — OSC report

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1 An inspection of the Council’s policies and procedures relating to the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act, 2000 (RIPA) was conducted by an Assistant Surveillance
Commissioner (ASC), from the Office of Surveillance Commissioners, in March 2009.

15.2 The inspection focused on directed surveillance and covert human intelligence sources
(CHIS) and a range of compliance issues. Broadly speaking these were: policies and
procedures, completion of RIPA authorisations, training, and roles and responsibilities,
including the designated Lead Officer to oversee RIPA.

15.3 A report on the outcome of the inspection was received by the Chief Executive on 30"
March 2009 from the Chief Surveillance Commissioner, the Rt. Hon. Sir Christopher
Rose. This is attached as Appendix B. In summary, the report concludes that the
Council has good policies, procedures and training in place.

15.4Whilst the Chief Surveillance Commissioner stated that the council appeared to be well
placed to use the powers available to it under RIPA, the report at Appendix A does
contain some suggestions for improving the application of the required processes.

15.5The Council has confirmed that it accepts the Surveillance Commissioner’s
recommendations and will implement them in order to ensure full compliance with the
requirements of RIPA.

16. The Inspection ,
16.1The ASC met with the Head of Audit & Risk Management (the Council's Lead Officer
for RIPA), together with the Head of Enforcement to the Council’s use of RIPA.

16.2The ASC reviewed and discussed the Council's policy and procedures documentation
in relation to their operation and best practice. A review of RIPA applications,
authorisations, renewals and cancellations was also undertaken. Feedback from the
ASC during the course and at the end of the inspection was positive on the
understanding and application of RIPA principles across the Council, and on the
Council's training for Authorised Officers, which was provided in-house by Legal
Services.

16.3The ASC did not find any material gaps in approach or compliance in the Council’s use
of RIPA. No omission in information required by the authorisation forms, or the
authorising officer statements was identified. However, the ASC did make a number of
recommendations to ensure the Council met best practice and improved its existing
processes. The recommendations made by the OSC are detailed in the table below,
which indicates how these are to be addressed and implemented.



Page 174

uswabeuely
)SIY pue Jpny JO pesH

0l0c ysteiy

ul dpew suoijepuswiwosal sy} ajesodiooul
[lIM pue ainin} sy} Ul s1ao1yo Buislioyyne
1oy pauueld aq |im Buluiely Jaysalsy
‘poaiby

‘Jey} ainsua 0} Moy
Uo 9)esjuadu09 pinoys Bujuiesy aininy ey} papusLIodal
SEeM JI ‘'SWIO} paslIoyIne JO MSIASI B UO paseq

Bulures|

Juawabeuepy
JSIY ' 1PNy JO pesH

6002 Aen

"spJ02a1 Adoo piey ayj 0} peppe
aq ||Im BUO INQ ‘pi0Jal [B1JUSD JIUOIIO9|D
ay} ojul pajesodiooul Apealje sI xapul Uy

‘poaiby

‘suoljeslioyine Jo piodal [Bljuad ayj 0} pappe
99 pinoys (¥1 'y pue G1°Z ‘v1 ¢ sydeibe.ed) aonoeid
JO 8p0Y 8210 SWOH 3y} ypm jueldwos ‘xapuj uy
suoljesiioyiny Jo plooay jenjuan

s19010 Buisuoyiny |1
Jusweabeuey

}SIY ® HpPNY jO pesH

"¢ Juiod 1oy Buiobup

‘¢ pue
| sjuiod 10} pajsjdwon)

"9sN Ul ale SWioy
JUS1IND Jey} aINsuS 0} Juswabeuey ysiy
9 PNy UIYIm swiio} paje|dwod jo 1disosl

UO USNELapUN SI Y08y jeul} e Jey} ainsue ¢

pue ‘geis Jiay}
0} SWJo} pue sajou aouepinb }saje| ayj Jo

sa1doo apinoid s1ao10 Buisuoyine jsenbal N

‘sajou aosuepinb panssi

-91 Y} UIY}IM PBUIBIUOD SWIO) 8y} asn Ajuo

pue swuoj Bulsixe-aid Jo saidood Aossap
0} s192140 Buisuoyine jjle puiwal Ajjewloy |
llm Juswabeuel ysiy 9 JpNY Jo peaH ay L
‘poaiby

"UoljewIoUl JUBASJSI ||e sapn|oul

pue jusiole sl ssao0id 8y} Jey) ainsus 0} sjuswpedap
Ife Aq pasn ase swuo} suonesijdde 9010 SWOH

a)ep 0} dn Jsow 8y} ey} 8INSUS piNOYS |IoUN0D ay |
SWI04 9910 SWOH

Juswabeuepy
JSIY B 1PNy JO pesH

‘pale|dwion

"s190140 Buisuoyine jje

0} pa}e|nosId pue Sajou aInpadsold pasiaal sy}
o}uI pajelodiooul aq f|im asuepinb DSO ay L
‘posiby

‘Ajjeuorniodold uo

oogpuey soueping pue sainpasold, 800z Jaquiase(
l1ay} Jjo 01 pue ¢} sydeibesed uiyum paurejuoo

se ‘souepinb s,DSO 9y} apnjoul 0} papuswie aq

pinoys (z'1" /2 udeibesed) ssjou ainpaooid s jlouno) ay |
S3JON d4npasoud

Anqisuodsay
pue auljpeaq

asuodsay juswabeuep

uonEpPUBWWOI3Y ISO

Vv Xipuaddy

NV7d NOILOV — 6002 HOYVIN LISIA NOILO3dSNI 0SO

souno”) AebBuliey




Page 175

oax3 AlUQ Jaquispy / saipog [ewlo :ajejdwa | podey

‘pajejdwion

‘poaiby

‘suoljepuswiwodal

pue poday uonoadsu] DS 9yl jo aouedesde
s,/louno) 8y} Buluod JBUOISSILLIWOY dUR||IBAINS
$9I4yO 8y} 0] SjUM plnoys aAlnNdax3 JaIyQ ey

sieo1O Buisuoyiny |y
Juswabeuepy

ASiY ® Hpny jo pesH

'Z uiod Joy BurobuQ

‘Juswalinbai
siyy Buypying aJe siao1jo Buisuoyine
Jey} ainsus 0} Juswabeuey sy ¥
HUpNY UIlylm swiioy palsjdwiod jo 1digdal
Uuo usyepapuUn a4 |IIM 308Yd jeul Y ‘2
"}senbai jenpiaipul
yoea uIy}iM paulejuod aduapine ayj uo
paseq swio} 8y} a}8{dwod 0} papulwal
Ajjewloy aq jm siao14o Buisuoyiny |
"Ajjeoiuoi}osje suop ale suonesuoyine
pue 10} sysanbal ‘sased Jo Ajuolew ay) uj

"uoljesuoyne ay}

pauisni yaiym Bunjuiyl ayl jo piodas snosuelodwsiuod
leuosiad e se Buumpuey u paje|dwod ag o}

Juswejess s 901y Buisuoyiny ayy Joj ao130eid poob s §

"1 juiod Joj pajejdwion ‘poaibe Ajued juswalelg s 1o9o10 Buisuoyiny

‘pasuoyine buiaqg s jeym Jo junodoe

[In} B S| Juswale}s sJaoiyo Buisuoyine sy} e
‘passaippe

Ajorendoidde si Ayjeuoipodoid jo anssiay) e
[euIwnD Juswdinbs Aue jo asn sy Buipnjour ‘a1e|dwod

- 18Ame Jolusg ‘podal oy} | pue |jn} ale uoneiado pasodoid ayj jo sjielep oY) e

Apiqisuodsay

pue aujjpeaqg

asuodsay Juswabeuep

uonepUBWWOIdY ISO




Page 176

The Rt Hon. Sir Christopher Rose

Ofice of Surveillance
Commissioners

A 4

Chief
Surveillance
Commissioner

EF E‘X'ff"{:ru‘?g S
gv M_g*{ g«ﬁ}ﬂg},{ f"’?{mi ::3‘% !CE

Restricted 30 MAR 2009 5" March 2009

dean o 0

Covert Surveillance

On 3™ March 2009, an Assistant Surveillance Commissioner HH Dr Colin Kolbert again
visited your Council on my behaif to review your management of covert activities. | am
grateful to you for the facilities afforded for the inspection.

| enclose a copy of Dr Kolbert's report which | endorse.

| am pleased to see that you have good policies, procedures and training in place, so it is
disappointing to see that up to date Home Office forms are still not being used, despite
Dr Kolbert drawing attention to this in the report 2 years ago.

The recommendations are that your RIPA Procedure Notes be revised as discussed, that
only up to date Home Office forms be used, that future training concentrate on the
matters indentified in para 10 of the report and that an index, compliant with the Code of
Practice, be added to your Central Record and used by the monitoring officer.

I shall be glad to learn that your Council accepts the recommendations and will see that
they are implemented.

One of the main functions of review is to enable public authorities to improve their
understanding and conduct of covert activities. | hope your Council finds this process
constructive. Please let this Office know if it can help at any time.

Dr Ita O’'Donovan

Chief Executive

London Borough of Haringey
Civic Centre

High Road

Wood Green

London

N22 8LE




Oﬁce ofSurveillanca' "
! Commlssloners :

‘H}'*ﬁn

5 '.._OFFICE OF SURVEILLANCE COMMISSIONERS:-__ -

INSPECTION REPORT

COUNCIL OF THE LONDON BQRQUGH OF o
¢ ,3 March 2009 | et

Assistant Cbmrni_ssioner:-
His Honour Dr. Colin Kolbert




'RESTRICTED

DISCLAIMER

suWe;ll ce di
speclf bhc thomy condﬁcted on,behalﬁoﬁhe Chl

2 L

The ma'pﬁmon Wa.s llmltqd }'

- act‘i«nty order. to make a sﬂﬁ_;cctwe assessment gf comphgngh, Failure |

“this: rqmt should not amomaelcally be eonstrucd as; eﬂdorsemcnt oi‘ 'th unmported

practmes

The advnce ar;d gmdameu prcv:ded hy theJ inspec‘ror(s) during tﬁe mspcaugn; ould dnly

reﬂccb the inspectors! subjective opinion and does not ebnsnmte an endc seﬁ.ludlcxal

‘ mti:tpeg,‘,anen of the legislation. Fundamental chmges to praﬂﬁces ar pmddurﬁ should:
- not be: unglwne!lted unléss'and until the, xcc,ammendatmns m ﬁhls\ rEpo:t are. ende;sed by-
*Ehe Chqu Suweﬂ'tance @ommlssmnen ) s et

" _. ig s’ent onlau to 1hc roelplcnt of ihe élncf Surveﬂlanee Cﬁ"""

covermg le-aec ‘'should  re I qn
recipient’s own, authémty is. penmsSlhIq bul: itis rcqumte;j th ‘,'fhe ‘Séoretany Aol
. Office of Surveillance €ommissioners, is informed of, tha naml:‘d individuals to; whhm- o
. copies, gr-e,itracts ha,ve_been sent 'Aﬁy rcferenees to. lt, or ¢ ?lm "t_'_t'nm'lt muatbe placef :
in the. qorrect qontext,l'f., _ A

. The Ofﬁce of Survelllance Comm:ssmners (OSC) is not a publlc body Ilswd under the'
FOI Act 2000, however, requests‘for the.disclosure to a third party of any. mformsn on
- contained within this report shou Id be n0t1 fied to the Secretary to OSG e

'RESTRICTED

-.'tlme and cmlld gnlg- samp[&a s[nnll pmporﬂ' on of covetl}-;’ XS N




Page 179

Office of Surveillance
Commissioners

OSC/INSP/O75

Chief Surveillance Commissioner
Office of Surveillance Commissioners
PO Box 29105

LONDON

SWIV 1ZU

5" March 2009

OSC INSPECTION REPORT - LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

Date of Inspection 3" March 2009

Assistant Commissioner HH Dr Colin Kolbert

London Borough of Haringey

The nature of the area for which the Council is responsible, the size of its staff and the
extreme diversity of the population served, many of whom are newcomers to the United
Kingdom and amongst whom over 200 different languages are spoken, have not changed
significantly since Irwin Nettleship made the first OSC Inspection Report in October 2002,
Since then I have made Inspections in August 2004 and in May 2006, when I was able to
report that all the elements were in place for effective use to be made of covert surveillance
when necessary.

The Chief Executive, as previously, is Dr Ita O’Donovan, Civic Centre, High Road, Wood
Green, London, N22 8LE. She heads a Corporate Management Team of two Assistant
Chief Executives and four Directors.

Inspection

3

The Inspection was conducted with the most helpful assistance of Anne Woods (Head of
Audit and Risk Management) who is a veteran of my two previous visits, and Robin Payne
(Assistant Director, Urban Environment). ”

A copy of the Council’s RIPA Procedure Notes, revised after my last Inspection, was made
available in advance of this Inspection. It is succinct, accurate and practical in its approach.
In light of the issues raised in paragraph 10 below, which were thoroughly discussed during
the Inspection, it is suggested that paragraph 7.1.2 of the Procedure Notes would gain in
value by adding full guidance on proportionality as in the OSC’s Procedures and Guidance,
paragraphs 103 and 104.




Page 180

RESTRICTED

Several other policy documents were also made available, dealing with Fraud and
Corruption (Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit), Anti-Social Behaviour, CCTV,
Food Health and Safety and Noise Control. Some gave wording of the potential use of
covert surveillance, but did not raise any RIPA issues. The Heavy Enforcement Team (now
given the less dramatic title “Tactical Enforcement Team™) clajms significant successes in
dealing with anti-social behaviour in many forms throughout the Borough, notably gangs,
brothels, and crack houses (74 closures in eleven months to February 2008).

Policies and Procedures

6

7

10

The Council’s RIPA Procedure Notes are considered in paragraph 4 above.

Copies of the latest Home Office application forms for authorisation of Directed
Surveillance were included in the pre-inspection bundle, but they were not in use by the
main user. The out-of-date forms make the task of applicant and Authorising Officer more
difficult than it need be, because the questions to be dealt with do not appear in the most
logical order, nor is there guidance as to the issues which need to be spelt out.

Nine Authorising Officers are listed by name and post in Appendix 1 to the Procedure
Notes. All comply with S.1. 2003, No. 3171. The Chief Executive is listed as Authorising
Officer for cases involving confidential information. Both Assistant Chief Executives are
listed also, with particular responsibility for serious anti-social cases — gangs, brothels and
crack houses.

The Central Record of Authorisations is kept securely by Anne Woods in her capacity as
“lead officer for monitoring the implementation of RIPA and the use of the authorisation
forms” (Procedure Notes, paragraph 10.1.1). It exists as a paper bundle (complete with the
authorisations) and as a computer spreadsheet. The addition of an Index compliant with the
Home Office Code of Practice paragraphs 2.14, 2.15 and 4.14 (referred to in paragraph 9 of
my last Report) is no mere bureaucratic requirement, but would enable the monitoring
officer, at a glance, to ensure a degree of quality control and prompt reviews, renewals and
cancellations.

Examination of a sample of authorisations led to a discussion of four specific issues which,
once put right, should enable an Authorising Officer unfortunate enough to be in the witness
box, to withstand hostile cross-examination . All are more easily dealt with by following all
the prompts on the most up-to-date Home Office forms:

(1) Description of the proposed operation should be full and detailed. Specify
any equipment to be used; use maps or sketches to show, e.g. observation
posts and target premises. Be sure that there are no ambiguities,
remembering the disaster which befell the Lincoinshire Police in R v
Sutherland as the result of a simple misunderstanding.

RESTRICTED

b



11

12

Page 181

RESTRICTED

(i)  Proportionality must be carefully explained, not merely asserted, nor is
describing parts of the operation itself germane to proportionality. A good
explanation should refer to three elements (a) balance the extent of the
problem against the size and scope of the operation, demonstrating that it
is not the proverbial “sledgehammer to crack a nut”, (b) explain that
intrusion is to be kept to a minimum and (c) show that having considered
all other practical courses there is no other way in which the necessary
evidence can be obtained (i.c. a covert operation is the last resort).

(iii)  The Authorising Officer’s statement is not a mere rubber stamp. It should
include a full account of what is being authorised (five “Ws”) and how and
why the Authorising Officer is satisfied that the operation is necessary and
proportionate. Do not be put off if there seems to be repetition — the
Authorising Officer, possibly under cross-examination two years later
must be able to demonstrate his own thought processes af the time and will
be in a weak position if he has to rely upon the applicant’s account by
adoption. A competent cross-examiner would be able easily to raise the
point that the Authorising Officer did not apply his mind to the vital issues
in the case.

(iv) It is good practice for the Authorising Officer’s statement to be completed
in handwriting as a personal contemporaneous record of the thinking
which justified the authorisation.

There were twelve authorisations of Directed Surveillance in the past year. Although anti-
social behaviour and environmental crime are high-profile priorities in Haringey, the

‘Tactical Enforcement Team has been highly successful in using straightforward methods

and covert surveillance is used only in the last resort. This approach in itself shows a good
practical understanding of proportionality, even if it is not yet usually fully spelled out on
application forms. ‘

No use has been made of CHIS and none is contemplated, as was noted in paragraph 12 of
my last Inspection Report.

Training

13

14

Training is evidently effective and the most recent session had been conducted on 2™ March
2009 (the day before this Inspection). It was provided by Joyce Golder (Senior Criminal
Litigation Lawyer) who should be commended for her excellent training materials. One
notable PowerPoint slide on proportionality and necessity was headed KEY TERMS in bold
capitals.

All updates, such as new forms are circulated electronically on the Council’s Intranet: so it
is all the more surprising to find old authorisation forms still in use, though the solution
would seem to be straightforward if a fool-proof method can be devised to ensure that all
relevant staff do consult the intranet regularly for RIPA methods., As a last resort, the
monitoring officer should reject such forms when they are presented for inclusion in the
Central Record.

RESTRICTED 3



Page 182

RESTRICTED

CCTV

15

The Council’s CCTV control room was not visited on this occasion. It has previously been
noted as excellent with fully trained staff and good practical protocols which are stili
operated in close co-operation with the Metropolitan Police.

Conclusions

16

The Council appears to have everything necessary in place to operate RIPA effectively,
namely good policies and procedures and good training: so it is a little disappointing to find
it necessary to repeat the conclusion of my last Report, especially as it is such a simple
matter which could yield significant results: “it is hoped that use of the revised Home Office
forms will in itself ease or even remove the long-standing problems referred to in paragraph
117 (c.f. paragraph 10 of this Report).

Recommendations
17 The Council’s RIPA Procedure Notes should be revised as was discussed and as outlined in
paragraph 4 above.
18 All out-of-date authorisation forms should be removed and only the latest version used in
future (see paragraphs 7 and 14 above).
19 Future training would be enhanced by concentrating on the issues outlined in paragraph 10
above.
20 A compliant Index should be added to the Central Record of Authorisations and used by the

RIPA monitoring officer as a simple tool for management and quality control (see paragraph
9 above).

Pl M

e

Assistant Surveillance Commissioner

RESTRICTED 4



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Accounting Policies and Accounts 2008/09
	7 Implementation of new International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
	8 Audit Committee update from Grant Thornton
	9 Audit and inspection fees 2009/10
	11 Internal Audit Annual Plan and Strategy 2009/10
	12 Internal Audit progress report - 2008/09 quarter 4
	IA progress report - appx A
	IA progress report - Appx B
	IA progress report appx C

	13 Risk management and Corporate Risk Register
	14 Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) Inspection

